BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Order Instituting Rulemaking Concerning Energy Efficiency Rolling Portfolios, Policies, Programs, Evaluation, and Related Issues.

Rulemaking 13-11-005

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902 M) ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS ANNUAL REPORT 2021 RESULTS

PUBLIC VERSION

Erica L. Martin

Attorney For SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 8330 Century Park Court, CP 32D San Diego, California 92123 Telephone: (858) 654-1813

Facsimile: (619) 699-5027 E-mail: emartin8@sdge.com

BEFORE THE PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Order Instituting Rulemaking Concerning Energy Efficiency Rolling Portfolios, Policies, Programs, Evaluation, and Related Issues.

Rulemaking 13-11-005

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY (U 902 M) ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS ANNUAL REPORT 2021 RESULTS

Pursuant to the Administrative Law Judge's Ruling Adopting Annual Reporting
Requirements for Energy Efficiency and Addressing Related Reporting Issues, dated August 8,
2007 and Decision (D.) 18-01-004, D.18-05-041 and the Email Ruling Granting Extension
Request For Energy Efficiency Annual Report Submittal, issued on March 25, 2022, San Diego
Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E) hereby submits its Annual Report for 2021 Energy
Efficiency programs and accomplishments.

SDG&E's Annual Report provides detailed portfolio, sector and program-level information on the accomplishments of SDG&E's EE Portfolio in 2021, including data on energy savings, budget, cost-effectiveness and metrics. SDG&E's Annual Report also addresses the various energy efficiency activities and results affecting water use, activities authorized as part of the water-energy nexus, and other programs that impact water use across the energy efficiency portfolio, as well as energy and water savings, and spending resulting from these activities, as required by D.16-06-010 Ordering Paragraph (OP) 9. This Annual Report also includes Performance Metrics and 2021 performance results as required in D.18-05-041, OP 9.

Finally, pursuant to OP 8 of D.18-01-004, the dollar amounts of third-party contracts (provided in aggregate) are included in Appendix A. As directed by the Investor Owned Utility (IOU) who is acting as the Statewide lead, particular contract dollar amounts will be provided

confidentially to the California Public Utilities Commission (Commission or CPUC). SDG&E is filing the public and confidential versions of the report showing current Third-Party program contracts. The public version of the report will be served. SDG&E's Annual Report and associated documents are also uploaded and available for viewing on the Commission's data systems: (1) California Energy Data and Reporting System (CEDARS) website; and (2) California Energy Efficiency Statistics (EESTATs). The report and the Updated Set of Final Metrics are available on SDGE.com.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Erica L. Martin
Erica L. Martin

Attorney for SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 8330 Century Park Court, CP32C San Diego, CA 92123

Telephone: (858) 654-1813 Facsimile: (619) 699-5027 E-mail: emartin8@sdge.com <u>/s/ Tashonda Taylor</u> Tashonda Taylor

Vice President of Customer Operations SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY 8330 Century Park Court, CP32C San Diego, CA 92123 Telephone: (858) 654-1669

Facsimile: (858) 435-1575 E-mail: ttaylor@sdge.com

June 1, 2022

SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC COMPANY

ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS ANNUAL REPORT 2021 RESULTS



TABLE OF CONTENTS

I.	EXE	ECUTIVE SUMMARY		
II.	2022	22 ENERGY EFFICIENCY PORTFOLIO OUTLOOK		
III.	RESI	RESIDENTIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS		
	A.	SDGE3201 SW CALS – Energy Advisor – HEES (UAT)	6	
	B.	SDGE3204 SW-CALS – Plug Load and Appliances – POS Rebates	8	
IV.	COM	COMMERCIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS		
	A.	SDGE3217 SW-COM-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res	11	
	B.	SDGE3220 SW-COM-Calculated Incentives-Calculated	12	
	C.	SDGE3222 SW-COM-Calculated Incentives – Savings by Design	14	
	D.	SDGE3223 SW-COM-Deemed Incentives – Commercial Rebates	15	
V.	INDUSTRIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS			
	A.	SDGE3227 SW-IND-Strategic Energy Management Program Description	17	
	B.	SDGE 3229 SW-IND-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res Program Descripti	on 20	
	C.	SDGE3231 SW-IND-Calculated Incentives-Calculated	22	
	D.	SDGE3233 SW-IND-Deemed Incentives Program Description	23	
VI.	AGRICULTURAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS		24	
	A.	SDGE3236 SW-AG-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res	24	
	B.	SDGE3237 SW-AG-Calculated Incentives-Calculated	26	
	C.	SDGE3239 SW-AG-Deemed Incentives	27	
VII.	LOCAL INSTITUTIONAL PARTNERSHIPS		29	
	A.	SDGE3266 LInstP-CA Department of Corrections Partnership	29	
	В.	SDGE3267 LInstP-California Community College Partnership	31	

	C.	SDGE3268 LInstP-UC/CSU/IOU Partnership	34
	D.	SDGE3269 LInstP-State of California/IOU Partnership	38
	E.	SDGE3270 LInstP-University of San Diego (USD) Partnership	40
VIII.	LOCA	AL GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIPS:	41
	A.	SDGE3272 LGP – City of Chula Vista Partnership	41
	В.	SDGE3273 LPG – City of San Diego Partnership	42
	C.	SDGE3274 LGP – County of San Diego Partnership	43
	D.	SDGE3275 LGP – Port of San Diego Partnership	44
	E.	SDGE3276 LPG – SANDAG Partnership	45
	F.	SDGE3278 LPG – Emerging Cities Partnership	46
IX.	Local EMERGING TECHNOLOGIES PROGRAMS		
	A.	SDGE3246 SW-ET – Technology Introduction Support	48
	B.	SDGE3247 SW-ET – Technology Assessment Support	50
	C.	SDGE3248 SW-ET – Technology Development Support	53
X.	FINANCE PROGRAM		
	A.	SDGE3262 SW-FIN – On-Bill Finance	56
XI.	CODES AND STANDARDS PROGRAMS		
	A.	SDGE3251 SW-C&S – Compliance Enhancement	58
	B.	SDGE3252 SW-C&S – Reach Codes	62
	C.	SDGE3253 SW-C&S – Planning & Coordination	67
XII.	LEGACY INTEGRATED DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT (IDSM)		
	Α.	SDGE3261 Local-IDSM-ME&O – Behavioral Programs (EE)	70

XIII.	WOR	KFORC	E EDUCATION & TRAINING (WE&T)	73
	A.	SDGE	3254 SW-WE&T – Integrated Energy Education Training (IEET)	73
	B.	SDGE	3255 SW-WE&T – Career Connections	77
XIV.	OTHE	ER LOC	AL PROGRAMS	78
	A.	SDGE	3226 (3P) SW-COM Direct Install	78
	B.		3280 (3P) Innovative Designs for Energy Efficiency Activities A) 365	80
	C.	SDGE	3322 (3P) – Streamlined Ag Efficiency Program	82
	D.	SDGE	3317 HOPPs Retrocommissioning (RCx)	83
XV.	THIRD-PARTY IMPLEMENTED PROGRAMS			
	A.	SDGE	4001 Single-Family Program	87
	B.	SDGE	4002 Multi-Family Program	87
	C.	SDGE	4003 Small Commercial Program	89
	D.	SDGE	4004 Comprehensive Energy Management Solutions (CEMS) Program	92
	E.	SDGE	4011 K-12 Energy Efficiency Program (KEEP)	95
	F.	SDGE	40012 Federal Energy Program (FEP)	96
XVI.	SW THIRD-PARTY PROGRAMS			
	A.	Statew	vide Codes & Standards Programs	98
		1.	SDGE_SW_CSA_Natl - Codes & Standards Advocacy - National Codes Standards Advocacy, SDGE_SW_CSA_Appl - Codes & Standards Advocacy - State Appliance Standards, and SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg - SW Codes & Standards Advocacy	I
		2.	SDGE_SW_CSA_Natl_PA - Codes & Standards Advocacy - National Codes & Standards Advocacy, SDGE_SW_CSA_Appl_PA - Codes & Standards Advocacy - State Appliance Standards and SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg - SW Codes & Standards Advocacy	98
	B.	SDGE	_SW_HVAC_Up - SW Upstream HVAC Commercial Program	99
	C.	SDGF	SW HVAC Up PA – SW Upstream HVAC Program (Utility)	103

D.	SDGE_SW_PLA- Statewide Plug Load & Appliance	105
E.	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA- Statewide Plug Load & Appliance (Utility)	105
F.	SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas - SW Emerging Technologies - Gas	106
G.	SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas_PA - SW Emerging Technologies - Gas (Utility)	106
Н.	SDGE_SW_MCWH – Statewide Midstream Commercial Water Heating	107
I.	SDGE_SW_MCWH_PA – Statewide Midstream Commercial Water Heating (Utility)	108
J.	SDGE_SW_FS – SW Food Service Point of Sale	108
K.	SDGE_SW_FS_PA – SW Food Service Point of Sale (Utility)	108
L.	SDGE_SW_UL - CA Statewide Lighting Program	109
M.	SDGE_SW_UL_PA - CA Statewide Lighting Program (Utility)	109
N.	SDGE_SW_IP_Colleges – Statewide Higher Education Program	109
O.	SDGE_SW_IP_Colleges – Statewide Higher Education Program	109
P.	SDGE_SW_IP_GOV_DGS – Statewide State of California Partnership Progra	ım 110
Q.	SDGE_SW_IP_GOV_DGS_PA – Statewide State of California Partnership Program (Utility)	110
R.	SDGE_SW_WP - Water/Wastewater Pumping Program	110
S.	SDGE_SW_WP_PA - Water/Wastewater Pumping Program (Utility)	111
T.	SDGE_SW_ETP_Electric – Electric Emerging Technologies Program	111
U.	Statewide New Construction Programs	111
V.	Statewide New Construction Programs (Utility)	112
W.	SDGE_SW_WET_CC - Statewide WE&T Career Connections	113
X.	SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA - Statewide WE&T Career Connections (Utility).	113
Y.	SDGE_SW_WET_Work - Statewide WE&T Career and Workforce Readines	s.113
Z.	SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA – Statewide WE&T Career and Workforce Readiness (Utility)	113

XVII.	OTHE	R ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS	. 114
	A.	SDGE3281 EM&V – Evaluation Measurement and Verification	. 114
	B.	Statewide Finance Pilots Program Description	. 115
	C.	California Analysis Tool for Locational Energy Assessment (CATALENA)	. 117
	E.	Portfolio Operations and Compliance Process Enhancements	. 119

APPENDIX A

APPENDIX B

I. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

2021 proved to be a year of continued collective challenges due to the global COVID-19 pandemic and its economic impact in our region. Notwithstanding these issues, SDG&E made substantial progress delivering energy and bill savings to its residential and non-residential customer base through its comprehensive portfolio of local and statewide Energy Efficiency, Codes and Standards and IDSM programs.

SDG&E's core programs achieved approximately 11.1 MW (65% of 17 MW), 73 GWH (81% of 90 GWH) and 3.1 million therms (141% of 2.2 million therms). Through the combined program efforts of SDG&E's core portfolio and impacts from the Codes & Standards program, SDG&E customers saved approximately 600 gigawatt hours (GWH), 100 megawatts (MW) and 6.7 million therms. The gas and electric savings achieved amidst a global pandemic and its impact on San Diego's economy and customers while also standing up several new Third-Party implemented programs reflects the effort and success of SDG&E's strategies and interventions. The portfolio lifecycle energy savings resulted in a reduction of approximately 148,000 tons of CO2, the equivalent of removing approximately 31 thousand cars from the road. SDG&E's energy efficiency portfolio provided potential customer lifecycle bill savings of approximately \$2.2 billion.

Noteworthy highlights of SDG&E's 2021 programs are:

• In response to the protracted economic impacts of COVID-19 on SDG&E's customers in 2021, SDG&E continued to add measures and increase customer and contractor incentives for achieving installation targets on certain measures within our legacy programs to encourage adoption. SDG&E worked with its Third-Party Implementers to help encourage greater adoption of measures during the economic downturn.

1

Total number of cars was calculated using the Environmental Protection Agency (GHG) calculator at https://www.epa.gov/energy/greenhouse-gas-equivalencies-calculator.

- SDG&E continued with inspections in the virtual environment, reducing delays in project validation. Where appropriate and with customer consent, SDG&E integrated on-site inspections where possible. This allowed customers to receive rebates and incentive payments for completed projects and helped continue the adoption of energy efficiency in SDG&E's territory.
- In the Workforce Education & Training (WE&T) and Codes & Standards (C&S) programs, SDG&E continued to implement all trainings online to align with State and local pandemic protocols restricting in-person gatherings. In 2021, the programs recorded a higher annual participation rate as compared to the previous few years due to the trainings being conducted virtually versus in the classroom, as well as accommodated on-demand training in some instances. Overall participation enrollment in WE&T and C&S trainings combined increased by 13% compared to 2020. Customer satisfaction results for these trainings tracked above 85% for most of the year.
- SDG&E's Behavioral Program Home Energy Report, which was distributed to more than 750,000 of SDG&E residential customers in 2021, assisted residential customers in managing their energy use while living and working from home for much of 2021. The Home Energy Reports messaging continued to focus on COVID-19, work from home energy savings tips and energy efficiency messages and tips.
- In 2021, as the lead utility for Water Energy Nexus (WEN) measure package efforts, SDG&E maintained the Statewide measure package for these measures. SDG&E supported the testing of the WEN 2.0 calculator and began the transition-away from the master measure package to individual WEN measure packages, which will allow PAs to claim WEN embedded energy savings towards PA's energy efficiency goals.
- SDG&E continued to test various strategies for integrating demand response capability with existing energy efficiency activities throughout 2021. Three projects were selected to participate in the program based on audits completed through the Comprehensive Audit Program. One of these projects included the installation of energy efficient lighting and controls, replacement of two Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning (HVAC) units, and installation of a new battery storage unit to offset energy demand during demand response events. The projects were completed in 2021. SDG&E also worked with its new Third-Party Implementers to incorporate Integrated Demand-Side Management (IDSM) into their programs.
- By the end of 2021, SDG&E successfully completed solicitations, filed contract advice letters (ALs) and received approval for two of its Third-Party Implemented programs. SDG&E's signed contracts contribute 51 percent of its 2022 portfolio

budget (73 percent including Assembly Bill (AB) 841 funds)² to Third-Party programs. As a result, several of SDG&E's legacy programs were ramped down in 2021 to accommodate the shift of customers to the respective Third-Party program. In 2021, SDG&E contracted for the following new Third-Party programs:

- o K-12 Program, local
- o Federal Program, local

Overall, through the activities SDG&E pursued in 2021, SDG&E continued to promote and sustain awareness of the benefits of energy efficiency and delivered savings. SDG&E concluded contracting for two local new Third-Party implemented programs and worked extensively with its implementers to develop and integrate new systems, processes, quality assurance and compliance standards to ensure alignment with State and Commission goals and prudent management of ratepayer funds. SDG&E also developed and implemented its own statistically based quality assurance plans that incorporate not only CPUC policy but also quality engineering principles and best practices.

SDG&E continued to focus on designing a comprehensive portfolio and future program solicitations including promoting and incentivizing fuel-substitution measures, to more effectively serve its customers and help them reduce their energy usage and achieve bill savings. Furthermore, SDG&E, as the designated statewide lead for HVAC, HVAC Residential Quality Installation and Quality Maintenance pilot (HVAC QI/QM) and Plug Load & Appliance (PLA) categories. coordinated with the other IOUs to assume responsibility for those statewide measure packages, transitioning from its past role as "measure adopter' to that of "measure developer" responsible for completing measure package updates and developing new measures. SDG&E

D.21-01-004 at 18, states, "Section 1613 makes clear that the SRVEVR and SNPFA programs shall be considered a third-party program for compliance with D.16-08-019."

remains committed to supporting the State's goal of doubling energy efficiency savings by 2030, while prioritizing safety and convenience for its customers, contractors and stakeholders.

II. 2022 ENERGY EFFICIENCY PORTFOLIO OUTLOOK

SDG&E's energy efficiency programs will continue to advance local and state energy savings in 2022. SDG&E's objective is to continue the transition of its programs and offerings to a market-based delivery through the Third-Party Implementer model. 2021 marked the launch of two local and Statewide Third-Party implemented programs in the SDG&E service territory. While the market was refreshed with innovative aspects of Third-Party designed programs, it also experienced protracted ramp-up periods for certain programs in order to identify and incorporate new systems requirements and other compliant operational processes and procedures. In 2022, SDG&E will continue soliciting the market and execute new Third-Party contracts for additional programs, thereby outsourcing an even greater percentage of its portfolio. SDG&E will continue to implement its existing programs while concurrently soliciting and launching new ones and winding down legacy programs once the new market programs are launched.

The launch of the new Third-Party programs has broadened SDG&E's portfolio to reach more customers and provide a greater range of services to a more diverse customer base.

Program Implementers will operate newly implemented programs that offer targeted services designed for specific market sectors. SDG&E has partnered with its Third-Party Implementers to set up processes and procedures that will ensure the success of the programs post-launch, as well as the continued development and optimization of its internal operations to focus on SDG&E's role as Portfolio Administrator. In 2022, SDG&E will continue diligent oversight to ensure implementers are on track to meet their program savings targets, remain cost-effective,

meet contract metrics and overcome challenges through mutual partnership. SDG&E's teams continue to collaborate with the other IOU's teams to ensure that Statewide program protocols related to savings attribution, customer data sharing, funding mechanisms and other program activities are coordinated, and established procedures and processes are followed and enhanced.

In 2021, SDG&E continued its commitment to delivering and supporting the goal set forth by the State of California to double energy efficiency by 2030. To that end, SDG&E is actively engaged with the CPUC to evolve the rolling portfolio business model. In the first quarter of 2022, SDG&E filed its 2024-2031 Business Plan and 4-year Budget Application for 2024-2027. SDG&E leveraged this opportunity to redesign and optimize its energy efficiency portfolio to incorporate new CPUC requirements such as the Market Support and Equity segments and the Total Systems Benefits metric for goal achievement. In addition, SDG&E is committed to:

- Reinforce commitment to **innovation** in customer offerings and technology advancements, including promoting fuel-substitution measures through effective collaboration with 3PIs
- Mobilize end-to-end energy efficiency markets and participants, including OEMs, program implementers, builders, contractors, local governments, Community Choice Aggregators (CCAs), Regional Energy Networks (RENs) and end-user customers.
- Encourage and facilitate **greater outreach and education** to all providers and participants, with special emphasis on facilitating accessibility of programs and offerings to customers and providers in **underserved communities.**
- Employ strategies to help reduce the high cost of certain long-life electric measures and associated customer investments required for **fuel-substitution**.

On September 30, 2020, AB 841 established the School Energy Efficiency Stimulus

Programs, which is comprised of the School Reopening Ventilation and Energy Efficiency

Verification and Repair (SRVEVR) and the School Noncompliant Plumbing Fixture and

Appliance (SCPFA) programs. These programs are being administered by the California Energy

Commission (CEC) and coordinated with the IOU's local programs in their respective service territories for the 2021 – 2023 timeframe. Funding for these programs is generated by energy efficiency 2020-2022 uncommitted unspent program funds and a specified percentage of the difference between the IOUs authorized Business Plan budgets and the approved energy efficiency budget over the program cycle. These program funds are considered Third-Party program funding and as such count towards the IOU's Third-Party program compliance requirements. SDG&E began transferring quarterly program funds to the CEC on April 1, 2021. SDG&E will coordinate its applicable programs with the CEC to provide comprehensive energy efficiency services and support to the schools in its service territory.

The impacts of COVID-19 on San Diego's economy continued to affect customer investments in energy efficiency in 2021. SDG&E is cautiously optimistic about economic recovery in the region in 2022, and is focused on promoting energy efficiency adoption among its customers. SDG&E expects to leverage the ramp-up strategies and tools that are in place and develop new ones to support its customers, contractors and stakeholders.

III. RESIDENTIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3201 SW CALS – Energy Advisor – HEES (UAT)

Program Description

This program is a continuation of the existing Statewide Energy Advisor Program (formerly known as the Home Energy Efficiency Survey-HEES Program) within the residential energy efficiency portfolio. Although the four California IOUs share similar program theories, goals, and design elements, each IOU may implement a unique tool by a different vendor.

In 2021, the Energy Advisor Program continued to help customers understand their energy use through various tools and educational opportunities. The program utilizes behavioral outreach initiatives and interactive tools designed to engage and encourage customers to reduce

their energy consumption through program recommendations, and as warranted, Integrated Demand Side Management (IDSM) opportunities. Additional tools available to customers through the program include usage analysis and household usage data comparison, as well as literature and information on how customers can save money and energy. These tools utilize smart meter data or a customer's self-reported data to provide a detailed overview of how energy is used in their household and what can be done to save energy and money.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, SDG&E promoted the home audit tool exclusively through the contracted vendor associated with the Home Energy Report Program (HER) and leveraged the report recipient list to engage a majority of residential customers. Implemented strategies included:

- Display ads ran in August & September garnering 2,442,012 impressions, 2,046 clicks:
- Social media ran August & September garnering 301,509 impressions, 7,523 clicks;
- Organic Social Media posts (Instagram, Facebook & Twitter) on Feb 10, April 29, June 26, August 2, and November 9;
- Emails 40% open rate;
- Added marketing module on HER digital reports;
- Updated website for better user experience; and
- Included link in Summer Tips emails

Challenges/Changes for 2021

Program year 2021 continued to include widely promoted energy efficiency alerts and online audits available on the HER customer platform to address potential energy usage increases due to COVID-19 restrictions during 2021. SDG&E is continuing to expand participation in the program to assist customers with recommendations on how to manage their energy usage and utilize tips and recommendations.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Marketing efforts noted above resulted in more than 14,996 completed audits and action plans for residential customers, triple the number of completions in 2020. Additionally, the conversion rate for those that began the online audits increased 7% over 2020 with an average of 93%.

B. SDGE3204 SW-CALS – Plug Load and Appliances – POS Rebates Program Description

The Plug Load and Appliances (PLA) – Point of Sale (POS) Subprogram provides midstream rebates to customers, while optimizing the customer experience. This program leverages retailer, distributor, contractor, and manufacturer relationships to offer customers incentives for high-efficiency product purchases. The PLA - POS Subprogram provides rebates at checkout, removing traditional downstream program barriers such as limited impact and cumbersome customer application processes. POS is the main tool used for rebating energy efficient products for SDG&E's residential customers.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, SDG&E's PLA - POS Subprogram continued to work with retailers and distributors to increase customer participation in midstream channels. The Program continued to make store visits and conduct in-store associate training, when safely possible, to ensure that retailers and distributor staff were well versed with the POS process and current offerings. Instore training consisted of meetings with store and/or department management, supervisors and sales associates to review program details and/or updates. PLA - POS signage in stores was updated when program changes occurred as well as when the program realized opportunities for increased customer awareness. When it was not possible to conduct in-store visits due to

COVID-19 safety guidelines, the Program developed other methods of keeping industry partners engaged through email and phone communications.

The program deployed various marketing campaigns to increase customer participation. For each measure category, pool pumps and water heaters, a different marketing effort was utilized. For the pool pump measure, the program deployed paid social and search to promote the pool pump rebate during the summer months. Lastly, SDG&E's heat pump water heater rebate was marketed through a combination of emails and a mailer specifically targeted to SDG&E's electric-only customers. SDG&E's marketing efforts, combined with an outreach campaign to local water heater installation companies, contributed to a notable increase in participation in the fourth quarter of 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

SDG&E filed its Statewide PLA Advice Letter on January 28, 2022 and received approval on May 24, 2022. SDG&E expects the new program to be launched in 2022. To avoid confusion in the market, the PLA-POS program closed on December 31, 2021. All program shutdown activities were completed.

2021 Program Accomplishments

For 2021, the Program removed the smart thermostat measure that was a program measure from 2017-2020. The measures offered in 2021 consisted of pool pumps, gas water heaters and electric heat pump water heaters. In the third quarter, the Program removed the pool pump measure offering due to the measure moving to code.

Late in the first quarter, the Program received consistent updates from pool pump distributors about supply chain limitations and potential challenges to keeping qualifying products stocked due to the pandemic. This caused lower participation than expected as customers were not able to purchase and install qualifying pool pumps as readily as the previous

year. Due to this challenge, the Program was not able to employ as many marketing tactics as forecasted. To address these challenges, the Program focused its efforts on marketing products with high savings such as heat pump water heaters. While electric heat pump water heaters have been historically challenging to promote due to their relatively high cost, the program actively promoted this product amongst residential customers with electric water heating through strategic marketing tactics, such as partnering with A.O. Smith, a heat pump water heater manufacturer, on the deployment of a direct mailer. Through these campaigns, the program was able to more than double the electric heat pump water heater sales from the previous year.

In early 2021, the Program successfully updated rebate submission processes for the distributors offering the pool pump rebate. This improvement provided increased efficiency for the submission processor and encouraged further engagement and participation from the distributors. In 2021, the Program renewed the enrollment of pool pump participating distributors and retailers and enrolled one new distributor to better serve all SDG&E customers. Even with the challenges of COVID-19, a steady stream of sales continued to be submitted each month. More specifically, within the pool pump measure, the Program saw an approximately 11% increase in participation when compared against the first three quarters of 2020. Lastly, the heat pump water heater measure saw approximately a 70% increase in participation from the previous program year. This directly correlated to the various marketing tactics that were employed to spread awareness about the heat pump water heater rebate.

IV. COMMERCIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3217 SW-COM-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res

Program Description

The Comprehensive Audit Program (CAP) is an Integrated Demand-Side Management (IDSM) audit offered to commercial customers. The program provides customers with a comprehensive audit report equivalent to an American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Level 1 or 2 report. SDG&E offers two types of audits: 1) ASHRAE Level 1 audit, which consists of a high-level walkthrough that provides an equipment inventory and high-level payback estimates of identified energy efficient measures; and 2) ASHRAE Level 2, which is a more detailed analysis of selected measures with investment-grade savings and financial calculations and deliverables. The Level 2 audit is geared toward businesses that plan to implement recommended measures within one year of the audit. As an IDSM program, audit scope and reports for both Level 1 and Level 2 audits include energy efficiency, demand response and distributed generation opportunities. Program audits are performed by engineering firms and the audit report delivers valuable insights about how and where energy is being consumed. The program is designed to provide businesses with a roadmap on various actions they can take to reduce their overall energy consumption and effectively reduce operating costs.

Implemented Strategies

CAP had fewer audits performed at customer sites in 2021 compared to the last 2 years. The reduced number of total audits was mainly due to a decrease in ASHRAE Level 1 audits. Customers continued to participate with the ASHRAE Level 2 audits, which are generally more in-depth and costly as compared to Level 1. Vendors and SDG&E personnel continued to bring in qualified leads for the program, and customers were successful in submitting online audit

requests via SDG&E's website portal. Audits were performed for various business types including military, universities, Federal facilities and K-12 schools.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

With the launch of the new Third-Party programs rolling out in 2021, the CAP Commercial sector will no longer offer audits to the Non-Public, Federal and K-12 customers after 12/31/2021. Commercial customer(s) that seek an audit can do so by participating in the new Small or Large Commercial Third-Party programs launched on January 1, 2021, as well as the K-12 program that launched on November 1, 2021, and the Federal program that launched on January 1, 2022. The CAP will continue to service higher education as well as Local Government and Public sector customer(s) until the Third-Party program is launched for these respective sectors.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, SDG&E reviewed three large Public commercial audits that resulted in the customer's participation in SDG&E's rebate or incentive programs. Although SDG&E performed fewer audits in 2021 as compared to the last two years, the program improved the quality of audits as a result of previous customers' direct feedback. Program participants included the military, university, and community college.

B. SDGE3220 SW-COM-Calculated Incentives-Calculated

Program Description

The Calculated Incentives program provides customized incentives for non-residential energy efficiency retrofit projects involving the installation of high efficiency equipment or systems. Incentives are paid based on the energy savings and permanent peak demand reduction above and beyond baseline energy performance, which includes State and federally mandated codes, industry-accepted performance standards or other baseline energy performance standards.

In 2021, the focus of the program moved from commercially classified customers to public sector customers due to the launch of new Third-Party programs serving the Commercial Sector. Projects that included commercial customers that were already in process were completed in 2021.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E continued to offer virtual training for customers and trade professionals to reinforce and improve the knowledge of program participants on various details and requirements of the Calculated Incentives program. The virtual format provided flexibility by allowing external parties to participate in the training anytime. SDG&E also hosted bi-monthly meetings to review the program's project queue, and regularly followed-up with project sponsors and other stakeholders to ensure that projects could be processed and paid for in a timely manner.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

A significant limitation to recruiting new customers and increasing program participation was the partial ramp-down of the Calculated Incentives program due to new commercial Third-Party programs launching in January 2021. As a result, the program remains open to Local Government and Higher Education Public Sector customers only. SDG&E will continue to target eligible customers until the new Third-Party programs fully launch for these customers in 2022. SDG&E will continue to track Commercial Sector projects from installation to Measurement & Verification (M&V) and payment for customers who were contracted prior to December 31, 2021.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to work closely with the CPUC's Custom Project Review (CPR) team to address questions and obtain guidance for existing projects. In 2021, the Calculated Incentives

program completed payments for twenty small local restaurant chain sites that required a oneyear M&V period at post-installation to evaluate energy savings.

C. SDGE3222 SW-COM-Calculated Incentives – Savings by Design Program Description

The Savings by Design (SBD) program served SDG&E's new construction segment. It promoted integrated building design by providing design assistance with energy efficient alternatives and owner incentives to participants who design spaces that perform at least 10% better than what is required in Title 24.

Implemented Strategies

The SBD program was closed to new enrollments in 2021, however, projects that were under contract and completed were inspected and processed for eligible incentive payments. The Statewide SBD team continued to collaborate to help transition the SBD program to be administered as a Statewide new construction program, the California Energy Design Assistance (CEDA) Program. The new Statewide New Construction program began in Q3 2021, thus SDG&E focused on providing close out dates for application submittals and contract agreements.

Additionally, projects in the early phases of planning in 2021 were reviewed and contracted according to program guidelines. Projects currently in the installation phase will be inspected as they are completed throughout 2022 –2024.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

As noted above, the SBD Program was closed to new enrollments throughout 2021, and the new Statewide program was launched for eligible new construction projects. Customers, design firms and account executives were referred to the CEDA Program to determine eligibility and installation guidelines.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to qualify projects through the Systems approach when projects were not eligible for participation through the Whole Building approach. Standard communications were updated to help streamline project processes and ensure customers and design teams were notified of project status.

SDG&E worked with the Statewide SBD team and CPUC on various initiatives to assist with current and future new construction programs, including: (i) drafting project review requirements with the CPUC to ensure all projects are evaluated under consistent guidelines across the IOUs while also meeting CPUC's expectations; (ii) creating the Effective Useful Life (EUL) calculator to easily estimate a weighted project EUL value and be able to compare to the simple payback period, and (iii) determining if a single EUL value could be used across all SBD projects. Additionally, SDG&E revised its internal review workbook to ensure compliance with the new review items and procedures.

D. SDGE3223 SW-COM-Deemed Incentives – Commercial Rebates

Program Description

The Statewide Commercial Deemed Incentives program provides rebates for the installation of new energy efficient equipment. Deemed retrofit measures have prescriptive energy savings and incentive dollars and are intended for projects that have well-defined energy and demand savings estimates.

Implemented Strategies

In the first half of 2021, the Commercial Rebates Program continued with two separate program deliveries: the Instant Lighting Rebates Program, and the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program. The Instant Lighting Rebates Program utilizes a midstream delivery channel and works directly through distributors to buy down the cost of lighting products. The incentive

is passed through to the customer in the form of a discount. SDG&E closed the Instant Lighting Rebate Program on June 30, 2021, due to the launch of the Statewide Lighting Program. Non-lighting products continued to be offered in the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, which utilized a downstream channel. To increase participation within the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, SDG&E provided an incentive to trade professionals that installed certain measures such as industrial pipe insulation, process boilers, and large storage water heaters. The incentive to trade professionals was implemented to help spur project work and implementations for the customers. Additionally, SDG&E increased rebates on non-lighting measures as a limited time offer. The limited time offer marketing strategy was implemented to encourage customers to take full advantage of the increased rebate amounts.

Monthly training for trade professionals, which was moved to a virtual platform to encourage participation in 2020, continued into 2021. Program training provides a high-level overview of program components giving trade professionals the opportunity to participate. The virtual self-paced training courses have been well received.

Challenges/Changes 2022

In 2021, commercial, non-public customers were no longer served through the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program. Commercial Non-Public customers were directed to the new Third-Party Large Commercial Program which greatly decreased participation in this program. Public Sector customers will continue to be targeted through this program until a new program is launched after the solicitation process has been completed.

The Statewide HVAC and the Statewide Food Service programs launched in the third quarter of 2021, resulting in a decrease in customer participation for the non-lighting portion of the Energy Efficiency Business Program.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In response to the medical industry's need to store vaccines due to the COVID-19 pandemic, SDG&E added High Efficiency Ultra Low Temperature Freezers to the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program in 2021. To further facilitate implementation, the rebate amount for the High Efficiency Ultra Low Temperature Freezers was increased in mid-2021.

V. INDUSTRIAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3227 SW-IND-Strategic Energy Management Program Description

The Statewide Industrial Strategic Energy Management (SEM) Program utilizes measurement and verification guidelines developed jointly with the other California IOUs and the CPUC. The SEM Program employs a holistic, whole-facility approach that uses dynamic baseline modeling and Normalized Metered Energy Consumption (NMEC) methodologies to determine savings from all program activities at a facility, including capital projects, behavioral, retro-commissioning and maintenance & operations. There are seven participating sites in SDG&E's SEM Program.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E and its contracted implementer worked closely in 2021 to complete the third year of the SEM Program and continue into the fourth year with all seven participating sites continuing into 2021. Activities included workshops, Cycle 2-Year 1 completion reports, evaluating savings claims, and formulating robust Action Plans. Participants completed a variety of employee engagement activities, including compressed air leak campaigns, idea submission campaigns, and up-to-the-moment display of energy savings by project. The most prominent activities for participants in 2021 were the completion of their energy projects. Key activities completed in 2021 include:

Development and Implementation of Cycle 2 Training Material

- Cycle 2 Treasure Hunt Reports
- Updated Opportunity Registers for each Participant
- Cycle 2-Year 1 Action Plans
- Energy Management Information Systems Assessment
- Integrated Demand-Side Management (IDSM) Education
- Workshop 1b, Save Energy Continuously
- Workshop 2a, Energy Efficiency in Design and Procurement
- Workshop 2b, Employee Competence in Energy Efficiency
- Workshop 3a, Competency Plans and How to Use Them

SDG&E's contracted implementer uses cloud-based SEM software for all participant-facing documents and information related to the SEM program. Participants track their energy models in cumulative-sums and other graphs through this software. An opportunity register is also available to participants, which provides awareness on potential savings, and is within the software, as are shared program documents. Opportunity registers are tied to the SEM software graphs, so that certain activities recorded in the register appear on the graphs, directly linking participants' actions to savings.

The energy management software used in the program includes information on energy savings persistence, which is generally described as "the change in savings throughout the functional life of a given efficiency measure or activity." In fact, all participants identified an energy savings persistence strategy for all completed projects in 2021. The cohort is also using an additional persistence tracking tool, which lays out a calendar with required checks to validate energy savings persistence.

18

Berkeley Lab, Energy Savings Lifetimes and Persistence: Practices, Issues and Data, (May, 2015) available at https://energy.lbl.gov/publications/energy-savings-lifetimes-and.

Five of the seven participants completed the first of four Cycle 2 milestones by February 15, 2021 and received \$1,000 in incentives for each project completed. Milestones required updated production and energy usage data, updated opportunity registers, notes, and persistence strategies on all completed projects.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

At the end of July 2021, the program closed the first year of its second two-year cycle (Cycle 2-1) and stepped into another year of the cycle. With the initiation of Cycle 2, revised Industrial Strategic Energy Management Design and Measurement & Verification Guides were developed for use at the Statewide level. The revised guidelines brought a new set of challenges/changes the program began addressing in September 2021 and will continue to address in 2022. The newer areas of focus have been educating participants on the International Organization of Standardization (ISO) 50001 requirements and practices, implementing Integrated Demand Side Management strategies that bring additional energy savings, and in-turn developing a functional energy management system at each site.

Moving forward, the program plans to leverage involvement from a broader base of the participant's employees, bring critical operations/production personnel on board, and gain greater involvement from cohort members' executive sponsors to achieve additional energy savings.

2021 Program Accomplishments

During the first year of Cycle 2, the participants completed numerous large and complex BRO (Behavioral, Retrofit and Operational) projects. These efforts resulted in kWh and kW savings higher than projected targets. Participants from all seven sites finished the first year of Cycle 2 with many successes, and all seven decided to continue their participation in the program. Additionally, two of the seven participants added additional sites to the program, as

successes from prior years solidified their appreciation for the energy savings benefits that the program delivered to their organizations. Collectively, the seven participants completed 297 projects since the inception of the program, with 88 completed energy projects in 2021 and approximately 120 additional projects in progress.

SDG&E and its implementer also collaborated to create a new incentive and campaign for completing Action Plan items. The campaign, which was designed to encourage friendly peer pressure among sites, resulted in motivating and influencing the completion of Action Plan items that may not have otherwise been completed. As a result, the Action Plans will now be used for each phase rather than yearly (as the Design Guide calls for). This collaborative effort resulted in greater participation for all seven of SDG&E's cohort members and encouraged all Industrial SEM programs across the State to consider taking the same approach at leveraging the Action Plans in phases rather than annually.

B. SDGE 3229 SW-IND-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res Program Description

The Comprehensive Audit Program is an Integrated Demand-Side Management (IDSM) audit offered to Industrial customers. The program provides customers with a comprehensive audit report equivalent to an American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Level 1 or 2 report. SDG&E offers two types of audits: 1) ASHRAE Level 1 audit, which consists of a high-level walkthrough that provides an equipment inventory and high-level payback estimates of the identified energy efficient measures; and 2) ASHRAE Level 2, which is a more detailed analysis of selected measures with investment-grade savings and financial calculations and deliverables. The Level 2 audit is geared toward businesses that plan to implement recommended measures within one year of the audit. As an IDSM program, audit scope and reports for both Level 1 and Level 2 audits include energy efficiency, demand

response and distributed generation opportunities. These audits are performed by engineering firms and the audit report delivers information about how and where energy is being consumed. The program is designed to provide businesses with a roadmap on various actions they can take to reduce their overall energy consumption and effectively reduce operating costs.

Implemented Strategies

The Comprehensive Audit Program for the Industrial Segment had an increase in program participation in 2021. The projects serviced in 2021 were larger Level 2 audits. Audits were performed for various business types including manufacturing facilities, water treatment plants, military facilities, and research and development facilities. The Level 2 audits resulted in the customer receiving a report that includes a complete inventory of their energy consuming equipment. SDG&E also performed Level 2 audits for customers that had previously completed a Level 1 audit. The Level 2 audit was performed based on specific measures from the Level 1 report, allowing for a comprehensive evaluation. In 2021, SDG&E completed approximately fifteen audits in this Sector.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

Historically, there have been more audit requests than available funding. To mitigate this issue, SDG&E ensured the program has a comprehensive mix of customer types to include both previous and new participants. In previous years, the program had four participating contractors performing the industrial audits, however in 2022 there will be two participating contractors performing audits for this sector.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, the quality of SDG&E's delivered audits increased with additional feedback provided through a corrective action plan for the engineering firms servicing SDG&E customers.

C. SDGE3231 SW-IND-Calculated Incentives-Calculated

Program Description

The Calculated Incentives program provides customized incentives for non-residential energy efficiency retrofit projects involving the installation of high efficiency equipment or systems. Incentives are paid based on the energy savings and permanent peak demand reduction above and beyond baseline energy performance, which include State and federally mandated codes, industry-accepted performance standards or other baseline energy performance standards.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E continued to offer virtual training for customers and trade professionals to reinforce and improve the knowledge of program participants on the various details and requirements of the program. The virtual format allowed external parties to participate in the training anytime. SDG&E also hosted bi-monthly meetings to review the program's project queue and regularly followed-up with project sponsors and other stakeholders to ensure projects could be processed and paid in a timely manner.

In addition, SDG&E conducted a joint targeted marketing campaign with the CAP program that targeted all Industrial customers and promoted extensive energy audits. Customers could use audit findings to apply for financial incentives offered by the program to retrofit existing equipment or install new high-efficiency equipment. SDG&E also worked on an Industry Standard Practice (ISP) study in 2021 for Extrusion Machine DC Motor Drives to explore new opportunities or measures for customers. If the study determines that a measure can be offered, it will provide additional opportunities for SDG&E customers that may have otherwise been ineligible to participate.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

SDG&E will continue to actively market the program, emphasizing process and program improvements, and will engage with new and existing qualifying Industrial customers to encourage adoption until a new Third-Party program serving the Industrial Sector launches.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to work closely with the CPUC's Custom Project Review (CPR) team to address questions and obtain guidance for existing projects. SDG&E successfully paid incentives and closed two pending projects in 2021. SDG&E enrolled one new customer in the program in 2021 and will continue to shepherd existing Industrial projects through the program.

D. SDGE3233 SW-IND-Deemed Incentives Program Description

The Statewide Industrial Deemed Incentives program provides rebates for installing new energy efficient equipment. Deemed retrofit measures have prescriptive energy savings and incentive dollars and are intended for projects that have well-defined energy and demand savings estimates.

Implemented Strategies

In the first half of 2021, the Industrial Rebates Program continued with two separate program components: (i) the Instant Lighting Rebates Program for lighting products, and (ii) the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program for non-lighting products. The Instant Lighting Rebates Program utilizes a midstream delivery channel and works directly through distributors to buy down the cost of lighting products. The incentive is passed through to the customer in the form of a discount. SDG&E closed the Instant Lighting Rebate Program on June 30, 2021 due to the launch of the new Statewide Lighting Program. All other non-lighting products continued to be offered in the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, which utilized a downstream channel where customers purchase the product and apply for a rebate.

Monthly training for trade professionals also continued in 2021 and moved to virtual self-paced trainings, allowing trainings to continue in 2021 during the COVID-19 pandemic. These trainings provided a high-level overview of the programs and gave trade professionals the opportunity to work directly with program advisors. The virtual self-paced trainings have been well received.

Challenges/Changes 2021

In 2021, the Instant Lighting Rebates program closed at the end of the second quarter 2021 due to the launch of the Statewide Lighting program. The Statewide Industrial Deemed Incentives program saw a significant reduction in non-lighting measures participation partially due to the COVID-19 pandemic. The Statewide Third-Party HVAC and the Statewide Third-Party Food Service programs also launched in the third quarter of 2021 and the non-lighting portion of the Energy Efficiency Business Program tremendously experienced a decrease in customer participation.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program achieved higher savings than expected in 2021. Implemented projects were less in number (due to lighting being discontinued but, the projects yielded higher savings than in years past.

VI. AGRICULTURAL ENERGY EFFICIENCY PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3236 SW-AG-Customer Services – Audits Non-Res

Program Description

The Comprehensive Audit Program is an Integrated Demand-Side Management (IDSM) audit offered to agricultural customers. The program produces and provides customers with a comprehensive audit report equivalent to an American Society of Heating, Refrigerating and Air-Conditioning Engineers (ASHRAE) Level 1 or 2 report. SDG&E offers two types of audits: (i)

ASHRAE Level 1 audit, which consists of a high-level walkthrough that provides an equipment inventory and high-level payback estimates of the identified energy efficient measures; and (ii) ASHRAE Level 2, which is a more detailed analysis of selected measures with investment-grade savings and financial calculations and deliverables. The Level 2 audit is geared toward businesses that plan to implement recommended measures within one year of the audit. As an IDSM program, audit scope and reports for both Level 1 and Level 2 audits include energy efficiency, demand response and distributed generation opportunities. These audits are performed by vetted engineering firms and the audit report delivers valuable insights about how and where energy is being consumed. The program is designed to provide businesses with a roadmap on various actions they can take to reduce their overall energy consumption and effectively reduce operating costs.

Implemented Strategies

The Comprehensive Audit Program agricultural segment worked with the Energy Efficiency Business Incentives program to release a joint marketing campaign. Participation in the program continues to be low as SDG&E's agricultural segment is generally small and hard to reach. The program continues to work closely with SDG&E's account executives to identify potential customers that would be good candidates for the Comprehensive Audit Program.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

SDG&E's Agricultural Sector makes up approximately 1.4% of the portfolio. The sector is mostly comprised of small farms dealing with several business challenges unique to the smaller agriculture customer, including coping with the State's continuing water shortage. In previous years, the program had three participating contractors performing the Agricultural audits. With the new Third-Party Agricultural program launching in the third quarter of 2022, the

Comprehensive Audit Program Agricultural sector will stop accepting audit applications on June 1, 2022, to give the contractor enough time to perform any outstanding audits and be able to invoice within the given time to shut down the sector.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The agricultural sector continues to be a challenge for SDG&E due to the limited customers in this segment. Historically, this program has had low participation and has continued to diminish over the years. In 2021, approximately five agricultural audits were completed.

B. SDGE3237 SW-AG-Calculated Incentives-Calculated

Program Description

The Calculated Incentives program provides customized incentives for non-residential energy efficiency retrofit projects involving the installation of high efficiency equipment or systems. Incentives are paid based on the energy savings and permanent peak demand reduction beyond baseline energy performance, which includes State and federally mandated codes, and industry-accepted performance standards or other baseline energy performance standards.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E continued to offer training sessions for customers and trade professionals to reinforce and improve the knowledge of program participants on the various details and requirements of the program. The virtual format allowed external parties to participate in the training at a time convenient for them.

In addition, SDG&E conducted a joint targeted marketing campaign with the CAP, targeting all Agricultural customers and promoting extensive energy audits. Customers could use audit findings to apply for financial incentives offered by this program to retrofit existing equipment or install new high-efficiency equipment that saves energy.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

To increase program awareness, SDG&E will actively market the program, emphasizing process and program improvements, and will engage with new and existing qualifying Agricultural customers to encourage them to take advantage of the program's offerings until a new Third-Party program serving the Agricultural Sector launches.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to work closely with the CPUC's CPR team to address questions and obtain guidance for existing projects. SDG&E successfully paid incentives and closed out all existing Agricultural projects in 2021. The program also received one new pre-application that SDG&E will continue to shepherd through the program.

C. SDGE3239 SW-AG-Deemed Incentives

Program Description

The Statewide Agricultural Deemed Incentives program provides rebates for the installation of new energy efficiency equipment. Deemed retrofit measures have prescribed energy savings and incentive amounts and are generally intended for projects that have well-defined energy and demand savings estimates.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, the Agricultural Rebates Program continued with two separate program components: (i) the Instant Lighting Rebates Program, for lighting products, and (ii) the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program for non-lighting products.

The Instant Lighting Rebates Program utilizes a midstream delivery channel and works directly through distributors to buy down the cost of lighting products. The incentive is passed through to the customer in the form of a discount. This year, SDG&E increased rebates for popular lighting measures to create more attractive options to encourage customers to participate.

All other non-lighting products continued to be offered in the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, which utilized a downstream channel. In order to increase participation within the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, SDG&E provided an incentive to trade professionals that installed certain measures such as industrial pipe insulation, process boilers, and large storage water heaters. The incentive to trade professionals was implemented to help spur project implementation for customers. Additionally, SDG&E increased rebates on non-lighting measures as a limited time offer. The limited time offer marketing strategy was implemented to create a sense of urgency to encourage customers to take full advantage of increased rebate amounts.

Monthly training for trade professionals also continued in 2021 and moved to a virtual self-pace training thus allowing trainings to continue in 2021 during the COVID-19 pandemic. These trainings provide a high-level overview of the programs and give trade professionals the opportunity to work directly with program advisors. The virtual self-paced trainings have been well received.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to be a challenge throughout 2021, resulting in a drastic reduction in participation in both lighting and non-lighting measures. In 2021, the Instant Lighting Rebate local program closed at the end of the second quarter due to the Statewide lighting program launching.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In the Energy Efficiency Business Rebates Program, SDG&E added the following measures: hand wrap machines, medium temperature vertical refrigeration cases, and a variety of heating, ventilation, and air conditioning measures such as fan controls, occupancy sensors, and

variable speed drives. The addition of these measures created more diverse offerings for SDG&E's customers.

VII. LOCAL INSTITUTIONAL PARTNERSHIPS

A. SDGE3266 LInstP-CA Department of Corrections Partnership

Program Description

The California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation (CDCR) partnership is a customized Statewide energy efficiency partnership program that accomplishes immediate, long-term energy and peak demand savings and establishes a permanent framework for sustainable, long-term comprehensive energy management programs at CDCR institutions served by California's four IOUs. The information and data for the following implemented strategies and program accomplishments were provided by the Partner in order to review the program's performance in 2021.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021 CDCR continued implementing retrofit projects and performing Investment Grade Audits. The IOUs and the Program Administration Manager (PAM) worked with the Department of Corrections to support development of new projects, ensuring that they reached maximum efficiency and incentive potential. To support more project development, the IOUs prioritized projects using energy audits done on a subset of CDCR's facilities, resulting in the next wave of projects. CDCR continued to use over half of the total energy consumed by State agencies under the Governor's executive authority. Though CDCR's budget for implementing energy efficiency projects is minimal, through the CDCR-IOU energy efficiency partnership, program efficiency projects can be identified and implemented using the IOU core and On Bill Financing Programs. On Bill Financing and Golden State Financial Market Place (GS \$mart)

have been the primary source of funding. In select instances, On Bill Financing is supplemented by the State's Special Repairs Project funding.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in several implementation challenges, including limited access to facilities, project slowdowns, and agency budget shortages. While these challenges will continue into 2022, the Partnership continues to look for creative ways to encourage and support participation. Scalable program changes will bridge the gap in 2022 until the rollout of the new Statewide Third-Party program administered by PG&E that same year.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership continued the effort to ensure new construction projects, natural gassaving, and water conservation projects were clearly tracked and proactively managed. The Partnership also provided special training to the current Energy Service Company (ESCO) pool that included program rules, policies and procedures required to successfully implement a project through the Program. Executive Team meetings occur quarterly and involve senior leadership at the CA Department of Corrections, sustainability managers from sites across the State, and IOU management to identify new opportunities, manage project pipelines, and proactively address any challenges the program may have faced.

CDCR's ESCO pool rebid occurred in the second quarter of 2021. Anticipating and planning for ESCO pool rebids plays a critical role in maintaining project momentum and successful project completion. The Partnership hosted several trainings to onboard the new ESCO pool ensuring they are sufficiently acquainted with all program processes and procedures and setting them up to deliver successful and cost-effective projects.

The Partnership provided ongoing outreach and education to institutions, ESCOs and stakeholders and continues to improve program processes and procedures. CDCR has only one facility in SDG&E's service territory, the Richard J. Donovan Correctional Facility (RJD), and there were no energy savings projects at that facility in 2021. Based on the master schedule and prioritization of energy efficiency audits, additional RJD projects remain as opportunities in the queue for 2022.

B. SDGE3267 LInstP-California Community College Partnership Program Description

The California Community Colleges (CCC) Partnership is a unique, Statewide program intended to achieve immediate and long-term energy savings and peak demand reduction within California's higher education system. The program was established in previous program cycles for sustainable, comprehensive energy management at campuses served by California's four IOUs.

The Partnership has a hierarchical management structure to ensure successful implementation that includes an Executive Team and Management Team comprised of senior leadership at the CCC Chancellor's office, sustainability managers from CCC districts, and IOU management on an ongoing basis.

The teams meet quarterly to discuss program management, overall program status and policy issues. The CCC Partnership also focuses heavily on outreach efforts in several areas, including: (i) development of a comprehensive list of technologies, project types, and offerings to be used by team members during campus visits to help generate project ideas; (ii) evaluation of new project technologies for suitability in the California Community College market; and (iii) planning and participation in CCC conferences and regional Campus Forums.

Implemented Strategies

The Partnership participated in virtual quarterly Campus Forums in both Northern and Southern California, serving as a venue for districts to share successes and strategies to address the shared challenges faced for facilities management and energy efficiency. The Partnership team presented at these Forums, providing time-sensitive updates on modern technologies, information on program implementation, and direct assistance to districts in attendance.

The Management Team participated in several virtual CCC conferences such as the Community College Facilities Coalition conference (CCFC) and the Association of College Business Officers (ACBO) conference to reach a diverse audience of facilities, business officers, administration, and board members. In addition, the team participated in Northern and Southern California regional virtual energy meetings organized by the Community Colleges (NorCal Summit and Southern California Facilities Officers), targeted towards campus facilities and energy managers. Finally, outreach team members conducted virtual campus meetings with Facilities and Operations and Maintenance staff to review project opportunities and manage project development efforts both on site at college campuses and while participating in the virtual ACBO Facilities Task Force quarterly meetings.

In addition to the virtual quarterly Management Team meetings to discuss overall program status, initiatives and policy issues, the team actively provided updates specific and respective to their own IOU territory comparing actual savings to goals. These reports were reviewed by both Management Team members and IOU management on an ongoing basis.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The COVID-19 pandemic created challenges in 2021 for all parties involved in the Partnership. The Partners adapted to virtual operations and project delays while in-person

operations were suspended. In addition, Proposition 39 funding ended, which created a significant slowdown Statewide for the identification of new energy efficiency projects. In 2021, all efforts for CCC districts were focused on the complete utilization of any available funding. However, significant funding increases for energy projects are expected in 2022-23 due to increases in the Scheduled Maintenance and Special Repairs Program (SMSR). The Governor approved \$511 million in his budget for 2021 for SMSR and has added a proposed additional \$387.6 million to the 2022-23 budget. The CCC Chancellor's Office is advocating for energy efficiency and sustainability projects using SMSR funding to repair or replace existing HVAC equipment.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership provided extensive outreach and technical support through virtual formats (Zoom, Go To Meetings, and Microsoft Teams) to the districts within the CCC system in support of their efforts to identify, develop, and implement projects funded through the SMSR Program. The IOUs worked closely with the Chancellor's Office to develop resources and infrastructure for IOU Programs that could be leveraged with CCC Programs to create a mechanism to support California Community College Energy Efficiency Projects Statewide. Typical project types proposed were replacement of inefficient lighting with LED lighting, HVAC, controls, and Retro-commissioning (RCx).

In addition, the Partnership identified and prioritized the needs of the CCC districts, which were organized in a matrix by Program, Communication, and Management focused. The needs were met or addressed through providing Outreach Management support to districts as requested. Accomplishments toward meeting these needs primarily included the addition of IOU resources and offerings to the Partnership website for CCC districts to access. The website

features energy savings incentive and rebate programs such as Direct Install and other turnkey programs, Electric Vehicle charging and other clean transportation incentives, Building Operator Certification and other workforce education and training classes. The website also hosted presentation slides and recordings of past meetings and workshops, funding opportunities provided by the CEC, and the SEI Climate Corps Fellowship program for districts to access and utilize. The Partnership's first quarterly e-newsletter was published and distributed in October of 2021. The PDF format highlighted links to these web resources, upcoming events, and 2020 award recipients. The newsletter also encouraged districts to utilize the Partnership's assistance with developing a queue of sustainability projects as well as with setting up benchmarking and reporting for their campuses' energy use intensity using the Energy Star Portfolio Manager tools.

C. SDGE3268 LInstP-UC/CSU/IOU Partnership

Program Description

The UC/CSU/Utility Energy Efficiency Partnership is a unique, Statewide program which includes California's four IOUs, Pacific Gas and Electric (PG&E), Southern California Edison (SCE), Southern California Gas Company (SCG), and SDG&E, in partnership with the University of California (UC) and the California State University (CSU). The program generates energy savings through the identification and implementation of energy efficiency projects. The Partnership consists of three main project types: retrofit, commissioning, and new construction. Since its establishment in 2004, the Partnership has provided approximately 69 MW demand reduction and delivered approximately 508 million kWh/yr and 27 million therms/yr in energy savings Statewide.

Implemented Strategies

The program has a hierarchical management structure to ensure successful implementation. The Management Team meets monthly to conduct business at the operational level and the Executive Team meets on an as needed basis to discuss overall program status and policy issues. In addition to representatives from each Utility, the University of California Office of the President and California State University Chancellor's Office each have members on both program management teams. Inclusion of all Partnership stakeholders at the various management levels provides the UC and CSU campuses with support in their efforts to implement energy efficiency projects. A Program Administrative Manager (PAM) organizes and facilitates team activities, works with individual stakeholders, actively tracks project savings and schedule data in a web-based tracking tool and creates regular reports to show overall status of the program and forecasts relative to goals.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The COVID-19 pandemic continued to create challenges in 2021 for all parties involved in the Partnership. Projects remained on hold as in-person operations continued to be suspended. The pandemic created additional strain on campus budgets preventing the development and implementation of new and ongoing projects. Additionally, utilities and campuses faced engineering challenges to address the pandemic as a non-routine event.

In 2021, the Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (LADWP) was unable to renew their contracting mechanism that enabled their participation in the UC/CSU Partnership. LADWP projects with executed agreements continued implementation, however, without a Partnership contract in place, campuses in LADWP territory were unable to apply for new projects through the Partnership.

Some campuses stopped pursuing certain projects due to incentive cuts resulting from non-utility supply hourly analysis. In addition, current CPUC policy requiring energy savings above code (Title 24) and industry standard practice baselines is not always aligned with determining project financial impact to support project financing or translating savings to carbon reductions to meet university carbon goals. Monitoring Based Commissioning (MBCx) offerings at the various IOUs were discontinued in 2016, limiting project opportunities for UC and CSU, leaving a significant gap for what was a practical and popular delivery method for campuses. Although new site normalized metered energy consumption (NMEC) projects were initiated in 2021, SDG&E does not expect to return to the historical volume of MBCx. Additionally, many custom measures were moved to deemed, decreasing the claimable energy savings and incentives received by universities. In 2019, the Partnership also experienced a significant budget cut, which resulted in the discontinuation of the Partnership Training and Education Program, which remains discontinued.

The Partnership closed out its final Saving by Design projects in the first quarter of 2021, as the program transitioned to a new Statewide Third-Party program. As a result of this transition, new construction projects are no longer eligible for incentives through the UC/CSU Partnership Program.

The Partnership focused widely on efforts surrounding NMEC in compliance with Assembly Bill 802. SCE and SCG developed new whole building High Opportunity Project or Program (HOPPs) projects at two California State Universities, in parallel to the Partnership. SDG&E also completed projects through their HOPPS RCx program at a local Medical Center. PG&E continued developing and implementing NMEC projects at several UC campuses, to include at least one UC who is investigating CalTRACK methodologies for NMEC.

In addition to NMEC projects, UC and CSU focused on addressing barriers to energy efficiency, developing new contracting mechanisms, looking into opportunities for financing projects via OBF, and continuing work on a CEC Grant to develop a Master Enabling Agreement for energy efficiency at UC and CSU campuses. SCE's Clean Energy Optimization Pilot (CEOP) began at several campuses in 2019 and continued through 2021, after a hiatus caused by the pandemic. CEOP and the Partnership are mutually exclusive, so Partnership activities at CEOP campuses were discontinued.

The Third-Party solicitation process for the Statewide Higher Education program progressed as planned during 2021. A request for proposals was released in May 2021 and contract negotiations began during the fourth quarter of 2021. The UC/CSU Partnership is estimated to transition to a Third-Party program during the third quarter of 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Administrative

- As the transition to the new Third-Party programs has taken longer than anticipated, the Partnership team looked at ways the current Partnership could be reinvigorated and incorporate current priorities to enhance its value over its final years. The following five priority areas were identified as offering the most value to UC and CSU: (i) Carbon Reduction; (ii) Meter-Based Savings Methodologies; (iii) Financing; (iv) Resiliency; and (v) Human Resources. The team discussed potential opportunities, as well as monitoring progress of ongoing initiatives, in these priority areas.
- O UC and CSU were granted funding from the State to address deferred maintenance projects. The Partnership Teams worked to identify project opportunities with energy efficiency components that the Partnership could help prioritize and met with campuses to assist in further developing potential projects.
- The PAM continued developing enhancements to the project tracking database and public-facing dashboard.

Projects

- O Significant volume of energy efficiency projects delivered in 2021 and underway for future years.
- Completed 72 Retrofit, MBCx and New Construction projects at 15 different UC and CSU campuses (inclusive of UC Med Centers).

Overall, the UC/CSU/Utility Partnership made progress towards the 2021 program cycle goals, totaling over 3,501 kW (~458% of goal), 24.6 million kWh (~373% of goal), approximately 956,000 therms (~256% of goal), and providing over \$6.3 million in incentives (~298% of goal) across the State.

D. SDGE3269 LInstP-State of California/IOU Partnership

Program Description

The State of California Partnership is a Statewide program designed to achieve immediate and long-term energy and peak demand savings and establish a permanent framework for sustainable, comprehensive energy management programs at State facilities served by the IOUs. This is accomplished by collaborating with the Department of General Services (DGS), coordinating with the DGS established pool of energy service companies (ESCOs) to help with implementation of comprehensive facility energy efficiency projects and working with individual State agencies on technology-specific projects. The DGS leverages Department of Finance Energy \$mart program, along with the IOUs' OBF, incentives and rebates to provide financing for project opportunities. The information and data for the following implemented strategies and program accomplishments were provided by DGS to review the program's performance in 2021.

Implemented Strategies

The IOUs continued to work with the State to prioritize agencies that may benefit from ESCO work, both for large and pooled small buildings. The Partnership has provided extensive outreach and technical support to Agencies including California Highway Patrol (CHP),

Department of Motor Vehicles (DMV), Department of Parks and Recreation (DPR), the Judicial Council of California (JCC), and the Department of Food and Agriculture (DFA).

In response to the Public Safety Power Shutoffs, the Partnership coordinated on building resiliency for sites in the most critical zones. Outreach to these agencies through the Sustainable Buildings Working Group (SBWG) meeting and through other avenues continued to yield significant energy savings and continues to create a robust queue of future projects.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The COVID-19 pandemic resulted in several implementation challenges including limited access to facilities and project slowdowns. The Partnership continues to look for creative ways to encourage and support participation. With the statewide program being stood up to service this group, this program was closed at the end of 2021.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, the IOUs and DGS leveraged findings from a working group organized in 2019 to address Savings by Design (SBD) participation barriers for DGS buildings. Working group efforts led to the development of several process documents to help better understand the DGS procurement process. The Partnership continues to track an SBD project currently in progress to use as a test case for implementing solutions developed by the working group.

The IOUs continued attending the Sustainable Building Working Group meetings, a State of California working group that consists of agency sustainability managers, with the task of planning and implementing all aspects of B-18-12, the Governor's Executive Order, which addresses GHG emissions from State-owned buildings, among other things. The IOUs play a supporting role to ensure that agency needs regarding energy data for benchmarking are met. The IOUs continue to use the working group for agency outreach.

Through training and outreach activities, the State/IOU Partnership increased awareness and understanding of Statewide program offerings to additional State agencies. DGS completed projects in SDG&E's territory in 2021 that included a project at a DGS owned facility. Based on continued agency outreach, the State/IOU Partnership anticipates additional opportunities for DGS projects in 2021.

E. SDGE3270 LInstP-University of San Diego (USD) Partnership Program Description

The USD Partnership program was designed to create a more sustainable campus through the adoption and implementation of a robust Climate Action Plan (CAP) anchored in energy efficiency to reduce Green House Gas (GHG) emissions. USD created policies and procedures that encourage and facilitate long-term energy savings for the university through implementation of its Sustainability Strategic Plan and CAP. Through outreach to students, staff, and alumni with an emphasis on behavior modification, the program educated campus audiences in identifying and adopting energy saving practices not only on campus, but also in their careers, communities and homes.

Implemented Strategies

The Local Institutional Partnership (LIP) Agreement between the University of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities included compiling and providing the final invoice and final reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience copies of records covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The Local Institutional Partnership contract ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new programs to serve the public sector under the Third-Party Implementer model for 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed, and the program ended March 31, 2021.

VIII. LOCAL GOVERNMENT PARTNERSHIPS:

A. SDGE3272 LGP – City of Chula Vista Partnership

Program Description

The goal of the Chula Vista Local Government Partnership (LGP) was to improve community and municipal energy efficiency by integrating education and outreach across City departments. The program components included municipal facility efficiency improvements, strengthening building energy codes and inspections, energy engineering, community-based energy conservation education, facility evaluations and financing assistance. During the program life, the partnership served 265,000 residents and 13,000 businesses within the City of Chula Vista, while also supporting neighboring South Bay cities' energy efficiency efforts as part of the South Bay Energy Action Collaborative (SoBEAC).

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between the City of Chula Vista and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities included compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report of 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience

copies of records covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP contract ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new local government programs under the Third-Party Implementer model in 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed, and the program ended March 31, 2021.

B. SDGE3273 LPG – City of San Diego Partnership

Program Description

The goal of the City of San Diego Energy Efficiency Partnership was to increase the City's role as an environmental steward, a leader in best EE practices and to support the City's Climate Action Plan (CAP). The program areas focused on improving municipal building energy efficiency, codes and standards, community education, the San Diego Regional Energy Partnership (SDREP), and overall management of the partnership activities. While this was a non-resource program, savings resulted from the City's LGP activities and were captured in other programs offered by SDG&E.

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between the City of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities included compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience copies

of records covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP contracts ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new local government programs under the Third-Party Implementer model in 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed, and the program ended March 31, 2021

C. SDGE3274 LGP – County of San Diego Partnership

Program Description

The County of San Diego LGP delivered net energy savings, peak demand savings and sustained energy efficiency through the implementation of both internal and external education and outreach programs, community-based implementation programs and projects at County facilities. The Partnership assisted the County of San Diego with its Strategic Energy Plan implementation, including Reducing Energy Usage and Cost; Reducing Embodied Energy in Potable Water Use; Green Buildings and Infrastructure; and Monitoring and Communication and Education.

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between the County of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP Agreement between the County of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. In 2022, SDG&E will solicit new local government programs under the Third-Party Implementer model.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The LGP Agreement between the County of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities included compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience copies of records covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

D. SDGE3275 LGP – Port of San Diego Partnership

Program Description

The goal of the Port of San Diego's (Port) and SDG&E's Energy Efficiency Partnership (Partnership) was to increase the Port's role in the region as an environmental champion and progress achievement of the Port's Climate Action Plan (CAP) greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction goals. These goals were accomplished by working to maximize energy efficiency on Port tidelands and providing Port tenants, staff, and the public the necessary tools to make decisions that continued to promote energy efficiency. Work done through the Partnership was concentrated within the Port's five-member cities: San Diego, Coronado, National City, Chula Vista, and Imperial Beach.

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between the Port of San Diego and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities would include compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience copies

of records covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP contracts ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new local government programs under the Third-Party Implementer model in 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed and the program ended March 31, 2021.

E. SDGE3276 LPG – SANDAG Partnership

Program Description

The San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG) Partnership served as the regional planning agency for the 18 cities and County governments of the San Diego Region. The SANDAG LGP functioned to deliver energy efficiency services, climate action planning services, and related assistance to the 16 member cities that did not have direct LGP agreements with SDG&E. The Program also allowed SANDAG to integrate energy efficiency and greenhouse gas (GHG) reduction practices into its internal operations as part of the projects it developed for the San Diego region.

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between SANDAG and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partner prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past December 31, 2020. Those activities would include compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results, and transmission of convenience copies of records

covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP contracts ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new local government programs under the Third-Party implementer model in 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed and the program ended March 31, 2021.

F. SDGE3278 LPG – Emerging Cities Partnership

Program Description

The Emerging Cities Program (ECP) was part of the LGP umbrella and was intended to provide local governments additional resources to support and build capacity in engaging in energy efficiency activities that achieved deep, comprehensive energy savings. The ECP collaborated with SANDAG's Energy Roadmap Program to provide energy assistance to public entities with energy and sustainability projects and community outreach.

Additionally, the ECP funded activities supporting municipal codes and standards, education and outreach, implementation of Climate Action Plans (CAP) and Energy Action Plans (EAP), greenhouse (GHG) reduction plans and other sustainable projects.

Implemented Strategies

The LGP Agreement between The Emerging Program and SDG&E ended in Q4 of 2020. Through discussions with the partners prior to year end, it was determined that additional time would be granted to allow the partnership to close-out activities that would continue past March 31, 2020. Those activities would include compiling and providing the final invoice, reporting for 2020, CPUC Annual Report 2020 Results and transmission of convenience copies of records

covering the 5-year agreements. Final invoicing of those activities was submitted by March 31, 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The LGP contracts ended in 2021. SDG&E is soliciting new local government programs under the third-party implementer model in 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Partnership close-out activities were completed and the program ended March 31, 2021.

IX. LOCAL EMERGING TECHNOLOGIES PROGRAMS

The Statewide Emerging Technologies Program (ETP) supports the IOUs' energy efficiency (EE) programs in their achievement of aggressive objectives through three subprograms:

- The Technology Introduction subprogram supports efforts to introduce technologies to the market by exposing end users to applications of emerging technologies in real-world settings, and by using third-party projects to deploy technologies, on a limited scale, in the market.
- The Technology Assessment subprogram identifies and assesses the performance of emerging EE technologies and solutions that may be offered to customers with an incentive.
- The Technology Development Support subprogram promotes efforts to increase technology supply by educating technology developers about technical and programmatic requirements for rebated (incentivized) measures.

ETP uses several tactics to achieve the objectives of these subprograms. Some of the key tactics are described below, but each tactic may be used to achieve any of the subprogram objectives, and this list is not comprehensive.

A. SDGE3246 SW-ET – Technology Introduction Support

Program Description

The Technology Introduction Support (TIS) subprogram supports the introduction of new technologies to the market, on a limited scale, through several activities including Scaled Field Placement (SFP) projects, Demonstration and Showcase (D&S) projects, and market and behavioral studies.

SFP projects place measures at several customer sites as a key step toward gaining market traction and feedback. Typically, these measures have already undergone an assessment or similar evaluation to reduce risk of failure. Monitoring activities on each scaled field placement are determined as appropriate.

D&S projects are designed to provide key stakeholders the opportunity to "kick the tires" on proven combinations of measures that advance Zero Net Energy (ZNE) goals. D&S projects introduce measures at a systems level to stakeholders, whether the general public or a targeted audience, in real-world settings, thus creating broad public and technical community exposure and increased market knowledge.

Market and behavioral studies are designed to perform targeted research on customer behavior, customer decision-making, and market behavior to gain a qualitative and quantitative understanding of customer perceptions, customer acceptance of new measures, and market readiness and potential for new measures.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E's ETP implemented several strategies in pursuit of its goals for the 2021 TIS subprogram. The ETP scanned and screened for nascent and emerging technologies from a wide variety of sources – CEC EPIC (Electric Program Investment Charge) Program, Emerging Technologies Coordinating Council (ETCC) Basecamp, industry groups, Electric Power

Research Institute (EPRI), E Source, CEE (Consortium for Energy Efficiency), GTI (Gas Technology Institute) – while coordinating closely with other SW-ET members and internal EE Program advisors and engineering support staff to prioritize measures and technologies suitable for TIS projects.

SDG&E conducted TIS projects in support of measure development by implementing SFP and D&S projects in actual field conditions, while also performing primary or secondary market research, as necessary, to gain market insights on technologies.

The ETP scanned, screened, and prioritized TIS project ideas in coordination with the energy efficiency programs as well as Statewide ETCC partners. The results of these activities included primary and secondary market research to gain further insight into new technologies and their potential in SDG&E's service territory.

However, due to ETP's impending transition to the third-party implementation model in 2021 (ETP-EE-Gas) and 2022 (ETP-EE-Electric), the TIS Program focus for 2021 was to complete all previously committed projects.

Throughout 2021, the SDG&E ETP participated in key industry advisory committees (ETCC, CEE, EPRI, E Source), virtual summits and conferences, open forums, and webinars to share research results with stakeholders and interested public audiences. Completed project reports were published on the ETCC website.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The new Statewide ETP-Gas program administered by SCG was launched in November 2021. The new Statewide ETP-Electric Third-Party program administered by SCE will begin implementation in May, 2022. As part of the transition to these new Statewide programs, SDG&E does not plan to initiate new ET projects. SDG&E will instead focus on completing the

five remaining active projects initiated in previous years and funded with the budget approved through 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Under the TIS subprogram, SDG&E completed one of the four projects it had in flight in 2021. The TIS project completed in 2021 was an evaluation of a residential IDSM behavioral technology.

The three remaining projects under the TIS subprogram include: (i) a study of a City of San Diego public library zero-net energy (ZNE) project, (ii) an alternative refrigerants project focusing on low-greenhouse warming potential (low-GWP) refrigerants and (iii) a residential HVAC quality installation and quality maintenance project evaluating the behavioral response to alerts from a residential HVAC fault detection and diagnostics (FDD) device. All three projects are expected to be completed in 2022.

B. SDGE3247 SW-ET – Technology Assessment Support

Program Description

Through its Technology Assessment (TA) element, a historical core function providing critical support to EE programs, the ETP evaluates the performance claims of EE measures that are new to the market, or underutilized for a given application, for overall effectiveness in reducing energy consumption and peak demand. A key objective of these assessments is the adoption of new measures into SDG&E's portfolio. Data from different sources may be used to support assessment findings, including *in situ* testing (conducted at customer or other field sites), laboratory testing, or paper studies. In addition to other findings, assessments typically generate some of the data that EE incentive programs can use to construct a Work Paper for each measure, estimating energy and demand savings over the life of the measure.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, SDG&E implemented several strategies to accomplish the goals of the TA subprogram. Through the California Energy Commission's Electric Program Investment Charge (CEC EPIC) program and in partnership with a low-income building owner, SDG&E continued its low-income, multifamily residential whole-building demonstration project with Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI). This project is in support of advancing State goals and understanding of the implications of decarbonization on low-income MF buildings, owners and tenants (i.e., overall retrofit project costs, grid interactions, existing infrastructures, tenant needs, etc.).

In collaboration with IOU and non-IOU partners, SDG&E scanned a wide variety of sources for assessment candidates. These sources include the ETCC website idea submission portal, ideas presented to SDG&E by past and current consultants, product vendors and manufacturers, and from past pilot studies. SDG&E identified, screened, and prioritized these technologies or strategies for inclusion to the program's TA studies. For the five TA projects that were completed in 2021, SDG&E's ETP produced reports describing TA results, conclusions, and recommendations and engaged various EE program stakeholders to conduct the technology transfer of the studies' findings. For example, the results from the gas steam table project were transferred to EE program stakeholders and recommended for technology adoption as a deemed rebate measure.

Additionally, in partnership with its IOU and non-IOU counterparts, SDG&E's ETP coordinated intake ideas and assessments, and shared technology information through the virtual ET Summit 2021 and coordinated webinars with the ETCC on various topics for residential, commercial, industrial, and agricultural sectors.

Due to ETP's impending transition to the third-party implementation model in early 2022, the primary focus for the 2021 TA Program was to complete all committed projects.

Despite the ETP continuing to scan, screen, and prioritize TA candidate projects and technologies in coordination with the energy efficiency programs as well as Statewide ETCC partners, no new projects under the TA subprogram were initiated in 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The new Statewide ETP-Gas program administered by SCG was launched in November 2021. The new Statewide ETP-Electric third-party program administered by SCE is expected to begin implementation in early 2022. As part of the transition to these new Statewide programs, SDG&E does not plan to initiate new ET projects in 2022. SDG&E will instead focus on completing the six remaining active projects initiated in previous years and funded with a budget approved through 2022. The six remaining projects under the TAS subprogram include: (i) a study on a San Diego Unified School District public elementary school zero-net energy (ZNE) project; (ii) a study on a compressor-less residential air conditioning technology; (iii) a plug load control system technology lab study; (iv) a CEC EPIC project on the development and field testing of advanced heat pumps; (v) a CEC EPIC project on multi-family heat pump water heating; and (vi) a project investigating pathways to decarbonization in the low-income multi-family residential market. The first three projects listed are expected to be completed in the first quarter of 2022, while the three latter projects are expected to reach their completion by the end of 2023.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E's TA Program completed four previously initiated projects: (i) EPRI Micro Brewery Energy Savings Opportunities; (ii) High Efficiency Steam Tables (co-funded with

SoCalGas); (iii) EPRI Data Center Collaborative; and (iv) a food simulating sensor medium for use in walk-in refrigeration applications. The High Efficiency Steam Tables study was recommended for transfer to a rebate program. Completed project reports were published to the ETCC website for public sharing and reference.

SDG&E collaborated with IOU and non-IOU partners in scanning a wide variety of sources for assessment candidates, coordinating with ETCC members on intake ideas and assessments, and shared technology information through the 2021 ET Summit. SDG&E coordinated and collaborated with ETCC and CEC on multiple webinars, focusing on various topics for the residential, commercial, industrial, and agricultural sectors.

C. SDGE3248 SW-ET – Technology Development Support

Program Description

The Technology Development Support (TDS) subprogram provides assistance to private industry in developing or improving technologies. Although product development – the process of taking an early-stage technology or concept and transforming it into a saleable or marketable product – is the domain of private industry, there are opportunities where IOUs are well-qualified, or in a strong position, to undertake targeted, cost-effective activities supporting private industry product development efforts. This support decreases innovators' uncertainties and allows SDG&E opportunities to influence the new technologies as they are developed.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, SDG&E implemented several strategies to accomplish the goals of the TDS subprogram. SDG&E's ETP collaborated directly with industry actors and partners as well as innovators from universities and other research institutions, such as the Western Cooling Efficiency Center (WCEC), the California Lighting Technology Center (CLTC), the California Plug-Load Center (CalPlug), and the Electric Power Research Institute (EPRI) to provide

targeted education, connection, technical and advisory support, and guidance for technology development.

SDG&E continued to support early-stage companies through its SW ETP membership in the California Institute of Technology (Caltech)-managed Rocket Fund program. The program provides entrepreneurial education and competitive funding to help accelerate university originated technologies from lab to product prototype ready for customer field testing. In collaboration with the ETCC and the other ET market actors, the program also continued ongoing business relationships with investors interested in funding cost-effective EE technologies.

SDG&E also continued ongoing business relationships with investors interested in funding cost-effective EE technologies. Due to ETP's impending transition to the Third-Party Implementation model in 2022, the primary focus for the TDS Program in 2021 was to continue to implement and complete all outstanding committed projects. While the ETP continued its mandate to scan, screen, and prioritize candidate projects and technologies, SDG&E did not initiate any new projects under the TDS Program in 2021.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The new Statewide ETP-Gas program administered by SCG was launched in November 2021. The new Statewide ETP-Electric Third-Party program administered by SCE is expected to begin implementation in early 2022. As part of the transition to new Statewide programs, SDG&E does not plan to initiate new ET projects. SDG&E will instead focus on completing the last remaining active project initiated in previous years and funded with a budget approved through 2022.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to collaborate with innovators from universities and other research institutions to maintain ongoing business relationships with investors interested in funding cost-effective EE technologies. The Statewide ET team coordinated on four webinars with the CEC's EPIC and building technologies team.

SDG&E is finalizing its last active TDS project, an LED Container Growing Evaluation at the Salk Institute.

ETP Activities

In addition to its program activities, SDG&E's ETP engaged in several additional activities in 2021.

In collaboration with ETCC leadership and partners, the Statewide ETP program successfully conducted another virtual ET Summit in 2021, which attracted 320 registrants and 195 unique attendees over the course of two days in mid-November.

In addition to the ET Summit, SDG&E's ETP coordinated with its SW ETP and ETCC partners, with CEC participation and leadership, to successfully conduct four webinars in 2021, attracting between 82 and 120 attendees per event. The wide-ranging topics included session titles like: How Smart Can Homes Get?, HVAC & Water Heating Solutions, Low-Carbon Food Processing and New Refrigerants.

The SW ETP coordinated with the CEC EPIC Building Technologies team on the technology transfer process, developing a technology transfer form that embodies custom measure data requirements to help assist EPIC program contractors and staff communicate the measure development process with IOUs.

Taking into account and including broad stakeholder input, the SW ETP completed the electric Technology Priority Maps (TPMs) Statewide updates and posted the document at https://ca-etp.com/tpm.

The SW ETP continued to enhance and update the ETCC website to facilitate project activity searches. Finally, working with the SW ETP team, SDG&E collaborated and contributed comments on the two-stage (RFA and RFP) ETP-Electric solicitation.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The Statewide ET-Gas Program led by SCG was launched in November 2021. The Statewide ET-Electric program led by SCE is scheduled to begin its transition to the Statewide third-party implementation model in early 2022. Once the SW structure takes full effect, ET projects will be selected and implemented as Technology Focused Pilots (TFPs) on a SW scale, guided by the Technology Priority Maps (TPMs).

X. FINANCE PROGRAM

A. SDGE3262 SW-FIN – On-Bill Finance

Program Description

The On-Bill Financing (OBF) Program is SDG&E's interest-free, unsecured finance offering designed to facilitate the purchase and installation of comprehensive qualified energy efficiency and demand response measures for non-residential customers, including multifamily property owners or management companies, who might not otherwise install EE measures, primarily due to capital constraints. Approved customers who install qualified equipment are eligible to receive a full rebate or incentive by participating in SDG&E programs and financing for the project cost balance. Customer loans are repaid through a fixed monthly installment repaid through the customer's utility bill.

Implemented Strategies

OBF coordinates with assigned account executives, partnership programs and third-party programs to support financing of approved measures and projects. Staff works closely with assigned customer accounts by providing outreach and participating in seminars, tradeshows, periodic meetings and special projects. Financing programs also enable SDG&E to provide alternative options for customers who may have financial constraints to install energy efficiency projects. The OBF trainings offer a two-way open communication channel between trade professionals and SDG&E's OBF Program staff.

Since its inception in 2006, SDG&E's OBF program has funded about 1,640 loans totaling approximately \$69 million as of year-end 2021. Although SDG&E has seen a reduction in projects generally, SDG&E anticipates that there will be an uptake in participation due to the launch of the new Third-Party programs. SDG&E continues to implement a customer cap to ensure that funding remains available for more customers.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

Project Payback and Eligibility requirements for business projects to qualify continue to be a challenge for some customers. The payback tends to be much longer than the 15-year maximum required for business projects to qualify. SDG&E will continue to review protocol to ensure that the correct policies are in place while allowing the maximum number of qualified customers to participate.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E's OBF Program continues to be a practical and efficient means for customers to install energy efficiency measures they may not otherwise be able to afford. The program provides monthly trade professional training on the OBF process and requirements. The 2021

default rate for OBF was 0.46%. Projects that were facilitated by an OBF loan enabled savings of approximately 1,331,279 kWh, 55.7 kW and 2,558 therms.

XI. CODES AND STANDARDS PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3251 SW-C&S – Compliance Enhancement

Program Description

The Compliance Enhancement (CE) subprogram supports increased compliance with the adopted Building Energy Efficiency Codes and the Appliance Standards. Compliance enhancement and improvement activities complement advocacy work by maximizing verified, persistent savings from C&S activities. The CE subprogram targets market actors throughout the entire compliance chain, providing education, outreach, technical support, and resources to improve compliance with both building and appliance energy standards.

Implemented Strategies

Throughout 2021, the CE subprogram continued to employ a systematic approach to enacting behavior change throughout the building and appliance efficiency supply chains. Using a three-pronged performance improvement approach, SDG&E's CE subprogram team addressed the essential elements of behavior change, including:

- Training to increase awareness and motivation and to provide the skills needed;
- Outreach to increase awareness and motivation; and
- Tools and resources to empower people to take the desired action.

The work accomplished in each area reflects specifically what key market actors told the CE subprogram they want and need in order to improve compliance on building and appliance standards. These tools were designed and completed in close collaboration with, and approval by, the CEC staff.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The current SDG&E CE subprogram has been successful in reaching a broad audience of builders, developers, engineers, contractors, building inspectors, plans examiners, building officials, architects, program managers, Certified Energy Analysts (CEA), and multiple additional market actors involved in the construction of homes and buildings. As the future of construction and retrofits evolves to meet California's climate, decarbonization and Zero Net Energy (ZNE) goals, there will be an opportunity for additional stakeholders to be educated in a changing construction landscape. The SDG&E CE subprogram will be ready to adapt to the changing demands as the California Building and Appliance Standards become more stringent between now and when California must meet key milestones in 2030 related to Senate Bill (SB) 350 (CEC's Doubling Energy Efficiency Savings) and ZNE⁴ for multifamily, mixed-use buildings, and commercial new construction and retrofits goals.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the jointly funded and administered EnergyCodeAceTM (website for code enforcement-related resources) has maintained some of the trainings on the virtual platform and in hybrid (virtual/in person) learning environments upon request from several stakeholder groups in the SDG&E service area. In coordination with the other California IOUs, SDG&E facilitated delivery of 145 virtual classes to 3,050 students with 439 students attending from SDG&E's service area. Statewide, EnergyCodeAce achieved a 27% knowledge swing and 97% satisfaction rate after being evaluated. Additionally, EnergyCodeAce gained more than 5,000 views on the program's YouTube channel featuring topics such as

_

CPUC, CA Energy Efficiency Strategic Plan (January 2011 Updated) at Section 1 – Page 6, "Big Bold Energy Efficiency Strategies" *see* State Goal 2, "All new commercial construction in California will be zero net energy by 2030", available at https://www.cpuc.ca.gov/-/media/cpuc-website/files/legacyfiles/c/5303-caenergyefficiencystrategicplan-jan2011.pdf.

building modeling demonstrations, permit technician checklists, annotated compliance forms, and pool pump efficiency trainings for installers. The number of EnergyCodeAce subscribers climbed to over 15,000 and the number of website visits increased by 27% over 2020.

Due to changes to in-person conferences and trade shows caused by COVID-19, EnergyCodeAce teams increased emphasis on providing targeted online outreach and was able to attend several industry conferences. Further, using trainings, tools, and other resources targeted specifically to organizational needs, SDG&E's Compliance Enhancement subprogram team strengthened strategic partnerships with key industry organizations and stakeholders, including: the American Institute of Architects California, California Building Officials, California Association of Building Energy Consultants, Building Industry Association of San Diego, San Diego chapter of the Association of Space Heating, Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Society, San Diego chapter of the American Society of Plumbing Engineers, US Green Building Council San Diego, San Diego Regional Climate Collaborative, and local jurisdiction staff (building officials, plans examiners, building inspectors, and permit technicians) in order to provide their members and stakeholders. In order to draw more people into classes, EnergyCodeAce launched a new series of 30–90-minute live webinars called "Code Breakers" designed to bring critical Energy Code information to industry organization chapters. The initial "Code Breakers" topics were selected to help support decarbonization and encourage the move toward all-electric buildings, including photovoltaics and battery storage, nonresidential mechanical systems, single family all electric, multifamily all electric, nonresidential all electric, and accessory dwelling units.

At the local level, the CE program has increased its local outreach to market to stakeholders by developing strategies to directly contact specific contractors, retailers,

distributors, manufacturers, engineers, building departments, trade associations, and others to increase their access to trainings, tools, and resources. The team made 485 phone calls and sent emails to 437 individual market actors in the San Diego region. Also, at a local level in coordination with the SDGE3252 – Reach Codes and SDGE3253 Planning & Coordination subprograms, the CE subprogram developed new strategies to educate multiple market actors on compliance strategies and activities for Title 24, Title 20, reach codes, building decarbonization, and ZNE beginning in 2021.

The CE team conducted a needs assessment to gain input from a broad swath of CE market actors regarding all EnergyCodeAce offerings in 2021. From the feedback from the needs assessment, the IOU CE team continued strengthening the EnergyCodeAce brand and website by moving to a new look and feel that embodies a sense of hope, ease, and trust, all while encouraging code practitioners to "Comply with Me." The CEC team responded to users' requests for a more powerful, accurate search function, redesigned the EnergyCodeAce.com navigation bar and developed new page templates that proved to increase wayfinding during user testing. Half of the more than 65,000 visits to the Tools Ace pages in 2021 went to the Virtual Compliance Assistant (VCA), where compliance forms can be completed, verified for compliance, and downloaded for inclusion in construction documents. The IOU CE team worked with the CEC and focus groups to expand the functionality of the VCA. Going forward, installers will be able to import the information from a nonresidential project's certificate of compliance to the project's nonresidential certificate of installation form and use the VCA to verify when substitutions that may be made in the field do or do not comply with the aspermitted project. The Reference Ace also proved to be a valuable resource for people who want to quickly access official Title 24, Part 6 and Title 20 language and supporting documents.

The CE subprogram continued providing a library of useful resources including checklists for plans examiners and building inspectors, detailed application guides for various project types, and fact and trigger sheets. A recent analysis of website downloads shows sharp increases in the number of EnergyCodeAce Resource downloads between March and September of 2021 when the announcement of the new 2022 Title 24 codes and standards were approved by the CEC's Commissioners. Compliance improvement subject matter experts (SME):

- Continued supporting CASE (Codes and Standards Enhancement) report authors and the Title 24, Part 6 advocacy team with 2022 CASE work by providing implementers' point of view.
- Reviewed 27 CASE reports for clarity and enforceability.
- Worked with the CASE authors and the CEC to develop new 2022 Title 24, Part 6
 Multifamily Chapter of the CEC's Compliance Manuals by providing project
 examples.

B. SDGE3252 SW-C&S – Reach Codes

Program Description

In addition to state and national building codes, the C&S Program provides technical support to local governments that wish to adopt local energy ordinances (reach codes) that exceed Statewide Title 24 minimum EE requirements for new buildings, additions, or alterations. Reach Code (RC) program support for local governments includes research and analysis to establish performance levels and cost effectiveness relative to Title 24 by climate zone, drafting model ordinance templates to encourage regional consistency, assistance for completing and expediting the application process required for approval by the CEC, and supporting implementation once effective.

Implemented Strategies

Many local jurisdictions have established goals within their Climate Action Plans (CAPs) to reduce energy use and GHG emissions from buildings through adopting and implementing

local energy ordinances. Given the changing policy and funding priorities at the state and federal levels, cities and counties are experiencing an increased sense of urgency for local action to meet the statewide goals. This has translated to a greater interest in reach codes as a path to achieve goals. As reducing GHG emissions is the highest priority, there is a shift in focus from solely reducing energy use to targeting energy use reductions associated with carbon emissions. This shift has resulted in an increased level of interest in all-electric designs both at the State and local level.

The 2019 Energy Code includes an all-electric baseline for low rise residential new construction, allowing all-electric designs to comply with and exceed the Energy Code. Changes to the State code created a path for local jurisdictions to accelerate emissions reductions in new construction using one or a combination of the following options applied by building use type:

- Electric Preferred: requires mixed fuel designs to exceed the code and all-electric designs to comply with code.
- Electric-ready: requires mixed fuel designs to install conduit and or/wiring to enable future conversion to electric equipment; or
- All-electric: restricts new construction to all-electric designs only.

Some SDG&E local jurisdictions have approved all electric reach codes and measure-based reach codes, such as energy efficiency retrofits, commercial benchmarking, solar hot water heating, heat pump water heating, or requiring PV systems on nonresidential projects. In addition, many jurisdictions adopted reach codes accelerating the requirements for installing electric vehicle infrastructure and electric vehicle service equipment (EVSE) in new buildings.

For technical support of local jurisdictions, the RC subprogram presented costeffectiveness studies, consulted on options and opportunities, created a checklist for permit applicants, and reviewed and made recommendations on proposed ordinance structure, triggers and language. For implementation solutions, SDG&E has created specific trainings, tools and resources for multiple jurisdictions.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

In 2021, the SDG&E RC subprogram continued to evolve as the demand for reach codes increased across California driven by jurisdictions looking to reach Climate Action Plan goals through progressive reach codes, and as California looks to meet the 2030 SB 350 (doubling of Energy Efficiency goal) and 2030 ZNE (Zero Net Energy) goals for commercial new construction through innovative ways. Reach codes will be a common path to meet these demands, and the SDG&E RC subprogram will need to innovate to assist jurisdictions and market actors to adapt to this changing reach code and climate action planning landscape. In 2022, the RC subprogram will scale up efforts to deliver more trainings, tools and resources to a growing number of jurisdictions looking to pursue reach codes beyond 2021.

2021 Program Accomplishments

When the 2019 Energy Code became effective on January 1, 2021, multiple jurisdictions showed interest in pursuing reach codes. Throughout 2021, work to support the jurisdictions pursuing reach codes included analysis and report development, technical support, reach code resource accessibility improvements, and other activities. RC program activities fall into two main categories: 1) Direct technical support – including cost-effectiveness studies, model language, and implementation resources, and the Cost-effectiveness Explorer Tool, and 2) Resources, Communications and Events – including News Briefs, Frontrunners, conferences, and webinars.

Direct Technical Support

<u>Cost-effectiveness Studies</u>: The IOUs shared resources to complete six new cost-effectiveness studies in 2021: High-rise Multifamily New Construction, Detached ADUs, Single Family Residential Retrofits and Electrification, Large Offices, and Battery Storage in Single Family Homes. The program began work on three studies including: Restaurants (including Commercial Kitchen Equipment), Multifamily Retrofits and Electrification, and Nonresidential Retrofits and Electrification, all expected to be released in Q1 2022.

Many jurisdictions relied upon the IOU cost-effectiveness studies during the reach code adoption process. Even when an ordinance is not structured to amend the Energy Code and there is no legal requirement to document cost-effectiveness, the studies provide critical information regarding costs, energy savings and emissions reductions that enable jurisdictions and communities to make informed policy decisions. Approved local ordinances may be found on the LocalEnergyCodes.com and Energy Commission websites.^{5.}

Supporting Documents: In addition to developing new cost-effectiveness reports, the RC program, independently and in collaboration with other organizations, supported reach code adoption by creating supplemental support documents. Beginning from a common core helps to support consistent code language across jurisdictions with similar objectives. Supporting documents completed in 2021 included: Model Ordinance Language, Compliance Checklists, Reach Codes training, Reach Code Fact Sheets, Reach Code Letters to participants, CEC Cover Letters, Reach Code Options and a Reach Codes User Guide.

[.]

⁵ CEC, Local Ordinance Exceeding the 2019 Energy Code available at https://www.energy.ca.gov/programs-and-topics/programs/building-energy-efficiency-standards/2019-building-energy-efficiency-3.

Cost-effectiveness Explorer: The Cost Effectiveness Explorer simplifies the process for jurisdiction staff, allowing them to easily select and view only their jurisdiction-specific, relevant results for specific policy options of interest. The Reach Code Program continued developing and expanding the Cost Effectiveness Explorer included the following additions in 2021: 1) Existing housing data, 2) Customized results display, 3) User ability to modify assumptions and 4) Tracking tools to continually improve user experience. The new "Flexible Path" allows users to set target performance specifications based on the potential cost-effective savings.

Resources, Communications and Events

LocalEnergyCodes.com Website Update:

Local interest in reach codes has continued to accelerate throughout 2021, fueled by the desire to decarbonize the building sector. To support improved outreach efforts and remain a trusted resource in this growing area, the Reach Codes Program continues to update the RC program website. Throughout the year, interest in the site grew approximately 8%, from 397 to 429 subscribers.

The Local Ordinance Map on the website is an interactive map of CA that allows users to search geographically or by Reach Code Path. At the individual jurisdiction level, the map provides a summary of the ordinance scope and requirements, and users may download the ordinance and the staff report presented at the public adoption meeting.

In addition to maintaining stakeholder engagement through the website, the team continued publishing the "Reach Codes News Brief" monthly newsletter throughout the year. The News Brief offers insight into the rapidly evolving reach code landscape and highlights "Frontrunner" cities that are leading the way. The program published Five Frontrunner articles that described the RC efforts of cities around the State, which were featured on the website's

home page carousel of articles. The 2021 Frontrunner articles were downloaded 685 times.⁶ The Reach Codes team continues to develop its social media presence and maintains a Twitter account with two to three weekly posts.

The RC Program presented and participated in several conferences and held two technical webinars in 2021 including two Bay Area Regional Network (BayREN) events, two California Association of Building Energy Consultants (CABEC) events, two California Water Energy Partnership (CalWEP) events, and the 2021 California Climate and Energy Collaborative (CCEC). All events were held remotely. The Reach Code program hosted monthly reach code coordination meetings attended by local jurisdictions, regional organizations including RENs, CCAs and staff from CEC and CARB. The Reach Code program hosted two webinars: 1) "Battery Storage for Single Family Homes Cost-Effectiveness Analysis" and 2) "Tackling Residential Retrofits."

C. SDGE3253 SW-C&S – Planning & Coordination

Program Description

The planning element of this subprogram includes long-term planning and scenario analyses, modeling of impacts from potential C&S program activities relative to California policy goals and incentive programs, development of business and implementation plans, responses to CPUC and other data requests, updating the incremental measure costs for C&S measures, and maintenance of a C&S savings database consistent with evaluation protocols.

The coordination element includes internal and external harmonization with other groups. Internal activities have traditionally included collaboration with several departments: a) incentive, training, and demand response programs; b) policy, regulatory, and corporate affairs;

67

_

California Reach Codes, 2021 Frontrunner Articles, available at https://www.localenergycodes.com/content/newsletters#frontrunners.

and c) emerging technology and product teams. More recently, as building codes have begun to incorporate distributed generation, electric vehicles and batteries, coordination has expanded to strategy integration, distributed generation programs, clean transportation and others involved in grid management.

Implemented Strategies

The integrated Planning and Coordination (PC) subprogram approach of the planning and coordination elements requires managing perspectives, relationships, and expectations of multiple market actors. Codes and Standards impact the entire State and most building types, occupancy categories, and related technologies. The PC subprogram requires collaboration with the following stakeholders who either influence or implement codes and standards for buildings and appliances: a) CPUC, CEC, CARB, b) other IOUs, municipal utilities, and utilities in other States, c) national advocates such as National Resources Defense Council (NRDC), Northwest Energy Efficiency Alliance (NEEA), Sierra Club, American Council for Energy-Efficient Economy (ACEEE), Earthjustice, National Consumer Law Center, Consumer Federation of America, d) representatives of various manufacturing companies and industry groups such as Association of Home Appliance Manufacturers (AHAM), National Electric Manufacturers Association (NEMA), American Heating and Refrigeration Institute (AHRI), e) water utilities and local governments, and f) other parts of the compliance improvement supply chain such as building inspectors, Title 24 consultants, Contractor State Licensing Board (CSLB), and others.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The planning and coordination activities require a strong ability to develop, manage and deliver codes and standards strategies to meet the ZNE (Zero Net Energy) goals in the future years. This subprogram will continue to adapt as more market actors look to the building and

appliance standards to meet California climate goals. These planning and coordination activities will continue to become more important as more stakeholders and market actors begin to drive the innovation needed to deliver aggressive climate and emission reduction goals.

2021 Program Accomplishments

With the absence of a formal ZNE subprogram, the C&S Planning and Coordination subprogram has taken a lead role for coordinating the various EE and non-EE aspects necessary to effectively support customers and the building industry to meet the State's ZNE goals. The ZNE effort is not limited to Title 24, but it supports the California Department of General Services' ZNE goals, and the design and construction industry's efforts to meet the various ZNE goals.

The PC program presented two ZNE webinars in 2021: "Rethinking Efficiency in Multifamily Water Heating" with 48 attendees and "Designing with Communities, not for Communities: Equity in ZNE" with 39 attendees.

The PC program created multiple ZNE market resources to move the construction market toward ZNE, GHG and climate goals including:

- Developed four "Action Bulletin" newsletters that profile key ZNE and decarbonization activities across California;
- Created three ZNE Factsheets including: "ZNE Frequently Asked Questions", "ZNE for Architects and Engineers" and "ZNE for Real Estate Professionals";
- Created two ZNE Case Studies for the San Diego "Ocean Discovery Institute" and the County of San Diego's "Borrego Springs Library" which are two key ZNE buildings in SDG&E Service Territory; and
- Created the "ZNE Project Guide" to assist market actors in pursuing ZNE construction practices.

In response to a request from CARB and Energy Division, the PC program supported the development of proposals to update the electric vehicle infrastructure and electric vehicle supply

equipment (EVSE) requirements in CALGreen (Title 24, Part 11) using the CASE report methodology, including a cost/benefit analysis. The PC team coordinated with clean transportation team members within SDG&E and with staff from SCE and PG&E, developed cost models and supporting information on expanding requirements for electric vehicle infrastructure and EVSE in multifamily and non-residential new construction scenarios for light, medium and heavy-duty vehicles at the close of the year. This IOU analysis was filed to support CARB's request for enhancements to the electric vehicle infrastructure and EVSE requirements in CALGreen (Title 24, Part 11) to the California Building Standards Commission (BSC) and California's Housing and Community Development (HCD). The Planning & Coordination program also coordinated research and market analysis for a presentation to the CEC, BSC and HCD leadership team on the potential for integrating "embodied carbon" into the 2025 or 2028 Title 24, Part 2, 2, 5, 6 and 11.

XII. LEGACY INTEGRATED DEMAND SIDE MANAGEMENT (IDSM)

A. SDGE3261 Local-IDSM-ME&O – Behavioral Programs (EE)

Program Description

The purpose of the Local-IDSM-ME&O Behavioral (or Home Energy Report (HER)) program is to increase customer awareness of their energy use and motivate them to take actions, which can include usage-based or equipment-based changes in behaviors, as well as increased participation in existing and future energy efficiency or demand response programs.

This program leverages comparative energy use reports delivered to residential customers by U.S. Mail, email, web portal, or any combination of the three channels, to achieve greater customer awareness and energy savings. The information provided may include the following:

A normative comparison contextualizing a household's energy use against that of a set of "neighbors" with similar attributes.

- A personal comparison showing the household its energy use over time.
- Energy efficiency and demand response recommendations comprised of tips and program promotions.

This program is also leveraged to deliver integrated energy efficiency and demand response program offers to the participating customers. Traditional economic models are based on using price and information to drive rational choice, yet customers are still not acting to adopt energy efficiency and demand response activities when they can save money. The theory underlying comparative energy usage programs is that by providing customers information about their behavior through a comparison of their household's energy use to that of similar households, along with relevant tips and offers, customers will modify behaviors and undertake actions and/or make energy efficient product purchases that result in energy savings. This program helps address the barrier that prevents customers from acting even when it makes economic sense through the use of behavioral components such as feedback, social approval and goal setting.

Implemented Strategies

The HER program averaged approximately 700,000 residential recipients in 2021. Program results include electricity and natural gas savings and serve as an entry point to additional services, including an online audit.

- 525k participants in Behavioral Demand Response (BDR) pilot.
- Web Portal Enhancements to improve customer experience.
 - Enhanced Home Energy Checkup webpage to include Advanced Disaggregation insights
 - Account Center for managing communication preferences
 - Bill Comparison updates
 - Customer Portal Data Browser with Cost Insights

- Gas AMI integration to support Dual-Fuel High Bill Alert experience.
- Home Energy Report (HER) 3.0 pilot completion and full HER 3.0 experience launch.
- Pool pump, CARE, and PSPS messaging.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

Changes for 2021 included a Behavioral Demand Response offering to customers to enable them to take steps to reduce their use during days with expected high demand. Also, migrating to the new utility customer information system (CIS) presented minor challenges in Q1, which led to gaps in interval billing, however, through testing and quality assurance protocols, problems were resolved, and customers only experienced a minor delay in their HER reports.

In 2022, SDG&E's HER will include Solar and EV customers; a customer population that was excluded in the past. This change will not only grow the population of the HER program, but should increase savings, provide more awareness to customers of their energy use, and make for a better customer experience.

Program Accomplishments

During the 2021 program year, the number of Home Energy Report recipients reached more than 700,000 and maintained a very low opt out rate. Electronic report open rates reached 62%, a 12% increase over 2020. beating the national average.

More than 21,500 residential customers logged into the portal to view offerings including usage, complete the home energy checkup, and/or to view similar home comparisons.

XIII. WORKFORCE EDUCATION & TRAINING (WE&T)

A. SDGE3254 SW-WE&T – Integrated Energy Education Training (IEET) Program Description

The Workforce, Education & Training (WE&T) IEET Subprogram focuses on skills and market development trainings and education. IEET is composed of specific market sectors including commercial and residential sectors. There are two components to IEET; Technical Upskill and Core Energy Education Collaboration (CEEC). Technical Upskill provides training and education courses to promote industry trends and developments for advancing energy efficiency as a professional discipline. Technical Upskill is tailored towards people in a job/career, seeking energy-focused upskilling. CEEC is an initiative to reach training and educational organizations with the goal of forming strategic partnerships to reach a broader range of the workforce. SDG&E collaborates with various partners to infuse energy efficiency curriculum or add it as a stand-alone option, to promote the advancement of energy efficiency as a professional discipline. CEEC is for people on a chosen educational track towards a job/career or re-training for those who have identified an energy career path.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E's WE&T program offers certification trainings and certificate programs through exam prep workshops. The Building Science Principles, Building Operator Certification, North American Technician for Excellence, Certified Energy Manager, and the Home Energy Rating System are examples of exam prep trainings that were offered in 2021.

SDG&E offered Home Energy Rating System certification courses to home performance professionals that provided an overview of the California Home Energy Rating System (HERS) Program. Students received an overview of the virtual Field Verification, and Diagnostic Testing Rater certification process and learned the importance of the Codes and Standards (C&S) that

define the California HERS Program. This course also teaches students important energy fundamentals and provides an overview of HVAC systems.

The WE&T Program provided on-demand, self-paced training specifically for Trade Professionals. This training provided an in-depth understanding of available utility incentive and rebate programs and offered assistance on the energy efficiency project submittal process and incentive payment requirements.

SDG&E continued its partnership with the Center for Sustainable Energy (CSE) to offer a homeowner webinar that provided a broad overview of adopting energy efficiency and solar. WE&T program managers worked with SDG&E's Customer Generation program to provide time-of-use and interconnectivity information during the webinar. A comprehensive homeowner series was also offered that addressed specific billing questions, the benefits of installing energy efficient equipment and learning how to correctly size a solar system, creating an integrated whole home project strategy.

SDG&E continued to collaborate with the National Electrical Contractors Association (NECA) to offer Title 24 C&S trainings. Coordination with multiple city jurisdictions allowed a broader reach to educate audiences on the upcoming changes in the code. These groups also helped promote other types of educational training to their members and provided feedback when new energy efficiency training was of interest or needed for their members.

Multifamily operations and maintenance training was offered to specifically target the property management of multifamily apartment complexes. Attendees were trained on how to use and maintain the operations and maintenance binder documents, benchmarking to monitor building energy use, identifying systems and equipment that needs commissioning, and how to identify opportunities to reduce energy use including how to implement system and equipment

updates. Attendees learned how to review operating conditions and adjust set point controls to maximize efficiency. They also learned to identify the performance of building equipment and established a process for preventive maintenance to ensure maximum system performance.

SDG&E provided a comprehensive training for realtors, appraisers, inspectors, and lenders. Training was also offered to educate real estate professionals in this industry on the value of energy efficiency when buying and selling a home in the residential market. SDG&E partnered with workforce development organizations to target disadvantaged workers. Through this partnership, SDG&E's Energy Innovation Center Demonstration Garden served as a training opportunity for disadvantaged students between the ages of 18 to 26. The students participated in hands-on activities to maintain the Center's Demonstration Garden.

Challenges/Changes 2022

As part of SDG&E's virtual strategy plan, the program continued to offer all trainings online in 2021. SDG&E focused efforts on ensuring technical issues could be resolved quickly. To work through challenges such as connectivity issues or lack of familiarity with the platform on the part of speakers, additional training was provided to speakers to achieve a baseline of presenter knowledge specific to virtual implementation. This training will continue in 2022 as virtual training will be the primary method of administering training.

In discussions with several training and education organizations, SDG&E discovered some organizations had a lengthy review and approval process for adopting new curriculum. This presented a challenge for Core Energy Education Collaboration as some organizations cited years-long approval processes. SDG&E will continue to look for ways to help educators acknowledge and understand the value of energy efficiency as a viable career path and potentially overcome curriculum process challenges.

SDG&E continued to adapt and offer customers additional virtual channels for learning. On-demand training was offered as a solution for some training classes for students who were not able to attend live scheduled webinars. SDG&E worked with trainers to identify the best classes suited for on-demand and worked with the trainers/speakers to develop it. This option allowed students to view training content at their convenience. In 2021, approximately 750 on-demand training courses were offered.

Due to continued uncertainty around the pandemic in 2021, some certification testing, hands-on lab experience, and food service equipment demos continued to be a challenge. In addition, energy efficient tools from the Resource Lending Library were put on hold due to the stay-at-home order. SDG&E will be filing a change to the WE&T program Implementation Plan to reflect updates in these areas in 2022. In addition, SDG&E will not be renewing the lease for the Energy Innovation Center in 2022. The WE&T program will continue offering Technical Upskill training virtually until the planned solicitation and third-party implementation, with an implementor expected to take over the program in early 2024.

2021 Program Accomplishments

On-Demand training covering customer rebate and incentive programs specifically created for the Trade Professional network was viewed by over 40 Trade Professionals. More than five certification workshops were offered through Technical Upskill. Over 100 Energy Codes and Standards classes were promoted via WE&T marketing efforts. An estimated 20 training courses were offered to educate residential real estate professionals on the value of energy efficiency. Over 570 residential customers participated in the home energy training. Overall, more than 9,100 students attended Technical Upskill training and seven collaborations were established as part of Core Energy Education Collaboration. The WE&T program's

customer satisfaction surveys remained steady throughout the year with satisfaction remaining greater than 85% for most of the year.

B. SDGE3255 SW-WE&T – Career Connections

Program Description

The WE&T Career Connections Subprogram goal is to promote energy efficiency and energy/green sector career awareness along all educational paths (levels) from K-12 to post-secondary. The Career Connections Subprogram achieves its energy efficiency educational goals by facilitating energy efficiency strategic planning and educational programming at all educational paths. The subprogram integrated energy efficiency, demand response, and relevant career messages through interactive curricula and educational materials, student assemblies, and teacher workshops. As appropriate, curricula and educational materials were correlated to the California Department of Education's content standards Implemented Strategies.

SDG&E helped engage the next generation of energy-related workers through supporting energy education and outreach for the first half of 2021 through the local Career Connections program while it was active. Students learned through online, hands-on, and project-based activities that include the Water-Energy Nexus and why it matters, how solar energy is made, created working circuits, and more. Educators were also trained on how to incorporate energy education lessons to enhance their existing curriculum.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

Due to the COVID-19 pandemic and subsequent stay at home orders, some schools were shut down and in-person teaching halted for a portion of the year. Through virtual learning, online content was created to offer teachers and students a diverse and versatile set of services designed to suit their needs. In-person and hands-on learning resumed in schools that allowed it. SDG&E's Energy Innovation Center remained closed in 2021, therefore the tours associated

with the local Career Connections program were not offered. The Demonstration Garden was available for outdoor learning experiences.

SDG&E worked with PG&E and other IOUs to launch and complete a solicitation for the Career Connections program. The local Career Connections program shut down at the end of June 2021 and SDG&E supported activities that ensured a successful transition. In 2022, the Career Connections program will be administered by PG&E.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Due to the program shutting down mid-year, the number of students served was reduced by half from 2020. Approximately 5,000 students were reached at K-12 schools. Over 50% of the schools participating in the program were Title 1 schools and thus supported opportunities for disadvantaged students.

XIV. OTHER LOCAL PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3226 (3P) SW-COM Direct Install

Program Description

The Direct Install Program delivers no cost or discounted energy efficiency hardware retrofits through installation contractors to reduce peak demand and energy consumption for non-residential customers in the public sector. The program is designed to increase the adoption of energy efficient measures by offering an energy efficiency audit as well as energy efficiency equipment and installation at no cost or at a discounted price.

Implemented Strategies

SDG&E extended its contract with the program's primary contractor in 2021 with a new focus on the public sector. An additional contractor was extended through the first quarter of 2021 with a continued focus on completing projects for K-12 customers engaged at the end of 2020.

Historically, the program had only been offered to non-residential customers with a monthly demand of less than 200 kW. As the contractor began to work with public customers, it was noted that these customers typically have multiple sites with the potential for energy efficiency upgrades, but many were ineligible due to the maximum demand limitation.

Additionally, the smaller sites that were eligible had limited equipment that qualified for upgrades. At the end of August, SDG&E removed the demand requirement to better meet the needs of public sector customers until a new third-party program solicitation can be finalized to serve the sector.

In 2021, the program leveraged the support of Account Executives to promote the program and help establish relationships with key decision makers to encourage further participation. SDG&E also collaborated with its program contractor to develop new marketing material, including a program brochure with a customer testimonial, to help with customer recruitment as well. Direct outreach was also conducted through a program presentation provided during a community K-12 collaborative monthly meeting.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

At the beginning of 2021, new third-party programs launched to serve SDG&E's small and large commercial customers. The launch of these new programs limited the number of customers that could be served through the Direct Install Program in comparison to previous years. The shift to focusing on the public sector brought on a new set of challenges. The contractor found that public sector customers tend to have a lengthier approval process and reaching key decision makers proved to be more difficult than anticipated. Additionally, business restrictions and regulations related to the COVID-19 pandemic continued to limit customers' willingness to participate in the program. Public sector customers were hesitant to

allow outside contractors into facilities due to heightened safety precautions. Furthermore, customers that decided to move forward with projects had limited scheduling availability and audits and installations typically had to take place outside of business hours to minimize personal contact. The program also struggled with supply chain issues and shipment delays. In fact, the contractor faced difficulties in acquiring qualified equipment in sufficient quantities to meet customer demand, and shipments of equipment were delayed on several occasions. Another challenge for the program is that customers resist installing measures with a co-pay and tend to opt for no-cost measures only. In 2022, new third-party programs serving K-12 and federal customers will launch, so the Direct Install Program will focus solely on serving local government and higher education customers while solicitations for those customers remain underway.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021 the Direct Install Program contractors successfully serviced over 60 public sector customer sites, installing energy efficient equipment, while also ensuring customer satisfaction.

B. SDGE3280 (3P) Innovative Designs for Energy Efficiency Activities (IDEEA) 365

Program Description

SDG&E, along with the other California IOUs, established a cross-cutting third-party solicitation program called the IDEEA365 Program that promotes the "rolling" solicitation concept and is focused on new innovative programs. The program was designed to allow for continuous introduction of innovative ideas and technologies into the energy efficiency portfolio by drawing from the skill, experience and creativity of the energy efficiency community and Third-party Implementers. The IDEEA365 Program creates a mechanism for competitive, year-round solicitations for new third-party resource programs that produce cost effective energy

savings and demand reduction, or non-resource programs strongly tied to customer initiation of energy savings opportunities offered by SDG&E's core programs.

Implemented Strategies

D.16-08-019 clarified that the new third-party programs must be designed and presented to the utility program administrator by the third-party; utilities may consult and collaborate, using their expertise, on the ultimate program design implemented by the third-party. In 2018, SDG&E began the implementation of these solicitations, which included setting up its EE Procurement Review Group (PRG), hiring of Independent Evaluators (IE) and developing best practices with other utilities. In 2021 SDG&E continued to develop and refine internal processes and procedures, utilizing supply management best practices and an experienced team to ensure that all the guidelines and complex requirements of the Commission and the Energy Efficiency Procurement Review Group were met.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

SDG&E expects to execute contracts for the following local program sectors:

Agriculture, Public Sector - Government, Industrial, Industrial-Port Tenants, Single Family and Behavioral by the end of 2022. Executed contracts for these six solicitations are expected by December 31, 2022 to comply with the Commission's 60% portfolio outsourcing requirement.

Local solicitations that will be released to the market in 2022 include Non-Residential Behavior, Workforce Education & Training, Residential Equity, and Small Business Outreach.

2021 Program Accomplishments

SDG&E continued to develop and launch third-party solicitations, in accordance and compliance with Commission direction. Engagement with the Energy Efficiency Procurement Review Group and pool of Independent Evaluators to monitor the solicitation process and

provide input and feedback also continued. The collaboration resulted in best practices and lessons learned that will continue to guide and improve the third-party solicitation process into 2022.

In 2021, SDG&E executed contracts for Public Sector - K-12, Public Sector - Federal as well as Plug Load & Appliances, which met the 40% compliance deadline of December 31, 2021. Advice Letters for Public Sector - K-12 (K-12) and Public Sector - Federal (Federal) were filed on July 21, 2021. The K-12 Advice Letter received approval on August 18, 2021 and Federal on September 10, 2021. The Implementation Plan Webinar presentations for the K-12 program was held on October 7, 2021 and for the Federal program on October 29, 2021.

SDG&E continued to manage solicitations for Agriculture, Residential Single Family,

Public Sector – Local Government, Residential Behavioral, Industrial, Industrial – Port Tenants,
and Statewide Residential HVAC Quality Installation/Quality Maintenance.

C. SDGE3322 (3P) – Streamlined Ag Efficiency Program

Program Description

The Streamlined Ag Efficiency (SAE) Program commenced in June 2017. The program provides individualized service to agricultural producers and on-farm processors to identify efficiency opportunities, develop and evaluate implementation options, and apply for incentive and rebate funding. The goal of the SAE Program is healthy participation, and growing sector savings and a vendor community able and willing to articulate the benefits of energy efficiency to their customers.

Implemented Strategies:

The program uses field engineers to build relationships with vendors, associations, government agencies, and other key stakeholders in the realm of the agribusiness market. These relationships enable the program to identify and influence prospective customers to consider

upgrades to their equipment. The field engineers then manage the application process, information collection, inspections and M&V in an end-to-end way that minimizes transaction costs for the customer.

The implementer regularly attended agricultural events and trade shows to network, promote the program and inform customers of the different offerings and services available to them.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The SAE Program will continue in 2022 but will ramp down in Q4 when the new thirdparty Local Agriculture Program is available to customers.

Program Accomplishments

To increase participation, the SAE Program implementer conducted program marketing and outreach throughout 2021. Although several customers expressed interest in the program, they did not submit applications in 2021. In late Q4, one project was identified and will be completed in 2022.

D. SDGE3317 HOPPs Retrocommissioning (RCx)

Program Description

SDG&E's HOPPs RCx Program is designed to offer a systematic process to identify operational and maintenance improvements that optimize building performance and ensure that building systems function efficiently and effectively. The program ensures persistence of savings by requiring customers to commit to a three-year maintenance plan.

Implemented Strategies

In 2021, the SDG&E HOPPs RCx Program completed in-depth evaluations of all technical calculations, created whole building models, and supported installation and verification for two different projects in the pipeline. In parallel, the program supported annual monitoring

analysis for sixteen different projects that completed installation and verification between 2018-2020, all of which reached annual milestones that required measurement and verification of the projected annual energy savings.

The two projects that the program focused on installing in 2021 started the year pending project installation, with the full building investigation already complete. The program focused on completing installation by the end of March; however, this timeline was disrupted by limitations that customers and projects faced due to COVID-19. The limitations varied and were unique to each customer. As healthcare facilities, both sites had facility staffing challenges and other priorities that often trumped getting the project completed. The latter-completed project had complex controls and programming measures that required extensive commissioning work to be performed before sign-off. The program worked hand-in-hand with customers to address each of their challenges, and despite the obstacles, all installations were completed by the end of June.

Throughout the implementation stage, the program provided each of the projects with detailed technical assistance and project management support. The program also scheduled regular virtual meetings with trade-allies, engineering providers, and customers to track progress and coordinate installations that were aligned with program findings and recommendations.

Some measures were impacted by COVID-19. Customers that faced significant decreases in revenue were less motivated to invest in the capital improvements identified to reduce their energy consumption. Furthermore, an increased focus on improving indoor air quality and introducing more outside air to indoor spaces took precedence over energy saving opportunities tied to HVAC system and controls adjustments. Customers with office buildings and event spaces were also hesitant to invest in energy efficiency until vacancy returned to normal levels.

The program worked alongside each customer to understand their concerns, address the impacts of COVID-19, and identify creative solutions that supported cost and indoor air quality concerns, while also completing all required and some recommended measures. The total expected energy savings on a per building basis were not compromised either.

For the projects that completed installation and verification in 2018-2020 and achieved scheduled annual milestones throughout 2021, the program identified and reviewed non-routine events and any deviations from expected savings levels. At completion of the first, second, or third year of monitoring for each installed project, the program met virtually with customers to share a draft of the previous year's modeled savings and to discuss results of the customer's completed maintenance log. Following this meeting, the program finalized the whole building model based on customer input, and when applicable, supported the customer in troubleshooting and correcting any measure issues to get savings back on track in a timely manner.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

COVID-19 continued to pose challenges in 2021. Addressing a multitude of non-routine events given irregular levels of occupancy and/or vacancy due to COVID-19 will continue to be difficult. The program has fifteen projects in various stages of annual monitoring, and three projects were closed out in 2021. Nearly all projects were impacted by COVID-19 and will require Non-Routine Event (NRE) reviews and adjustments. In 2021, the program finalized templates and guidelines to standardize the NRE processes and procedures and to document the impact of NREs and how they are factored into each building's savings calculations.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Despite several obstacles and customer concerns that put projects in jeopardy, the program successfully retained all customers in the 2021 pipeline. The program also completed

installations for two projects, which resulted in significant energy savings. In addition, eight projects completed monitoring year evaluations, including two projects which completed the third and final year of monitoring.

XV. THIRD-PARTY IMPLEMENTED PROGRAMS

D.18-01-004 established the required process for third-party solicitations in the context of the EE programs rolling portfolio, overseen by the IOUs as program administrators (PAs). D.18-01-004 requires a two-stage solicitation approach to soliciting third-party program design and implementation services as part of the EE portfolio and sets the expected progress of these solicitations over the next few years (2019 through 2022) to meet the minimum 60 percent Third-Party Implementation of the IOU portfolio.⁷

D.18-01-004 requires the IOUs to utilize procurement review groups (PRGs) for design and conduct of solicitations, 8 as well as an independent evaluator (IE) structure analogous to the structure utilized by supply-side solicitations, with the exception that the IEs must be specifically hired for their energy efficiency expertise. ⁹ The IEs provide support to the PRGs and updates to the Commission through semi-annual Independent Evaluator reports, as well as individual reports on the solicitation process resulting in any contract award valued at \$5 million or greater and/or with a contract term of longer than three years, to be submitted along with the IOU's Tier 2 advice letter filed with the Commission for that contract. 10

As described above, D.18-01-004 requires the IOUs to file a Tier 2 AL for each EE Third-Party contract valued at five million (\$5MM) or more and/or with a term longer than three

D.18-01-004, Conclusion of Law (COL) 5 at 57 and OP 1 at 61.

Id. at OP 3 at 61-62.

Id. at 36.

Id. at 2, 37.

years, for Commission review. ¹¹ As of December 31, 2021, SDG&E met the 40 percent minimum requirement. SDG&E's Third-Party information is available at Appendix A Table 10.

A. SDGE4001 Single-Family Program

SDG&E's planned program implementation of the Single-Family program was delayed due to the need for another solicitation to be run beginning in 2021. Therefore, there was no program implemented in 2021.

B. SDGE4002 Multi-Family Program

Program Description

The Residential Zero Net Energy Transformation (RZNET) program is a new innovative way of serving multifamily and manufactured homes. RZNET program design is a turnkey, cost-effective, zero net energy, end-to-end solution that transforms multifamily and manufactured home community owners, operators, and residents into knowledgeable stewards of water, electricity, and natural gas. In compliance with SB 350, Clean Energy and Pollution Reduction Act of 2015, RZNET program participants are put on the path to zero net energy, beginning with direct install measures, complimentary ASHRAE Level 1 audits, sales consultations acting as catalysts for advanced energy efficiency, solar PV installations, and battery storage opportunities for multifamily and manufactured housing properties.

Implemented Strategies

Program measure engineering, development, and collaboration are all vital pieces to a resource program's success. Recognizing their value, SDG&E made these an important part of RZNET's implementation strategy. The strategy was realized through scheduled monthly meetings with the implementer, the implementer's contracted engineering firm, and SDG&E's

_

¹¹ *Id.*, OP 2 at 61.

engineering team to discuss measure development and the proper implementation of approved program measures. These meetings led to the measure coordination and implementation of multifamily common area tank insulation and multifamily common area pipe insulation in early 2021. These two measures made significant contributions to the program's 2021 net therms and TRC goals and proved the strategy to be fruitful third-party

Going into 2022, the implementer and SDG&E are bringing duct optimization to RZNET for implementation in the first quarter of the year. The team is also working on bring water energy nexus opportunities to the program through an agreement between the San Diego County Water Authority and the implementer.

2021 was the program's first year of implementation and a proving ground for its proposed approach to not only be cost-effective, but also a pathway to zero net energy. The approach of leading with no-cost direct install measures immediately followed by an invitation for a complimentary walkthrough energy audit and sales consultation yielded great results. The RZNET program identified many opportunities for upgrading inefficient water heating and HVAC equipment that resulted in the sale and installation of high efficiency water heating and HVAC systems. These customers are closer to achieving zero net energy and the implementer continues to maintain contact with the RZNET-served customer base through email drip campaigns that generate additional ZNE upgrades.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

2022 will see the addition of the duct optimization measure and the retirement of refrigerant charge measures due to the global warming potential associated with refrigerant. The program will adjust to compensate for the loss of the refrigerant charge measures by focusing on the duct optimization measure. The timing for the addition of the measure is ideal because the

duct optimization measure addresses an unmet need for manufactured housing resulting in a significant positive opportunity for the program's current reality and future. In 2022, the implementer and SDG&E will work closely to ensure alignment with data fields and reporting infrastructure. Going into 2022, the implementer and SDG&E have held regular meetings with all stakeholders to ensure compatibility.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The RZNET program exceeded its contracted TRC goal for 2021. The entire allocated budget of the program was utilized, all while supporting thousands of multi-family customers through quality energy efficiency technology installations and customer support. Geotagged timestamped photos were integrated into RZNET's quality assurance plan and played an important role in allowing SDG&E's inspection staff to complete many of the pending program inspections in an expedited manner, something that would have been otherwise very complicated with COVID protocols in place for most of the 2021 program year. Geotagged timestamped photos provide assurance that program measures reported are installed and allow for SDG&E inspectors to review program projects virtually thus improving the efficiency, health, and safety of program operations.

C. SDGE4003 Small Commercial Program

Program Description

SDG&E's Small Commercial Program (SCP) delivers comprehensive, integrated energy efficiency (EE) and demand response (DR) savings to commercial customers with a total maximum monthly demand of 20 kW or less. The SCP complies with SDG&E and CPUC requirements to deliver program goals through an integrated, holistic demand-side offering. The SCP's integrated delivery team provides full customer service and a complete EE solution through a single point of contact. Offering a wide range of measures, the Program sought to combine and leverage savings from direct install and quick payback measures, such as retro-

commissioning and operational measures, along with longer payback, high-impact measures to deliver financially attractive targeted measure bundles for individual small commercial buildings.

Implemented Strategies

Marketing activities ramped up during the second quarter, with postcard mailers sent out in May and an email campaign deployed in June. The June email campaign highlighted a Do-It-Yourself (DIY) initiative which offered Type-A LED lamps at no-cost and educated customers on how to install the lamps in a safe manner. This promotion received a positive response from interested customers and helped increase participation in the program. Additionally, the implementer's call center began outbound dialing efforts to eligible customers to generate leads. The implementer continued to raise program awareness online via Search Engine Marketing (SEM), including display ads and their website throughout the remainder of the year.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

Although the Small Commercial Program launched in 2021, the program was proposed and designed prior to the COVID-19 pandemic. The pandemic and resulting economic environment caused many changes not anticipated when the program was proposed and designed that were beyond the implementer's control. Small businesses, in particular, were severely impacted by the economic downturn resulting from the pandemic. Shutdowns made it difficult to engage with these customers and many small businesses struggled to stay afloat. As a result, energy efficiency upgrades were not a top priority, especially those with a copay. Furthermore, the implementer found that some small businesses they engaged had shut down before installation or inspections could even take place. The implementer also found that this customer base had very limited opportunities for equipment upgrades due to the small size of their

facilities. They strived to incorporate non-lighting measures, but after further analysis, realized that the savings for many non-lighting projects were insufficient to justify adding them to the program and would have resulted in high co-pays that this customer group was averse to paying in the current environment. Another significant challenge the program faced was maintaining cost-effectiveness. The implementer struggled to procure qualified equipment at a reasonable price, as workpapers were updated and supply chain issues emerged. The resources needed to support operations and satisfy complex measure package requirements were found to be costprohibitive and unsustainable. Despite efforts to bring the program back on track, SDG&E deemed the program unable to perform per the terms of the Scope of Work set forth in SDG&E's agreement with the implementer. On April 19, 2022, the advice letter to close the Small Commercial program was approved (AL 3972-E). SDG&E plans to solicit for a new Third-Party Program under the Equity Segment that targets the hard-to-reach and underserved small business market. In the interim, SDG&E intends to expand its legacy program, Business Energy Solutions (BES) (SDGE3226), to serve this customer base and help contribute to SDG&E's energy efficiency goals.

2021 Program Accomplishments

Despite the challenges faced by this program, in 2021, the program implementer reached over 2,700 customers and serviced over 1,300 small business locations, while ensuring customer satisfaction. The program enrolled most customers through the Type-A LED initiative, which brought in most the program's claimable savings. Development and approval of the Modified Lighting Calculator, a statewide tool that streamlines custom lighting enrollment calculations, was also a notable achievement as the tool expands eligible projects and can be utilized for other programs in the future.

D. SDGE4004 Comprehensive Energy Management Solutions (CEMS) Program Program Description

The Comprehensive Energy Management Solutions (CEMS) Program provides end-to-end program implementation services, including marketing, outreach, engineering, operations, customer service, and data management and reporting, to large commercial electric and gas customers on qualifying rates schedules with a monthly demand greater than 20 kW in SDG&E's service territory. The Program leverages the implementer's outreach staff, team of subcontractors, and network of trade professionals to provide customers with a single program that addresses all their energy efficiency needs.

Implemented Strategies

During the first quarter, the CEMS program emphasized rolling the program out to the general market and informing customers of available incentives, with the objective of building name recognition to make outreach efforts more effective and encourage inbound interest. This effort included developing the program's trade professional network, hosting webinars, and building direct relationships with large customers. To help the implementer construct a pipeline and accelerate program enrollment, SDG&E continued to share updated lists of qualifying customers with the program implementer.

Throughout the year, the implementer continued to test engagement methods focused on attracting potential participants and expand marketing tactics that demonstrated success, primarily digital and search engine marketing (SEM) tactics. The program also conducted a variety of targeted marketing campaigns to reach specific sectors or promote specific energy-saving technologies. For example, in support of the COVID-19 vaccine, the program provided additional incentives for Ultra Low Temperature (ULT) Freezers. This effort included three campaign emails to raise market awareness and direct outreach to distributors and customers.

Later, in response to businesses reopening throughout California, the program launched a food service and hospitality initiative, which included targeting major food equipment distributors to inform them of the program's offerings for their customers as well as preforming direct outreach to large hotel chains. The program also sought to leverage market interest in auto door closers by using customer data to pinpoint neighborhoods that have a high concentration of grocery stores, restaurants, liquor stores, and convenience stores who could likely benefit from the offering.

Expanding partnerships with well-known local institutions was another focus in 2021, which provided opportunities to reach business owners through several in-person events, such as the San Diego Chamber of Commerce golf tournament and the San Diego Building Owners and Managers Association (BOMA San Diego) Day at the Races. Events like these helped position program representatives as consultants within the business community and build trust, which is an important factor in how business owners and managers make decisions. In addition, the CEMS program utilized its trade professional network to develop new projects and install energy-efficiency equipment throughout the SDG&E territory, routinely adjusting incentive levels or adding additional measure offerings to drive increased participation. The implementer also enlisted the help of a local bilingual contractor to assist with the implementation of certain projects.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The program officially opened for customer participation at the start of 2021 and initial participation in the CEMS Program was slower than anticipated as a result of program ramp-up. Over time, the program has seen an upward monthly trend of installed electric savings, however, raising customer awareness of gas projects is necessary. Additionally, the development and lead

installations for the year and affected total program savings since custom projects typically provide higher savings per project. Contracting and hiring delays were another challenge for the implementer that caused the program's Direct Install launch date to be pushed back until 2022. Furthermore, interactive effects from measures such as Anti-Sweat Heater (ASH) controls, resulted in negative therm savings, making gas savings difficult to achieve. Lastly, the balance between installed savings and cost-effectiveness needs to continue be actively managed.

2021 Program Accomplishments

The Program spent a large portion of the second quarter of 2021 implementing a digital strategy and establishing the program's digital presence using paid as well as no-cost digital tools. In the second quarter, the program website received a total of 835 new users and 1,853 sessions. Over the prior quarter, new users increased approximately 64.69% and sessions increased about 108.44%. This growth corresponded with increased marketing efforts that targeted potential customers. The program's email campaigns also regularly achieved average open and click-through rates that exceeded industry averages.

In 2021, CEMS saw success with the deemed platform, with all savings to date coming from deemed measures. The program's focus on working with trade professionals allowed for a large influx of deemed projects to be submitted, primarily in the grocery sector, with auto door closers and ASH controls making up the majority of projects. To better facilitate deemed projects, CEMS developed an automated process currently being utilized by trade professionals, known as bulk uploads. Using this new method, the implementer was able to process hundreds of applications quickly and efficiently in the third and fourth quarters. Deemed projects serve as quick wins and can help the implementer and program to build trust with customers which, in

turn, should generate interest for participants to pursue additional energy efficiency projects.

The implementer is also focused on developing and submitting custom and NMEC projects that will allow for increased savings. In 2021, SDG&E completed its review of the program's first two custom projects, which will be ready for installation in 2022. CEMS currently has six additional custom projects in development as well.

Lastly, customer satisfaction is essential to the program's success, and throughout the year, the implementer was hard at work building relationships with large customers and market partners. As a result of these efforts, the program saw multiple repeat customers in 2021 as well as high ratings from customer satisfaction surveys.

E. SDGE4011 K-12 Energy Efficiency Program (KEEP)

Program Description

The K-12 Energy Efficiency Program (KEEP) was approved on October 18, 2021, pursuant to SDG&E Advice Letter 3814-E. In 2021, program ramp up occurred with the Implementation Plan filing and program setup between the implementer and SDG&E. KEEP is a third-party delivered program for SDG&E, which will deliver high-quality measurable savings to public and charter schools through a direct install model. Savings will be claimed using a population Normalized Metered Energy Consumption (NMEC) Measurement and Verification (M&V) approach. The program will be implemented by California Retrofit Incorporated (CRI). A key feature of the KEEP program is the KEEP Concierge, a single point of contact for all questions related to energy efficiency and sustainability.

Armed with extensive data from prior Prop 39 school audits, the KEEP team created a list of turnkey measures across HVAC and lighting, which will deliver measurable energy savings.

The measures that will deliver the most energy savings are provided to schools at no cost, with additional lighting measures provided at a heavily discounted rate from market pricing.

Additionally, the KEEP Concierge will be tasked with researching other efficiency opportunities commonly found in schools, such as pool heaters and pumps, and refrigeration. KEEP will work with each customer to help with financing needs by leveraging On Bill Financing.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The KEEP program's solicitation was not finalized and approved until October 18, 2021. The remainder of the year was spent filing the Implementation Plan and setting up the program to run in 2022. In 2022, KEEP will work to market and gain traction with SDG&E's K12 market sector.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, the K-12 Market Sector solicitation finalized which culminated in the contract AL being approved on October 18, 2021. The remainder of the year was dedicated to Program ramp up activities to allow the implementer to use 2022 for full program implementation.

F. SDGE40012 Federal Energy Program (FEP)

Program Description

The Federal Energy Program (FEP) was approved on September 10, 2021, pursuant to SDG&E Advice Letter 3815-E. The program provides end-to-end program implementation services, including marketing, outreach, engineering, operations, customer service, and data management and reporting, to Federal Buildings (including hospitals owned and/or operated by the Federal Government), US Postal Service, Military Bases, and Tribal Nations electric and gas customers on qualifying rates schedules.

Energy savings will be delivered through strategic communication and direct customer outreach of targeted offerings:

• Deemed – Offers incentives for the installation of select measures based on approved workpapers.

- Custom/Custom Express Offers customers with unique needs access to incentives that do not align with the Deemed offering.
- Normalized Metered Energy Consumption (NMEC) Offer available to appropriate, eligible customer sites that meet specific site-level criteria.

Challenges/Changes for 2022

The FEP program's solicitation was finalized and approved on September 10, 2021. The remainder of the year was spent filing the Implementation Plan and setting up the program to run in 2022. In 2022, FEP will work to market and gain traction with SDG&E's Federal market sector.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, the Federal Market Sector solicitation was finalized, which culminated in the contract AL being approved on September 10, 2021. The remainder of the year was dedicated to Program ramp up activities to allow the implementer to use 2022 for full program implementation.

XVI. SW THIRD-PARTY PROGRAMS

D.18-05-041 assigned lead Program Administrators (PAs) to specific Statewide programs and downstream pilot programs, and vested each Lead PA with full authority, including assignment of personnel to manage the program on behalf of the Commission. The Commission identified the various areas of sole responsibility for the lead PA. Among these responsibilities is the "procurement and contract administration" of the SW program. The following program narratives were prepared and provided by the lead IOU for each Statewide program.

D.18-05-041 at 79-80, 90-92.

¹³ D.18-05-041 at 172-173 (Conclusion of Law 13).

¹⁴ *Id.* at 172 (Conclusion of Law 13(b)).

A. Statewide Codes & Standards Programs

1. SDGE_SW_CSA_Natl - Codes & Standards Advocacy - National Codes & Standards Advocacy, SDGE_SW_CSA_Appl - Codes & Standards Advocacy - State Appliance Standards, and SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg - SW Codes & Standards Advocacy

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Pacific Gas & Electric 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

2. SDGE_SW_CSA_Natl_PA - Codes & Standards Advocacy - National Codes & Standards Advocacy, SDGE_SW_CSA_Appl_PA - Codes & Standards Advocacy - State Appliance Standards and SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg - SW Codes & Standards Advocacy

These are PG&E led Statewide C&S Advocacy Subprograms that went into full effect in early 2020. SDG&E included an administrative budget for these Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. As a Funding Program Administrator, SDG&E implements activities and functions that are covered under this budget for these three Advocacy subprograms as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

In addition, SDG&E, together with SCE as a funding PA, provided the following key support per the Lead PA's request and direction:

 PG&E and the Third-Party vendors worked with the IOUs on advocacy objectives by providing draft and final documents for review and comment by SCE and SDG&E codes and standards representatives prior to docketing with the Energy Commission, DOE, or EPA. Advocacy review documents include Title 24 and Title 20 Codes and Standards Enhancement (CASE) reports, Code Change Savings Reports (CCSR), federal comment letters, and IOU comments to be docketed in response to industry feedback on C&S proposals.

- When requested by PG&E, SDG&E attended PG&E-scheduled meetings where non-lead IOU input from across service regions was necessary to support Energy Commission (Title 24 and Title 20) and Department of Energy rulemakings.
 - o For National Codes and Standards, SDG&E responded to DOE, EPA, FTC, ASHRAE and IECC rulemakings in coordination with PG&E through reviewing third-party vendors' appliance and building federal comment letters, laboratory data sets, test procedures, building modeling documentation, cost effectiveness justification and compliance pathways to advance the Federal EE and DER appliance and building regulations.
 - o For State Appliance Standards, SDG&E participated in meetings and responded to CEC Title 20 and Demand Flexibility rulemakings in coordination with PG&E through reviewing the third-party vendors' CASE reports, comment letters, data collection and measure analysis to advance the State EE and DER appliance regulations.
 - o For Building Codes Advocacy, SDG&E participated in meetings and responded to CEC's 2022 and 2025 Title 24 Part 6 in coordination with PG&E through reviewing the third-party vendors' CASE reports, measure selection process, data sets and compliance recommendations to advance the State EE and DER building regulations.
- SDG&E responded to CPUC technical data requests sent to the lead and non-lead IOUs, and supported PG&E in responding to CPUC data requests by providing IOU and region-specific information. The data requests included Codes & Standards IOU and region-specific information to inform the Advocacy program, 2022-2023 BBAL and 2024-2031 Business Plan development.

The Statewide coordination is structured to streamline the administration costs while maintaining the needed support for the Advocacy subprograms.

B. SDGE_SW_HVAC_Up - SW Upstream HVAC Commercial Program Program Description

SDG&E is the lead administrator for the Statewide Upstream HVAC program, an upstream and midstream program that offers HVAC measures including high-efficiency commercial unitary air conditioners, commercial heat pumps, commercial chillers, commercial

space heating boilers, residential air conditioners, residential heat pumps, residential gas furnaces and residential gravity wall furnaces. The Program captures savings through the movement of incentivized deemed measures. The Statewide Upstream HVAC Program was proposed, designed, implemented, and delivered by CLEAResult and is named "Comfortably California."

Comfortably California is offered consistently across the State, and is made available to all Distributors, Retailers and Manufacturers executing sales for installations in all four IOU territories.

Implemented Strategies:

The program follows the same general logic as earlier upstream and midstream programs in that it aims to influence the market through changes in stocking and selling practices at the retailer, distributor and manufacturer levels, thus influencing the end-users and installation contractors. By promoting high-efficiency equipment, the program is designed to encourage manufacturers to develop California-specific equipment and guidelines to further influence positive change in California. As with previous upstream and midstream models, there are efficiencies in implementation to be leveraged by maintaining fewer, deeper participant relationships at the higher levels of the HVAC supply chain. The program actively recruits HVAC distributors and provides online rapid validation tools and secure online portals to ensure high levels of participation, security, and customer satisfaction. The program is designed to adapt to market changes and retains flexibility in product offerings and incentive levels, and flexibility around product support, training curriculum and contractor and customer-facing education.

The current implementation agreement term is three (3) years with annual review processes and ongoing performance evaluation. The program is offered consistently across IOU

territories, and made available to all distributors, retailers and manufacturers executing sales for installations in all IOU territories.

The program hosted partner forums to learn about problems and successes and used these forums to pivot the implementation of the program as needed. The program supports its partners through marketing and has worked directly with several distributors on marketing projects to help promote high-efficiency products.

The Implementer ran promotions throughout the year to help boost the sale of eligible measures. This was an effective tactic for achieving greater sales in each period and was well received by distributors.

During the year, data collection requirements for midstream/upstream programs was an item of discussion between CPUC ex-ante and ex-post staff, SDG&E and the implementer. Prior to program launch, SDG&E required that the installation contractor information be included in the data collection plan or the program in order to implement the necessary quality assurance checks. It was SDG&E's position that the installation contractor information was necessary to validate the claims were accurate as the contractor would have information on site eligibility that would not be available from the distributor. The implementer pivoted to accommodate this requirement at no additional cost to ratepayers for 2021. This additional data requirement at the enrollment level had a negative impact on participation and program satisfaction. Adding requirements for installation contractor data deviated from the original design of the program, which limited the contractor and end-user data requirements. These additional data requirements resulted in reduced participation and may create issues with future participation in upstream/midstream programs.

Challenges/Changes for 2022:

For 2022, in response to the latest HVAC Impact Evaluation recommendations, pursuant to requirements associated with program measures, SDG&E is requiring the implementer to capture end-user and installation contractor data on every distributor and manufacturer enrollment. This requirement is expected to significantly increase the cost of implementation and reduce TRC. First, some of the distributors participating in the program do not have the administrative capabilities to provide the requested levels of data. The additional program costs are designed to help offset some of the additional administrative costs to program partners. Furthermore, due to the change in the data requirements, it is estimated that many partners will have to pass additional cash savings to their buyers in order to collect the installation contractor and end-user data. Because of this, the program is expected to adjust its marketing approach to target installation contractors to inform them of the new data collection requirements.

The program will be developing and offering contractor-facing trainings on Fuel Substitution.

2021 Program Accomplishments:

The program has underperformed against the goal for the year. This is mostly due to impacts from COVID, supply chain disruption, measure-level data collection, and reduced incentives when compared to prior years.

Unfortunately, due to the revised data requirements, the implementer was not able to recruit any new retailers for participation in 2021. This setback resulted in fewer than expected sales of the Gravity Wall Furnace measure, responsible for a significant portion of the program's therms savings.

Against strong headwinds, the program saw a high level of participation, exceeding its internal distributor recruitment goals. Throughout the 2021 program year, Implementer Account Managers maintained strong relationships, which fostered honest communication among program partners. Despite the program's challenges, it received high praise from its partners, and we continue to receive high satisfaction scores on regular distributor surveys. Many of the program's partners have committed to future participation.

C. SDGE_SW_HVAC_Up_PA – SW Upstream HVAC Program (Utility) Program Description:

SDG&E is the lead administrator for the Statewide Upstream HVAC program, an upstream and midstream program that offers HVAC deemed measures within the four IOU service territories. The SDGE_SW_HVAC_Up_PA program operates as the internal utility general administrative support portion of the SW-HVAC program. The program performs duties consistent with the Commission-approved administrative functions detailed in Advice Letter 3599-3-A/2897-G-A.

Implemented Strategies:

In 2021, the program performed oversight of the established initial ramp-up activities which were delivered by the implementer, in accordance with CPUC guidance. Additionally, the SDG&E Utility SW-HVAC administrative program reviewed the program measure offerings, quality control procedures, and the measurement and verification plan to ensure that all measures could be accurately reported and that the Statewide program complied with the most current Commission requirements. The additional necessary contract administrative activities performed in 2021 were consistent with Administrative Overhead costs and included, but were not limited to, contract administration labor, accounting support, IT services and support, reporting database,

regulatory and filing support, quality verification of project installation and other ad-hoc support required to verify contract invoices.

In addition to the various administration and oversight functions described, SDG&E continued using utility staff personnel to ensure the successful delivery of this third-party program. SDG&E delivery functions and Direct Implementation Costs for this new third-party program included the following:

Engineering

- Measure package review and updates
- Measure package development and submittal to ED for approval
- Measure changes
- Design and implementation of quality assurance procedures and analysis of subsequent results
- Ex-Ante reviews
- Data request responses
- Response to Recommendation activities
- California Technical Forum (Cal TF) and DEER support

Evaluation, Measurement and Verification (EM&V)

- Program and project evaluation activities
- Ex-post related discussions, reviews, and Impact evaluations

System Support

• System configuration, testing, and maintenance

Marketing

- Co-branding activities and Statewide marketing discussions
- Marketing and communications support

SDG&E was able to put together and execute a robust quality assurance plan that included phone surveys of participating installation contractors. During the close of the program year, SDG&E identified errors in how the implementer was reporting claims for measures, specifically gas furnace retrofits. The implementer failed to accurately screen for furnaces which were a part of a new construction build, and submitted these claims as retrofit. SDG&E was able to confirm that these were valid claims through its QA/QC process, which included phone surveys to the installation contractor who was able to verify the purchase of the equipment. Based on the results of the surveys, there was insufficient data to distinguish between "retrofit" claims and "new construction." To avoid over-reporting of energy savings, SDG&E has claimed "new construction" for nearly all furnace measures in SW HVAC because the unit energy savings (UES) are less than that of retrofit. SDG&E is only claiming retrofit on those units confirmed as retrofit during inspection conducted prior to this filing. SDG&E is continuing to do verification work to confirm retrofit versus new construction and will compensate the implementer for confirmed retrofit sales/installs.

D. SDGE SW PLA- Statewide Plug Load & Appliance

SDG&E is the lead program administrator for the Statewide Plug Load and Appliance program. The advice letter for the program was filed on January 28, 2022. The program is anticipated to launch in 2022.

E. SDGE_SW_PLA_PA- Statewide Plug Load & Appliance (Utility)

SDG&E is the lead administrator for the Statewide Plug-Load and Appliance program, a midstream program that offers rebates on plug-load and appliance deemed measures within the four IOU service territories. The SDGE_SW_PLA_PA program operates as the internal utility general administrative support portion of the SDGE_SW_PLA program. The program will

perform duties consistent with the Commission-approved administrative functions detailed in Advice Letter 3599-3-A/2897-G-A.

F. SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas - SW Emerging Technologies - Gas

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Gas Company's 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

G. SDGE SW ETP Gas PA – SW Emerging Technologies – Gas (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget for the SW Emerging Technologies – Gas Program are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

Southern California Gas, the SW Lead Program Administrator, officially launched this Program in November 2021. SDG&E was invited to join the Technology Advisory Group (TAG) to assist the Lead PA and their selected Third-Party Implementer in their mission to identify promising gas efficiency technologies and assess their broader impact to California energy efficiency goals. The TAG is an information-sharing conduit for industry stakeholders to identify and discuss issues that should be considered as the program seeks to overcome market barriers and increase adoption of emerging energy efficiency technologies. The TAG is tasked to review and provide and vote to the following key elements of the Program: Annual Research Plan,

Emerging Technologies project proposals to SoCalGas, Technology Priority Map (TPM) based on results of scanning and screening, final project reports.

Prior to the official launch of the Program, SDG&E provided support at the request of the Lead PA in their solicitation and their transition to the Third-Party Implemented Program. These included the following activities:

- Participated in the Statewide Investor Owned Utility Emerging Technologies Program Team.
- Supported and coordinated the various tasks entailed in the transition from the locally implemented Emerging Technologies Program to the SW Program, per direction from the Lead PA.
- Reviewed and commented on the RFA and RFP for the SW Gas ET Implementer solicitation.
- Coordinated with Energy Division on multiple data requests. Most notably is the initiative to revamp the SW ET database update and reporting process. This effort's goal was to eventually streamline and automate the tracking and reporting process for measures originating from completed IOU ET projects and adopted into incentive programs to accurately claim energy and demand savings.
- Reviewed and provided input and recommendations to finalize the Technology Priority Map (TPM) and initial set of proposed Technology Focused Pilots (TFPs).

H. SDGE_SW_MCWH - Statewide Midstream Commercial Water Heating

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Gas Company 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

I. SDGE_SW_MCWH_PA – Statewide Midstream Commercial Water Heating (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

J. SDGE SW FS – SW Food Service Point of Sale

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Gas Company 2021 Annual Report for the performance of the respective Statewide Program.

K. SDGE SW FS PA – SW Food Service Point of Sale (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

L. SDGE SW UL – CA Statewide Lighting Program

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Edison 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

M. SDGE SW UL PA – CA Statewide Lighting Program (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

N. SDGE SW IP Colleges – Statewide Higher Education Program

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Edison 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

O. SDGE_SW_IP_Colleges – Statewide Higher Education Program

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

• Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to

Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.

- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings

P. SDGE_SW_IP_GOV_DGS – Statewide State of California Partnership Program

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Pacific Gas and Electric 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

Q. SDGE_SW_IP_GOV_DGS_PA – Statewide State of California Partnership Program (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

R. SDGE_SW_WP – Water/Wastewater Pumping Program

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program

through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Edison 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

S. SDGE SW WP PA – Water/Wastewater Pumping Program (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

T. SDGE_SW_ETP_Electric – Electric Emerging Technologies Program

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Southern California Gas Company 2021 Annual Report for the performance of the respective Statewide Program.

U. Statewide New Construction Programs

PG&E is responsible for the following Statewide New Construction Programs:

Statewide Non-Residential New Construction	Statewide Residential New Construction
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Ag_electric	SDGE_SW_NC_Res_electric
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Ag_mixed	SDGE_SW_NC_Res_mixed
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Com_electric	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Com_mixed	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Ind_electric	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Ind_mixed	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Pub_electric	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Pub_mixed	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Res_electric	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Res mixed	

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Pacific Gas and Electric 2021 Annual Report for the performance of the respective Statewide Program.

V. Statewide New Construction Programs (Utility)

The following Statewide New Construction Programs applicable to this section are:

Statewide Non-Residential New	Statewide Residential New Construction
Construction	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Ag electric PA	SDGE SW NC Res electric PA
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Ag_mixed_PA	SDGE_SW_NC_Res_mixed_PA
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Com_electric_PA	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Com_mixed_PA	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Ind electric PA	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Ind mixed PA	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Pub electric PA	
SDGE SW NC NonRes Pub mixed PA	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Res_electric_PA	
SDGE_SW_NC_NonRes_Res_mixed_PA	

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings

W. SDGE SW WET CC – Statewide WE&T Career Connections

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Pacific Gas and Electric 2021 Annual Report for the performance for the respective Statewide Program.

X. SDGE SW WET CC PA – Statewide WE&T Career Connections (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

Y. SDGE_SW_WET_Work – Statewide WE&T Career and Workforce Readiness

SDG&E provides funding to the Lead Program Administrators as shown in Tables 3 and 4 of D.18-05-041. SDG&E receives the proportional benefits from the Statewide Program through the CPUC's CEDARs reporting system. Please refer to the Pacific Gas and Electric 2021 Annual Report for the performance of the respective Statewide Program.

Z. SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA – Statewide WE&T Career and Workforce Readiness (Utility)

SDG&E included an administrative budget for Statewide programs in which SDG&E is not the Lead Program Administrator. Activities and functions that are covered under this budget are as follows:

- Program staff time related to participation in statewide meetings, responding to Lead PA requests, directing customer inquiries, marketing and cobranding approval, analytics as it relates to SDG&E's proportional share of the budget and savings.
- Administration and facilitation of Co-Funding Agreements for each statewide program; monthly accounting activity related to the transfer of funds.
- IT overhead related to regulatory budget filings.

XVII. OTHER ENERGY EFFICIENCY ACTIVITIES AND PROGRAMS

A. SDGE3281 EM&V – Evaluation Measurement and Verification

EM&V activities are designed to 1) inform the program selection process, 2) provide early feedback to program implementers, 3) produce impact evaluations at the end of the funding period, and 4) provide feedback into the planning process for future program cycles.

SDG&E participated in the development of the Statewide EM&V roadmap that outlines the various EM&V projects that the Commission's Energy Division and utilities will manage in 2021. SDG&E either managed or participated in Statewide studies through the various Project Coordinating Groups (PCGs) that support these studies.

In D.16-08-019, the Commission increased the portion of the EM&V budget going to program administrators from 27.5% to a maximum of 40%. ¹⁵ "Additional budget beyond the current 27.5 percent earmarked for program administrators, and up to the 40 percent cap allowed herein, should be designated only for the additional activities associated with the change in EM&V priorities and activities articulated in this decision." ¹⁶

Resolution E-5152 also notes that Energy Division "agree[s] with SDG&E that support for CalTF may be considered either program- or evaluation-related, and therefore grant the IOUs the discretion to determine whether to categorize the activity as program implementation funding

114

. 01.

-

¹⁵ D.16-08-019 at 80-81.

¹⁶ *Id.* at 81.

or EM&V for budgeting purposes. "17 Accordingly, in 2021, SDG&E started to breakout eTRM enhancement costs and charge them to EM&V dollars, where in previous years, eTRM enhancements were 100% allocated to program dollars.

B. Statewide Finance Pilots Program Description

In D.12-11-015, the Commission authorized \$75.2 million for energy efficiency financing pilot programs to be implemented in 2013-2014. However, due to the complexity of the process to design and implement these innovative new pilots, the pilot period lasted beyond 2014. In D.13-09-044, the Commission approved a series of financing pilot programs covering both residential and non-residential markets, and further extending the pilot period to 2015.

Subsequently, D.15-06-008 further extended the pilots' terms beyond 2015 so that each pilot was funded for a full 24 months of operation with no additional budget, as approved originally in D.12-11-015. Lastly, D.17-03-026 OP7 authorized continued utility pilot support and funding.

In 2017, SDG&E filed Advice Letter 3147-E/2625-G with information on its 2017-2021 annual program budgets. SDG&E's Advice Letter was approved effective January 1, 2018. As a result, these pilots are separate from the 2021 portfolio budget and tracked outside the standard energy efficiency program portfolio budget.

Administration of the pilots is delegated to the California Alternative Energy and Advanced Transportation Financing Authority (CAEATFA). These pilots include various forms of credit enhancements (CEs) for residential properties and small businesses. The CEs are expected to provide additional security to third-party lenders and private capital so they can extend or improve credit terms for energy efficiency projects. Some of the pilots will also

115

¹⁷ Resolution E-5152 (August 5, 2021) at 26.

include an On-Bill Repayment (OBR) feature. SDG&E provides support for these pilots under the following program categories:

SDGE3264 SW-FIN-New Fin Offerings - CHEEF & Funds Reserved

SDGE3308 SW-Finance ME&O

SDGE3312 SW-FIN – New Finance Offerings – Finance Pilot IT Support

SDGE3325 SW-FIN – Finance Pilots – SDG&E Administration

Implemented Strategies

Throughout the year, SDG&E worked alongside the Statewide finance ME&O administrator, Center for Sustainable Energy, to increase the program's effectiveness and facilitate loan volume by targeting homeowners through local, targeted marketing efforts, such as digital advertising campaigns and paid social media posts.

Additionally, SDG&E continues to work collaboratively with CAEATFA and other program stakeholders on the development of the remaining pilots. Meanwhile, CAEATFA continues to research and develop OBR, which is a key component of the pilot programs, including a future non-residential pilot. In April 2020, the CPUC approved Resolution E-5072, which transitioned the Residential Energy Efficiency Loan Program (REEL) from a pilot to a full-scale program. CAEATFA will continue in its role as the administrator of the REEL in the future.

2021 Program Accomplishments

In 2021, participating lenders funded over 90 projects in SDG&E's service territory, with an approximate combined project cost of over \$887,812.

C. California Analysis Tool for Locational Energy Assessment (CATALENA) Project Description (Provided by Lead IOU SCE, modified by SDG&E)

In Decision (D.)18-05-041,¹⁸ the Commission directed the IOU Program Administrators¹⁹ to select a lead to oversee the Statewide deployment of a tool akin to the legacy tool known as "Energy Atlas", which served as a database of building energy consumption that links utility account information to building characteristics, socio-demographic data, and other significant attributes that can be expressed spatially.²⁰ The public portion of the Energy Atlas is a front-end website that displays spatially aggregated energy consumption statistics at an annual temporal resolution for most neighborhoods, cities, and counties in Southern California (excluding SDG&E territory). The Statewide tool is now referred to as "CATALENA", and IOUs were directed to competitively solicit a third-party to:

- Implement the deployment
- Maintain data quality, consistency and security
- Continue development of the Energy Atlas's capabilities, and
- Encourage and support local governments that choose to participate.

With the concurrence of the other IOUs, SCE is the lead, overseeing the Statewide deployment of the new CATALENA tool. D.18-05-041 also directed the IOU PAs to:

- Allocate up to \$2 million to CATALENA, and
- Include annual management and maintenance costs for CATALENA in their annual budget advice letters, in proportion to their relevant energy efficiency (EE) programs.²¹

D.18-05-041, *Addressing Energy Efficiency Business Plans*, available at https://docs.cpuc.ca.gov/PublishedDocs /Published/G000/M215/K706/215706139.PDF.

Southern California Edison Company (SCE), Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E), San Diego Gas & Electric Company (SDG&E), and Southern California Gas Company (SoCalGas).

²⁰ *Id.* at 189 (OP 32)

²¹ *Id*.

The IOUs created a work scope for the CATALENA website and database system that gives users access to aggregated energy use profiles of residential, commercial, industrial, and agricultural customers within the IOUs' service territories. CATALENA may also combine energy use data with other relevant information, potentially including:

- Energy efficiency program deployment
- Electric vehicle and charging station data
- Behind-the-meter solar and storage capacity, and
- Other relevant public data.

CATALENA is anticipated to be capable of displaying data through graphs, charts, and (potentially) an interactive map.

Strategies Implemented in 2021 (Provided by Lead IOU SCE)

In 2021, the IOUs' CATALENA Working Group ("Working Group"), led by SCE, worked with the California Public Utilities Commission's Energy Division (CPUC ED) to determine if the CATALENA work specifications include non-aggregated confidential customer usage data. SCE expressed concerns about this issue multiple times on a call with attorneys from CPUC and SCE. SCE's principal concerns are that:

- It will be challenging and may be impossible to include confidential data in this tool while following our legal obligations to protect customer privacy.
- Including customer confidential data is not needed in order to comply with D.18-05-041 OP 32.

Core Function Activities:

The key CATALENA Working Group goal achieved in 2021 was to reach agreement on the cost-sharing methodology for the ongoing operations and maintenance budget, which includes annual escalation and enhancement costs.

Collaboration with Others:

To advance the development of the work specification, the Working Group held several update calls with the IOUs to apprise them of continued discussion with the CPUC ED on the need to provide disaggregated data to end-users.

Challenges/Changes for 2021 (Provided by SDG&E)

SDG&E believes the primary challenge consists of reaching Statewide consensus on the scope of the CATALENA project, specifically the appropriate level of data collection, so that the RFP can be issued, a vendor can be selected, and the project can be implemented. SDG&E is an active participant in discussions with the IOUs, the CEC, and the CPUC regarding the scope of the CATALENA project. Until stakeholders can reach consensus, the project cannot proceed.

E. Portfolio Operations and Compliance Process Enhancements

In 2021, SDG&E reviewed and made several process improvements to EE program management in order to improve compliance and assure the prudent management of SDG&E's EE portfolio. The following areas underwent significant review.

Audits and Inspections: SDG&E conducted a review of its current programs and implemented changes in its inspection protocols to ensure that current inspection protocols are statistically based, incorporate quality engineering principles, and follow industry-standard practice. In 2022, SDG&E will continue to monitor the statistically based plan to ensure accuracy in project inspections.

New Employee and Contractor Training: SDG&E continued its program administration training program for its staff and for new contractors as they are brought in. The purpose of the training is to elevate program advisor knowledge and implementation of best practices in managing contracts for existing programs, including tracking and managing contract performance indicators and metrics, scopes of work, and other contract elements. This training

was also extended to groups that provide systems, engineering, inspections, policy, and compliance support and will be provided annually.

Invoices: SDG&E continues to strengthen the process for invoice review and payment and integrate any lessons learned and new data, as Third-Party Implementers are brought on. SDG&E has been standardizing across programs to ensure accurate, succinct processes. In order to address issues created by the siloed review of invoices, a formal checklist procedure was developed in 2020, for the review and approval of each invoice, which includes signature requirements of the reviewer and approver, to ensure that appropriate documentation is included with each invoice and that the invoice is accurate and paid in accordance with program, regulatory and company rules. This practice has continued into 2021. Furthermore, SDG&E developed an online training program regarding program requirements for its energy efficiency programs staff at all levels who are responsible for reviewing and approving invoices to ensure internal approval policies and standards are understood and followed. The mandatory training program was launched in early 2021 and is a yearly training requirement.

Onboarding New Vendors and Contractors: SDG&E has continued to enhance its onboarding process for new vendors and contractors, with each new solicitation a more in-depth review of whether such vendors and contractors can contractually, legally, and financially perform under their contracts. This includes conducting credit reviews where appropriate and ensuring that solicitation processes are implemented.

Vendor and Contractor Monitoring: SDG&E has strengthened its monitoring processes to ensure that vendors and contractors comply with regulatory requirements. Processes being followed include regularly scheduled meetings with Implementers and internal customer

program staff to discuss vendor/contractor compliance and internal program compliance, in addition to program performance.

Business Operations Compliance Controls: SDG&E monitors all controls to identify contractor noncompliance discrepancies and initiates a corrective action with the vendor. In conjunction with enforcement of contractor compliance, SDG&E has also examined existing protocols and tools to ensure its own compliance through internal audits. SDG&E launched a comprehensive compliance training course that is required attendance for department personnel on an annual basis. The purpose of the training is to provide initial training for new employees and refresher training for experienced employees on the compliance requirements and procedures for each of our customer programs.

In addition, SDG&E's review of Third-Party invoices and Key Performance Indicators and claims data led to the identification of an issue with the CEDARs reporting system associated with Climate Zones 6 and 8 and their omission within SDG&E territory. This has been brought to the attention of the Energy Division staff to include in the updates for the 2022 filing within CEDARs. The below table outlines the potential differences in reporting had Climate Zone 6 and Climate Zone 8 been able to be claimed by SDG&E instead of classifying those claims as "System."

SDG&E Filing	Electric Benefits	Gas Benefits
Current Filing, Using System for E3 Climate Zone for CZ 6 and 8 in SDGE territory	\$456,553.84	-\$9,567.83
Using CZ 6 and 8, with SCE as PA to allow ACC to assign benefits	\$516,997.04	-\$9,343.53

APPENDIX A

ANNUAL REPORT TABLES

Files and Data tables are available online at:

https://www.sdge.com/rates-and-regulations/regulatory-filing/914/energy-efficiency-filings

SECTION 1 - ENERGY SAVINGS

The purpose of the following table (Table 1) is to report the savings achievements of the energy efficiency portfolio of programs implemented by SDG&E for the 2021 program year toward the CPUC Adopted Goals (D.19-08-34). Beginning in 2021, per D.19-08-034, Energy Savings Assistance (ESA) accomplishments do not contribute to IOU goal attainment. The annual impacts are reported for 2021 in terms of annual and lifecycle energy savings in GWh (gigawatt hours), annual and lifecycle natural gas savings in Mth (million therms), and peak demand savings in MW (megawatts). The table shows annual savings that reflect installed savings, not including commitments.

	GWh	MW	MMTherms	GWh	MW	MMTherms			
	Po	rtfolio - Non (C&S	Codes & Standards					
2021 Total Installed Portfolio Savings	66.8	10	2.4	527.8	89.8	3.6			
Adopted Goals (D.19-08-034)(1)	90	17	2.2	150	31	1.5			
Percentage of goal attainment	74%	59%	110%	352%	290%	240%			
Fuel Substitution Goal Reduction see Tab 2, Table 2B(2)									
Goals less FS Goal Reduction (7-9 not reflected in CEDARS unless requested)(2)									

Notes:

- (1) CPUC Adopted Goals and installed savings exclude Energy Savings Assistance (ESA) Program.
- (2) SDGE did not have Fuel Substitution claims in 2021.
- (3) All energy savings numbers are net with 5% market effects.

SECTION 2 - FUEL SUBSTITUION SAVINGS

The purpose of the following table is to report the annual incremental savings and building infrastructure costs by use category for fuel substitution measures. This table provides for separate accounting of reductions in energy savings goals due to fuel substitution. SDG&E did not have any fuel substitution measures to report in 2021

Fuel Substitution Savings
For more information on Fuel Substitution (FS), please visit:

ZA. New Fuel Program Administrat	or devings [1]		Mary Fra	Savings	Ortologi	Fuel Goals R	aduction	Bullding infrasi	tructure upgrade	e necessitated	
	Energy	New Fuel									
	Savings		Conver	sion [4]		(PY activities)		by install	lation of FS mea	sures [7]	FYI
Fuel Substitution Measure	(MMBTU) [2]	Units [3]	kWh	Thm	Utility [5]	kWh [6]	Thm [6]	Electric (\$)	Gas (\$)	Other (\$)	CET_IDUseCategor
Use Category [8]	(******	ound to	meen (e)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Electric (4)	000 (0)	O	Y
Appliance or Plug Load											AppPlug
Building Envelope											BldgEnv
Compressed Air											CompAir
Commercial Refrigeration											ComRefrig
Codes & Standards											C&S
Food Service											FoodServ
HVAC											HVAC
Irrigation											Irrigate
Lighting											Lighting
Non-Savings Measure											NonSav
Process Distribution											ProcDist
Process Drying											ProcDry
Process Heat											ProcHeat
Process Refrigeration											ProcRefrig
Recreation											Recreate
Service											Service
Service and Domestic Hot Water											SHW
Whole Building											WhiBidg
TOTAL											

Note: SDGE did not have Fuel Substitution claims in 2021.

- Note: SOCIE and not nave Four substitution claims in 2021.

 [1] Separate accounting of Fuel Substitution claims sponsored by the new-fuel PA submitting these tables.

 [2] Claimable net energy savings in MMBTU. This is a calculated energy conversion from columns D.E.

 [3] Unit of savings for the new fuel (either kWh'vn or Tim)

 [4] Claimable savings for the new fuel (this is not actual grid savings, but the net savings converted to unit of the new fuel). CEDARS CET output fields "First Year Net kWh" and "First Year Net Therm" apply this conversion and should be used in these cells.
- [5] The original fuel utility whose goals should be adjusted.
- [5] This is the amount that the original fuel utility's goals should be reduced. These are calculated as an energy conversion from the net new fuel savings in columns D:E. Reductions for the original fuel utility's Annual Reports.
 [7] Required for Downstream measures ority. See D.19-08-009 CP 4 for more information.
 [8] Measurer Use Categories listed here are the descriptions that correspond directly to the CET_ID_UseCategory" (or "UseCategory") codes.

2B. Original Fuel Utility Goals Reduction [9]

Program Administrator Sponsoring New Fuel Measure	Reduction	Fuel Goals PY activities) 11]	Reduction T	Fuel Goals True-up (PY-1 les) [12]	Total PY Goals Reductions		
[10]	kWh	Thm	kWh	Thm	kWh	Thm	
PG&E							
SCE							
SDG&E							
SoCalGas							
3C-REN							
BayREN							
-REN							
MCE							
RuralREN							
SoCalREN							
Total Goal Reduction							

- Total Goal Reduction

 Note: SDGE did not have Fuel Substitution claims in 2021.

 [8] Goals reductions for the original fuel utility from all applicable PAs. This table is only populated by utilities whose fuels were the original fuel for a Fuel Substitution Measure to reflect their reduction in goals. Non-IOU (p) coast reductions for the original time dusty into all approaches P.As. I risi states is only populated by distinct inches write the original fuel leave this table blank.

 [10] Name of PA which sponsored fuel substitution measures that affect the reporting utility (as documented in the sponsoring PA's Annual Report).

 [11] When feasible, these values should equal the goals reductions listed in corresponding sponsoring PA's Table 2A for the original fuel utilities goals reductions for PY-1 did not equal the sponsoring PA goals reductions for PY-1; see D.19-08-009 OP 7.

D.19-08-009 [impetus for this reporting tab]

- 23. The original-fuel utility program administrator should receive a reduction in their portfolio energy efficiency goals, calculated as the energy savings achieved in the original fuel due to the fuel substitution measure, to account for the loss of energy efficiency potential when its fuel is
- 24. Each program administrator sponsoring a fuel substitution measure, as well as any utility program administrator of the original fuel being 24. Early program animatative sponsoring a use assumation measure, as was any using program across search or in the Grigoria International Substitution measures in its Energy Efficiency Annu Report and Annual Budget Advice Letter filings in a separate accounting from claims of other energy savings.
 25. A utility whose fuel is being substituted by a fuel substitution measure should include separate accounting of a reduction in its energy.
- savings goals, with a one-year lag (if necessary), after reflecting the energy savings claims of the new-fuel utility in its Energy Efficiency Annual Report and/or Annual Budget Advice Letter filings.

- 4. Any energy efficiency program administrator including fuel substitution measures in its portfolio in a downstream program shall track instances of building infrastructure upgrades necessitated by the installation of the fuel substitution measures, and shall include this information in its energy efficiency annual report, in a form agreed upon with Commission staff.
- 5. Fuel substitution measures and associated program costs shall be funded by the ratepayers of the new fuel, not ratepayers of the fuel being substituted.
- Each program administrator sponsoring a fuel substitution measure shall reflect energy savings (or credit towards goals) associated tuel substitution measures in its Energy Efficiency Annual Report and Annual Budget Advice Letter filings in a separate accounting from claims of other energy savings.
- 7. A utility whose fuel is being substituted by a fuel substitution measure should include separate accounting of reductions in its e savings goals due to fuel substitution, with a one-year lag (if necessary), after reflecting the energy savings claims of the new-fuel Energy Efficiency Annual Report and/or Annual Budget Advice Letter filings.

SECTION 3 ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACTS

The purpose of the following table (Table 3) is to report the annual incremental environmental impacts of the energy efficiency portfolio (for both electricity and natural gas) of programs implemented by SDG&E during the 2021 program year. The impacts should be in terms of annual and lifecycle tons of CO2, NOx, and PM10 avoided and should come from the Cost Effectiveness Tool calculator.

Environmental Impacts of EE Portfolio by Measure Use Category

							Gross lifecycle tons NOx	Net lifecycle tons NOx	Gross annual tons	Net annual tons		
	Gross annual tons of	Net annual tons of CO2	Gross lifecycle tons of	Net lifecycle tons of CO2	Gross annual tons of NOx	Net annual tons of NOx	avoided	avoided	PM10 avoided		Gross lifecycle tons PM10 avoided	Net lifecycle tons PM10 avoided
Measure Use Category	CO2 avoided	avoided	CO2 avoided	avoided	avoided	avoided						
Appliance or Plug Load	8,590	8,596	90,796	90,795	5,913	5,913	47,381		2,206	2,206	17,677	17,677
Building Envelope	5,022	5,022	112,200		1,494	1,494	29,428	29,427	551	551	10,859	10,859
Compressed Air	208	208	3,928		131	131	1,966	1,966	49	49	733	733
Commercial Refrigeration	8,934	.,,			5,489	4,941	45,832	42,882	2,317	2,020	18,309	
Codes & Standards	6,933	6,933	140,879	140,879	4,395	4,395	69,403	69,403	1,640	1,640	25,900	25,900
Food Service	535	348	6,512	4,242	439	286	5,256	3,430	9	6	111	73
HVAC	15,14	14,471	235,819	225,090	7,504	6,769	106,081	94,880	2,224	2,135	30,381	29,218
Irrigation												
Lighting	83,939	83,727	1,637,171	1,635,648	53,864	53,743	824,764	823,995	20,155	20,085	307,774	307,344
Non-Savings Measure												
Process Distribution	;	3 2	10	6	2	1	6	4	1	1	2	2
Process Drying												
Process Heat	438	396	6,687	6,032	225	149	3,193	2,118	12	9	190	140
Process Refrigeration												
Recreation	1,484	1,415	18,082	17,274	919	876	9,498	9,066	347	329	3,579	3,399
Service												
Service and Domestic Hot Water	23,355	19,539	201,920	178,867	9,634	6,449	59,285	40,189	350	330	3,396	3,197
Whole Building	30,359	31,222	329,342		20,324	21,085	118,356	119,397	4,681	4,823	39,052	39,241
TOTAL	184,949	179,867	2,868,672	2,825,403	110,331	106,233	1,320,449	1,284,136	34,542	34,185	457,966	454,579

SOURCE: CEDARS CET Outputs

Notes:

(2) Excludes Energy Savings Assistance (ESA) Program.

⁽¹⁾ All Environmental Impacts are net with 5% market effects.

SECTION 4 - EXPENDITURES

The purpose of Table 4 is to report the annual costs expended by SDG&E in implementing the 2021 Energy Efficiency portfolio of programs. The report shows the "Total EE Portfolio Expenditures" broken out into the Administrative Costs, Marketing/Advertising/Outreach Costs, Direct Implementation Costs, and Evaluation, Measurement and Verification (EM&V) Cost categories. This table also includes budget and expenditure dollars for SW ME&O and On-Bill Financing Programs/Pilots.

							Autoria Dire	and later						200	Specialism (miles	and in leading time	and the second					
\Box										Alm	riskolnine.			Dana Junio	and the					104	NY.	
1 1	I	Program Views							Nep 1001	minumin		190	Nen	Insertive	Institute	A Schole	PA Almi	CASK Innian				l
100	Program ID	Program Name	l					201 Alresidenter Cod	303	2001	3(3)	301	201 Somilier	3001	20 Services	201	3(2)	303		20 Semilian	201	1
		(Indials of programs)	l					(Bosonias per budget	Equidian	Special	Specimen	Supplier has	Still Supration	Superdiagna Super	Sun per 301	Suppliers from	Specimen	Formalises from		from per 202	Spending from	l
1 1	I							Advise (atient)	Bran ps 3031	Drose 2001	Brown Jan 2001	301 Rule (3)	bulget [1]	2001 Bullet [7]	helps (3)	DEL Bulget [7]	firms per 2001	301 Not 400		Indian (%)	2001 Rudo (20	On NE Framing
\rightarrow		NEW TATORNE	Numer Institution	Primary Series	Program Coloniery	Delices Chessel	2071 Amount Bullet 26,153,130	1.N57W	Index (1)	304ed (3)	bullets (N	3.0%,3%	234.680	13.189.491	55.842	A221,828	Index IN	777.64	PENERO			Loan Prof.
100 E		ESC CALA Summer Advisors 1890X, 1147	9787	Satisfactor	Madagara	December	Ø6213	28.630	-	15.447		84,407	200.00	C0.160	50.00	2111.00	_	26,673	=		=	
100 E	0.30004	FN CALIFOR Load and Ambiguous FCS Solution	3782	Employed	Lauren	Makeren	1.885172	133,203		3.60		174.007		(62.00)		61.121		90,903				
STATE S	D-387330	ENCAL REVISE About	8082	Restarted		Commission							8,20				-	-				
100 E	0.00011	ENCOMO SERVICE AND	9787	Restroid	Section 1	Commission Commission	19478	1114	_		_	14.877	_	10.000	20.00	#0.003		_	=		_	
100	0.787700	FW CDM Odnádel humbro Odnámi	1727	Comments	Samuel	Descriptions	110.00	133,363	-			10.00	7118	100,104	21.60	446.730						
STATE IS	0.3000	EW CDM Coloridated Installation Section by Design	9782	Country and	Lauren	Dominion	2,67270	263,000				118.00		195,117	266,150	13,737						
EDOR E	0.30223	EN/COM Describes Commission Entering	838) Third Party	Commercial	Samuel Samuel	Dominionary/Military	60,00 136538	45,140 196,501		10,110		48,144		190,675		100,701	-	2111				
STATE OF		DV DD Statut State Measured	Think Pery	Data and Control	Secure 1	Commission	2,345,310	19,301	-	10.670	_	201,616	_	117.418	-			24,631	_		_	
2000 E	DC#2000	FRO DELCOMORE SERVICE And STATE	9787	Industrial	Nodestan	Directalization	60313	g.001				44.798	-	10,400		271,200		110				
STATE IS	DE SEE	EV PD Obliged Switch Obliged	9782	Industrial	Lauren	Dominion	1,00,03	9030	-			2648		200,485		13,394						
100 E	0.000	DV DD Desert Location	1787	Industrial	Nedange	Decisions/Misters	294.04	12,407 23,617				14,07		140.100 27,640		121,675 6,817	-	2.041				
STOCK S	DOM:	ENIAD Cations Service Avilla ENIAD Obsides Countries Obsided	830	Agriculture	Temperature Security	Commission	164,730	11,007	-	-		17.104	_	21,800		0,827		220	_		=	
REPORT IN	DOMESTIC:	ESCAD Decord Suppliers	9782	Agriculture	Same	Directalismon Militariano	110.900	17,000	-	-		21.149		71.61	-	-		440				
STATE IS	DOMESTIC	FW FT Technology Introduction Sustant	9797	Scowing Technologies	Notherope	Dominional	(0)273	31,000				37,172		212252	-			- 1				
100F E	0.0002	CN PT Technology Assessment Security	9782 9782	Summing Technologies	Nudercon	Commission or Co	20,40	90,044 17,047		-	-	90,678 30,110	_	(81,508 (81,508	-		-					
100 E	D. 30.00	EN PT Televing Optioned Special ENCAL Complete Management	830	Surging Technologies	Nondamental Nondamental		20,60	11,007	-	-	-	73,803	_	80.60	-	_	-	-	_		_	
2000 E	0.7000	FRICAS: Smith Oxfor	9797	Code and Standards	Manhauer	Districtions:	20100	18.90	_	-		6.10		250.007				_			=	
200E E	D. WOODS	ENCAS - Facility Condension	979.7	Color and Streeterly	Nodestra	Demokrati	205,900	14,879		-		28.677		154,940		-						
STATE IS	D/WHIM	DV WAT Commiss	9797	Mobile of Married or at	Nonfrance	Decisions	4300.177 373.479	830,563	-	-		7440	-	2.5/7.598		_		30.61				
STOCK S	NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.	EN WAT Cremines Lead EDM MEAO Lead Mickeline (RE)	930 930	Volder Name a Comment	Northware e	Dominationals Dominationals	171,679 (QL74)	41,023 44,763		-		6,00	218.72	500,506			-	18,600 248,800				
1000	007000	Lond (COMANDAC) Behavioral Processor (CC)	9797	Santingle	Tennor.	Description	1407798	244.40	_	_	_	CIE		100.00				8.273			=	
STATE S	0.9300	ESC FESS On SQ Forene	500	Person	Nodestre	Description	60.10	31.02			- 7	0.14		170,004				1341				
STATE IS	0.93300	P DOMA	Theid Pety Theid Pety	Comments	Nodesone	Demokrati	\$145.98	472,330	-	-		130 TH		1,477,564	-	_		-				
ROOM R		EN Com Custome Services Pump Test Services	Therd Perly Therd Perly	Common and		Commissioner			-	-	-	-	794	400		-		-				
200 E	0.9000	PERSONAL PROPERTY CONTRACTOR FROM	Third Party Third Party	Comments Agriculture	Secure Secure	Completes Completes	90,408 91,400	73.000	-	18,000	_	44,773		116,400	-	22,000		17.64				
=		M Ingas II					11.6%.001	1193407	_	_	_	221.660		LEMM	_	_		_				
100 m		EN Codes & Stanfords Advancer: Halland Codes & Stanfords Advance	Total Party Their Party	Code and Strokets Code and Strokets	Laure		65, 60 110, NO	-	_		_	-	-	60.4M	1	_		-				
200	DOE BY CSA NO	SWOoder & Standards Advancers, Their Budders Codes	Total Party	Calm and Standard	Server.		70,10	-	-		-	-	-	98.48	-	-	_	- 1				
STOCK IS	DOTE STAY CITA THAT TA	PSCCodes & Specials Advancer - Making Codes & Specials Advancer	9782	Color and Standards Codes and Standards	Laure		(8.983	1.834	-			170		23.896								
STORY IS	DOE BY CIA And PA	Philippin A. Sandaria Administra. Hara Andreas Resolutio f Miles Philippin A. Sandaria Administra. Sala Baldera Gode (1980)	979.7	Color and Streeterk	Section		20.67	604	-	_	_	187		20,990			_					
1000	DOT BY CIA NOV PA	EN Code & Sandrá Adronav - Sale Rabbur Code (1980) EN Sub of CA Participa	Theid Party	Colo and Sandark Public	Lauren	Daniel Street	2.10	MIT	_	-	_	3,617	_	34340 38,914	-	_		_	=		_	
8000 B	DOE DV IF ON FA	EN Tale of CA Parameter (1900)	There Perly		Secure Secure	Demokras	21,207	*****	-	-	-	-	_	30,714	-	_	_	-	_		=	
E2478 E	DOT BY IT ON DIC TA	PRICA Despitation of Committees Parkership (\$30%)	1092		Language	Decisions	20.207	25.297	-	_		-	_					-	_		=	
STOCK IS	DOK BY NO BIS MORD	ENCORE Construction Employing - Mont Park	Third Pater	Smidwisd	Lauren	Doministraci	279,200	11,840						833								
200 E	DOE BY NO KEE MOOD FA	ENCHAR Comprision Septembel: Mixed Part 5 Miles	1787	Smileski	Secure	Descriptions	24104	24,104 540,084	-					101,830		-	-	-				
RECEIPT R	DOP BY NO BUX RUNTEDS	DN/Ger Construction Sessionist - A3 Sentro DN/Ger Construction Sessionist - A3 Sentro (1904)	Total Party	Smiletal Smiletal	Leaves Leaves	Diministrani Diministrani	796 No.	38,160	-				-	101,855			-	-				
500E S	DOE OF MOVEMEN	Children Comment This Bedry III	Therd Party			Challege	1,512,423	113,400	-	-			_	267.194				-	_		=	
STATE IS	DOE BY MOVE PA	PROMANNIC Comments Wide Medica (1986)	Third Party	Comment Ad	Lauren	Undergo	20,627	21,621				304										
STOCK IS	DOM: 574 FR SE	EW Prophential Potent of Sale Property SE	That Petr	Carrowald	Lauren	Undergo	1,277,600	306,617	-	-	_			799.274							ĺ	
SCHOOL ST	DOR_EV_FILPA	EN Production Paint of Sale Program (USB)		Commercial	Remove	Chedway Chedway	614	40,148				304		116196								
2007 2	DOTE COLUMN TA	Philippine Property Philippine Property (1980)	Third Party 9082	Comments	Secure Secure	Chairman	116067	136.064 75.117	_	-		300	_	15679				_	_		=	
STOCK IS	DOK BY MING SHARE	Philippen WAC Property MI	Third Party	Comment	Secure	Chapter	1,075,090							\$16,100								
ROOM IS	DOE STY STEAC IN FA.	ENCOMPANY WAY PROPERTY CARRY	979.2		Lauren	Chapters	773.67	306,401	-	-	_	208,170		256,550	- 1			_				
SCHOOL ST	DOR DV PLA	EN Fig Loui and Applicates EN Fig Loui and Applicates (1809)	Third Party	Seitetal Seitetal	Laure	Chairm	(01210)	50,156 190,141	-			110		15.65			-	-				
	20 TW WT 00	707 Care Counting	Theid Party	Mobiles Number		Commission	11.60	196,040	-	-	_	4,00	_	11.8ac	-	_	-		_		_	_
STATE IS	DOE BY NOT CO FA	1977 Cares Constraints CARING	Third Party	Volder Vesters		Decisions	25.25° 170.054	25.297										-				
STOCK IS	DOE: STY TOTE TOUR	ENCHART Corne A Modelmon Leaderna (CMC)	Third Patr	Workford Wooden at	Northware	Demokrati	170%	-	- 1	_	_			56,508	7						ľ	
200 E	DOE BY BY BY BUS PA	PRINCE Come & Studies Serious (1989) 6 Mar.	Theid Party	Voltag Nasta a	Noteman	Committee:	19,300	21,217	-	-	_	-	-	830	-	-	_	_	_		=	
		EN Songing Technologie - Oan EN Songing Technologie - Oan Salisti	8787	Sureging Technologies Sureging Technologies	Nodeway		24,101	54.921	-	-	-	-	_	- 5,44	-	_	_	-	_		_	
=		Sand Communical Partnership Forences Charle CA Structural of Commission Partnership					90.04	284,330	94.798	27.81		16115	369,830	PL60	_		1401	_				
500F E	0.97007	Unit CA Description of Commission Partnership Unit P California Community College Partnership	1/P00P	Nation 1	Nodestre	Commission	15, gp	23,409 41,442	-	3.70	-	14.00		10,176 76,104	_	-		_				
200 E	0.9708	Line P. COCOL PSOC Parkensidas	1/2022	Natio	Nonfactures	Commission	10.67	40.797	-	11.90	-	17.58		170.119	-	-	_					
STORY IS	0/375/0	Unit Bar of Collins ACC	1/202	Public .	Nodemone	Descriptions	126,671			1		14.80		10,340	-							
2000 E	0.93790	LineP Chickmail: of San Direct Partyrisks	1/2002	Public	Nedwork	Commitmen	28,236	0.355	-	,		4.700	13.10	6.04	-							
100 E	0.000	Clear's San Disco County Water Authority Partnership LCP: City of Chale Vote Partnership	L/PROP	Nation Nation	Noderone Noderone	Complete	28.236	430		-		2140	1.33	140	-	-		-				
2000 E	D-Tarretta	1/2 On of the Days Subsection	LOPINE .	Palari.	Medaume	Demokrati	2.73	0.355	1.04			2.30	3.36	8.130								
EVE E	0.90014	SCP, Control for Deep Property. SCP, Part of See Deep Property.	1/29/07	Public	Madagara	Demokrati	2.74	0.355	92	_		1.0%	129	13,390			82					
2000 E	2000	1/CP: Partie Chen Chen Parkenshin 1/CP: SANDAC Parkenshin	LOPING	Patric	Sudance	Demokrasi	25.724	9.355	10.00	- 1		4,000	20.56	8.150 8.508	-	-	-	-				
STATE S	0.3023	LOP: Southern Personality LOP: Stonging Claim Personality	L/PROP	Nation Nation	Nodesone Nodesone	Complete	28.73e	4,070	12.00	- 1	-	2,874	2.50	4.00	-	-	289					
							1400	-				-										
		Dat fun finens		_			3656.63	120188	-	479,370		cun		13930	_	2439,618		30.5%				
1000	DOM: DOM: DOM: DOM: DOM: DOM: DOM: DOM:	Sinds Parelly Program	Theid Park Theid Parks	Sectorial Sectorial	Season	Committee	178.41	213.554		10.00	-	10.00	-	20.50	-	429,714		176.40				
100F 1	DC#1000	COMMUNICACIONES	Third Pater	Septembel Commented	Secure Secure	Demokrati	10.75418	1 708 364		6.90		19.35		34,400	-	798,100		31,774				
STOCK S	DC#4004	COMMILLABOR CLEET HEY RO-SOCKS	Third Party Third Party	Commercial	facure	Demokrati	14,212,475	1,872,307	-	217,177		177,007		1,490,597		2,044,417		108,769				
STORY IS	DOBUGHT.	K. 12 Contrary Services Program	There's Party	Nitir	Laurer	Demokrati	2000	10.8%		20,000		13,178			-			18.90				
STORE IS	0000	Palenti Codesse Services Program	Theid Path	Net	Leave	Demokrati	1,210,100	3600	-	20.00	-	23.802		30,300	1			30,000				
\rightarrow					-				-	-		-		-	-			-				
\vdash		France Solicie III					75.70.111	144559	94.798	674,300		18510	194,140	18,673,817	55.80	25449.947	1400	1,674,595				
\Box		BAY-100					900,000	903,003									10.1			206,013	40,100	
\vdash		TMAY: COM																				
		BAY: CRC					2,176,007	1,178,007												1,711,408	26,612	
\vdash		CRF Lean Foot Total EX Familiah Expenditure E					15,000,540	12,000,00		250,300		CHICLE	494.365	10000	1934	THE RE		LECT				
\vdash		Total EX Fortish Expenditure 6] (3) MIAC States Military surkey and (3274-02	13,453,67	8,79	680,86		CHOCKE	690,85	aurum	100,00	10,000,167	Law	Chical	5.700.CT	STACKS.	704.8	_
ightharpoonup		SSS(aCCC) is Passibereach flundom (SCS) is under					100.00	4.00		_		20,011							2200.00			
\Box		Stray Serings Assistance Program (SSA)(3) Flammer Plate (4)																	15,635,300			
\vdash		Finance Filip (4)							-		11,188		USUAS				DUNG	-				
\vdash	704	SN FN New Process Ciferina France Pilot MEAC CRE	Theid Party Theid Party	Oros Odina	Nodecon				-	-	140	-	144.794	-	-		\$6.40	-	-		-	
	33:2	CRR Information Dealers Authorities		Oraș Odini Oraș Odini	Nodescare Nodescare																	
\vdash	101	DV EN France Non. 200AT Allegations	SSI Theid Perty	One Order	Nodesone Nodesone				- 1		130		70,00		-		6.338					
\rightarrow	109	EN Fill Flower Nick Creli Schmittered	theid Party	Comp College	Temporaries and				-				76,80	-	-		_	-			_	-
\vdash																						
_																	•					

Notes: [3] Premiums without a delivery unrelated to de not construence moments.

[2] Water family from our reported but do not construence moments.

[3] Water family from our reported but do not construence in [3] Support (and the construence of the construence in [3] Support (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2012 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west) adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west) adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west) adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west) adults not see west of the 2013 Report (and adults not see west) adults not V. One Recorded Extendibutions

17 Coulded Report Control Expendibutions

17 Coulded Report Control Expendibutions

17 Coulded Report Control Expendibutions

18 Control Expendibution

18 Control Expen

SECTION 5 PROGRAMS

The purpose of the following table (Table 5) is to provide program level energy savings metrics and data alongside program level expenditures.

							Net (3Wh	Net MW	Net MM	Therms	Gross	s GWh	Gross MW	Gross M	MThe
				Expenditures				Life	First		Life	First	Life		First	Lif
Program Name IOU/PA Programs - Local	SW Lead PA	Program ID	Budget 30,153,120	[3] 19,484,172	TRC 0.44	PAC 0.50	First Year 53.03	Cycle 117.92	Year*	First Year 1.28	Cycle 3.65	Year 52.70	Cycle 136.94	First Year*	Year 1.27	Cyc
SW-CALS-Energy Advisor-HEES, UA1	SDGE	SDGE3201	496,213	493,658	-	-										
SW-CALS-Plug Load and Appliances-POS SW-CALS - EUC WHRP - Advanced	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3204 SDGE3209	1,518,172	1,261,134	0.63	0.74	0.91	9.07	0.07	0.01	0.14	1.51	15.12	0.12	0.02	0
SW-CALS - CAHP/ESMH-CA Advanced I	SDGE	SDGE3213														
SW-COM-Customer Services- Audits NonR SW-COM-Calculated Incentives-Calculated	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3217 SDGE3220	1,971,873	138,056 926,486	0.30	0.72	1.82	7.07		0.06	0.18	1.99	8.45	_	0.06	0
SW-COM-Calculated Incentives-Savings by	SDGE	SDGE3222	2,417,259	324,725	1.54	3.66	1.47	20.88	0.22	0.03	0.46	1.84	26.16	0.27	0.04	0
SW-COM-Deemed Incentives-Commercial SW-COM Direct Install	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3223 SDGE3226	695,836 2,243,210	368,968 1,450,980	0.26 0.18	0.30 0.18	0.27 0.65	1.45 3.26	0.04 0.11	(0.00)	(0.01) 0.01	0.34	1.82 3.68	0.05 0.13	(0.00)	(0
SW-IND-Strategic Energy Management	SDGE	SDGE3227	911,419	634,600	1.65	1.66	2.35	11.75	0.30	0.03	0.16	2.24	11.19	0.29	0.03	0
SW-IND-Customer Services-Audits NonRe	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3229 SDGE3731	407,913	308,766 308,376	1.68		1 00	15.06	0.14	0.06	0.83	1.54		0.22	0.09	
SW-IND-Calculated Incentives-Calculated SW-IND-Deemed Incentives	SDGE	SDGE3231 SDGE3233	1,182,823 256,824	308,326 356,842	0.14	6.21 0.13	0.11	0.60	0.14	(0.00)	(0.00)	0.16	23.18 0.87	0.22	(0.00)	((
SW-AG-Customer Services-Audits	SDGE	SDGE3236	164,729	52,210						, , , ,	, ,				(,	
SW-AG-Calculated Incentives-Calculated SW-AG-Deemed Incentives	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3237 SDGE3239	135,221	82,148 92,640	0.02	0.02	0.01	0.02	0.00		,	0.01	0.04	0.00	-	
SW-ET-Technology Introduction Support	SDGE	SDGE3246	450,075	254,891												1
SW-ET-Technology Assessment Support	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3247 SDGE3248	718,528 745,647	568,736 212,419												
SW-ET-Technology Deployment Support SW C&S - Compliance Enhancement	SDGE	SDGE3248 SDGE3251	510,522	534,243	-	-										-
SW C&S - Reach Codes	SDGE	SDGE3252	267,956	291,340	-											
SW C&S - Planning Coordination SW-WE&T-Centergies	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3253 SDGE3754	218,323 4,101,177	214,946 3 353 126												
SW-WE&T-Connections	SDGE	SDGE3255	371,675	369,443												-
Local-IDSM-ME&O-Local Marketing (EE)	SDGE	SDGE3260	626,761	276,332												
Local-IDSM-ME&O-Behavioral Programs (SW-FIN-On-Bill Finance	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3261 SDGE3262	3,647,758 437,137	3,524,481 220,621	1.38	1.38	42.28	42.28	6.37	0.68	0.68	40.27	40.27	6.07	0.65	
3P-IDEEA	SDGE	SDGE3280	4,163,991	1,977,326		-										H
SW-Com-Customer Services-Pump Test Se	SDGE SDGE	SDGE3292 SDGE3317	897.608	657,406						0.40						
HOPPs - Building Retro-Commissioning STREAMLINED AG EFFICIENCY (SAE)	SDGE	SDGE3322	897,608 831,800	657,406 229,323	2.41	2.46	2.16	6.47	0.12	0.40	1.20	2.05	6.16	0.11	0.38	
			,	.,,												
SW Programs - PA Allocations only SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - Nationa	PG&E	SDGF SW CSA Natl	11,698,991 498 467	4,754,609 681,653	4.27 2.84	133.78 133.12	529.23 92.43	7,774.90	90.35 17.24	0.33	56.66 4.65	529.84 92.43	7,783.89 1 150.51	90.61 17.24	0.33	1
SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - National SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - State A	PG&E	SDGE_SW_CSA_Nati	552,762	418,642	17.31	749.29	276.12	4,067.32	32.49	1.26	13.76	276.12	4,067.32	32.49	1.26	Η.
SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - State B	PG&E	SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg	785,210	686,648	2.48	348.16	159.24	2,536.11	40.04	2.03	36.59	159.24	2,536.11	40.04	2.03	- 3
SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - Nationa SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - State A	SDGE SDGE	SDGE_SW_CSA_Natl_PA SDGE_SW_CSA_Appl_PA	48,985 50,407	31,167 31,807												
SW Codes & Standards Advocacy - State B	SDGE	SDGE_SW_CSA_Bldg_PA	67,584	41,902												+
SW State of CA Partnership		SDGE_SW_IP_Gov SDGE_SW_IP_Gov_PA	58,167 25,237	28,914												
SW State of CA Partnership (Utility) SW CA Department of Corrections Partner	rshin (Utility)	SDGE_SW_IP_Gov_PA SDGE_SW_IP_Gov_DoC_PA	25,237 25,237	-												-
SW New Construction Residential - Mixed	Fuel	SDGE_SW_NC_RES_MIXED	279,200	83,271												
SW New Construction Residential - Mixed SW New Construction Residential - All Ele		SDGE_SW_NC_RES_MIXED_PA SDGE_SW_NC_RES_ELECTRIC	24,104 738 763	101 835												
SW New Construction Residential - All Ele SW New Construction Residential - All Ele		SDGE_SW_NC_RES_ELECTRIC SDGE_SW_NC_RES_ELECTRIC_PA	39,361	101,833												-
SW Midstream Commercial Water Heating		SDGE_SW_MCWH [8]	1,319,483	287,196	1.48	1.72	(0.01)	(0.13)	(0.00)	0.02	0.46	(0.01)	(0.20)	(0.00)	0.04	
SW Midstream Commercial Water Heating SW Foodservice Point of Sale Program [8]		SDGE_SW_MCWH_PA SDGE_SW_FS [8]	25,827 1,277,862	386 799,274	0.71	0.81	0.17	1.97	0.03	0.05	0.56	0.25	3.01	0.05	0.07	
SW Foodservice Point of Sale Program (Ut	tility)	SDGE_SW_FS_PA	49,148	386												
SW Lighting Program SW Lighting Program (Utility)		SDGE_SW_UL SDGE SW UL PA	1,160,651 75,117	134,936	0.38	0.49	0.07	0.83	0.01	(0.00)	(0.00)	0.08	0.87	0.01	(0.00)	(
SW Upstream HVAC Program [6]		SDGE SW HVAC Up [6]	1.453.686	866,326	0.92	2.82	1.21	18.28	0.54	0.03	0.65	1.73	26.27			
SW Upstream HVAC Program (Utility)		SDGE SW HVAC Up PA	778,407	464 917										0.77	0.05	
SW Plug Load and Appliances SW Plug Load and Appliances (Utility)		SDGE SW PLA		464,917		2.02							20.27	0.77	0.05	
			1,012,101			2.02							EU.EI	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections		SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC	1,012,101 886,465 81,433	18,238 11,866		2.02							20.21	0.77	0.05	E
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility)		SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237	18,238 11,866		2.02							20.21	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines:	s (CWR)	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034	18,238		2.02							20.21	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines: SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines: SW EMERING Technologies - Cuss	s (CWR) s (CWR) (Utility)	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC SDGE_SW_WET_CC PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work SDGE_SW_WET_WORk SDGE_SW_WET_WORK PA SDGE_SW_ETP_GAS	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500	18,238 11,866		2.02							20.21	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines:	s (CWR) s (CWR) (Utility)	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work SDGE_SW_WET_Work PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237	18,238 11,866		2.02							LOLLI	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging technologies - Gas SW Emerging Technologies - Gas (Utility)	s (CWR) s (CWR) (Utility)	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500	18,238 11,866		2.02							20.27	0.77	0.05	
WET Cureer Connections WET Career Connections (Unitry) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readmens SW WEAT Cureer & Workforce Readmens SW Emerging Technologies - Can SW Emerging Technologies - C	s (CWR) (Utility) SDGE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work SDGE_SW_WET_Work SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas_PA SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321 802,426 92,489	18,238 11,866 - 56,098 - 8,762 - 549,481 48,266		2.02							10.1.1	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readmes SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readmes SW WE&T Career & Workforce Readmes SW Emerging Technologies - Casa (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs	s (CWR) (Utility)	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Work_PA SDGE_SW_ETP_Gas_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762		2.02				-	-			0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW Earter gar Cyclassics (Career & Career) SW Earter & Career &	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGHE SW PLA, PA SIGHE SW WEL CE SIGHE SW WEL CC. PA SIGHE SW WEL CC. PA SIGHE SW WEL WORK SIGHE SW WELL SIGHE SW WELL SIGHE SW SIGH SW SIGHE SW SIGH SW SIG	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877 128,851	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228	-	-	-		-	-	-		10.1.1	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WERST Career & Workforce Readment SW WERST Career & Workforce Readment SW Entergrap Technologies - Cast SW Entergrap Technologies - Cast Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Line Control of the Career Switch Career Line Partnership Programs Line Partnership Program	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGUE, SW. PLA, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, WOR, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, WOR, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, WOR, PA SIGUE, SW. SEE, SW. SEE, SW. SEE, SW. SEE, SW. SEE, SW. SEE, SW. SIGUE, SW.	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467	-	-	-		-	-			-	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WEAT Career & WorkForer Rendines SW WEAT Career & WorkForer Rendines SW WEAT Career & WorkForer Rendines SW Energing Technologies - Cas (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Limpt-Career Connections of Corrections Partnership Programs Limpt-Career Connections of Corrections Partnership Limpt-Career Connections Community College Fain Limpt-State of Calebran (2012)	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGHE SW PLA, PA SIGHE SW WEL CE SIGHE SW WEL CC. PA SIGHE SW WEL CC. PA SIGHE SW WEL WORK SIGHE SW WELL SIGHE SW WELL SIGHE SW SIGH SW SIGHE SW SIGH SW SIG	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877 128,851	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228	-	2.02		•	•	-				0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WERT Career & Workforce Renders SW WERT Career & Workforce Renders SW WERT Career & Workforce Renders SW Emerging Technologies — Can Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Limit Per A Department of corrections Partn Limit Peditorian Community College Partnership Limit Peditorian College Partnership Limit College Partn	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGE SW PLA PA SIGE SW WET CC SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET WORK SIGE SW WETP Gas PA SIGE	886,465 81,435 25,237 172,034 25,237 150,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,890 242,877 128,851 28,226 28,226	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 14,827 15,518		-		-		·		-	-	0.77	0.05	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unify) SW WEST Career & Workforce Readment SW WEST Career & Workforce Readment SW WEST Career & Workforce Readment SW Emerging Technologies - (as) (Unify) Local Government Fartnership Programs LinstP-CA Department of Corrections Parin	S (CWR) (Utility) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877 128,851 28,226 28,226 28,226	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 14,827 15,518 22,187	-	2.02		-		·			-	0.77	-	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Utility) SW WEST Career & Workforce Readines SW WEST Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies - Connections SW Emerging Technologies - Connections WE Emerging Technologies - Connections SW Emerging Technologies - Connections SW Emerging Technologies - Connections Emerging	S (CWR) (Unity) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SIGE SW PLA PA SIGE SW WET CC SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET CC PA SIGE SW WET WORK SIGE SW WETP Gas PA SIGE	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 136,530 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877 128,851 28,226 28,26 28,	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 14,827 15,518	-	2.02		-	-	·		-		-	-	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WLEST Career & Workforce Readmens SW WLEST Career & Workforce Readmens SW Energing Technologies 'Case SW Energing Technologies' Case The Energing Technologies' Case Unity Connection (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Limit-CA Department of Corrections Partnership Programs Limit-CA Department of Corrections Partnership Limit-CA SURFORD Varianchip Limit-Van Connection (Unity) Limit-Van Connection (Unity) Limit-Van Department (Unity) Limit-Van Unity of San Diego Partnership Limit-Centry of San Diego Partnership Limit-Pent of San Diego Partnership	S (CWR) (Utility) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_WET_WET_WET_WET_WET_WET_WET_WET_WE	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 150,500 26,321 802,426 92,489 146,800 242,877 128,851 128,226 28,226 28,226 28,226 28,226 28,226 28,226 28,226	18,238 11,866 	-	.02			•	·		-	-	0.77	-	
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections (Utility) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs Limpt-Ca Departnersh of Corrections Partn Limpt-Ca Departnersh of Corrections Partn Limpt-Ca Departnership Programs Limpt-Ca Childro Martnership Limpt-Ca Childro Martnership Limpt-Ca Childro Martnership Limpt-Ca Childro Career Special Limpt-Li	S (CWR) (Unity) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Werk SDGE_SW_WET_WERK SDGE_SW_WET_WERK SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS SDGE_SSE_T	886.465 886.465 172.034 25,237 172.034 25,237 150.500 26,532 140.880 242.877 28,226 28,26 28,26 2	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 13,125 13,125 13,125 13,125 13,127 14,827 15,187	2.56		12.37	66.12	2.06		5.72	-	-	0.77		
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections (Utility) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW BERD CAREER & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies — Can (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs Limpt-CA Departnership Limpt-San Dega Control Varienship Limpt-San Dega Control Waite Pattership LiPpt-Care Career Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-Career Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-Career Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-Career Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-San Dega Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-Career Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-San Dega Control Visits Pattership LiPpt-Career Control Visits Pattershi	S (CWR) (Unlity) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SDGE SW PLA PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW EIP GES PA SDGE SW SDGE SW SDGE SW SDGE SW	886,463 18.1433 25,237 172,034 25,237 150,500 24,439 146,800 24,287 148,225 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28	118,218 11,366 56,098 8,762 59,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 111,123 14,827 15,318 22,187 15,215 15,377 16,463	2.66	2.93	12.37					18.22	95.82	2.98	1.63	
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections (Unity) SW WEAT CAREER Workforce Readment SW WEAT CAREER WORKforce Readment SW WEAT CAREER WORKforce Readment SW Emerging Technologies - Cast SW Emerging Technologies - Cast WEINFORCE CONTENT LOOKED TO THE CONTENT LOOK	S (CWR) (Unlny) S SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGEL SW PLA, PA SIGEL SW WEI , CC PA SIGEL SW WEI , CC PA SIGEL SW WEI , CC PA SIGEL SW WEI , WORK SIGEL SW SIGEL SW SIG	886,465 81,433 81,237 172,034 25,237 15,030 26,321 802,426 92,438 142,800 242,877 128,831 28,226 28,	18,238 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 13,125 13,125 13,125 13,125 13,127 14,827 15,187	1.14		12.37	66.12	0.52	1.04	5.72	-	-			
WEI Cureer Connections WEI Career Connections (Unity) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies — Case (Unity) WEINT CAREER & CA	S (CWR) (Unlity) SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDG	SDGE SW PLA PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI CC PA SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW WEI WORK SDGE SW EIP GES PA SDGE SW SDGE SW SDGE SW SDGE SW	886,463 18.1433 25,237 172,034 25,237 150,500 24,439 146,800 24,287 148,225 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28,25 28	118,218 11,366 56,098 8,762 59,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 111,123 14,827 15,318 22,187 15,215 15,377 16,463		2.93				1.04 1.09 (0.01)		-	95.82	2.98	1.63	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WLEST CAREER WORKFORE Readment SW WLEST CAREER WORKFORE Readment SW Energing Technologies 'Case WET CAREER WORKFORE Readment SW Energing Technologies' Case WET CAREER CONTENT OF THE	SIGUE	SIGES SW PLA, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CE SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIT SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW	886.465 81.433 15.237 172.034	18,218 11,366 56,098 8,762 549,481 48,266 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 14,227 15,511 5,51	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Carser Connections WEI Carser Connections WEI Carser Connection (Utility) SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Limple Administration of Government Of Correction Parint Limple Candisona Community College Faint Limple Candisona Community College Faint Limple Candisona Community College Faint Limple State of California (EU) Limple Candisona Community College Faintenship Limple Candisona (College Faintenship Limple California (Unit of California (Unit of California) Limple California (Unit of California (Unit of California) Limple State (Unit of California (Unit of California) Limple Faintenship Limple Engraph (Limple Faintenship Limple Engraph (Limple Faintenship COMM SMALL (US) SW (-2008W) COMM SMALL (US) SW (-2008W) COMM LARGE (US) SW (-2008W)	SIGUE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA	886.465 81.433 15.237 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.034 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035 172.035	18,218 11,366 50,098 8,762 8,762 549,481 48,226 110,905 241,467 48,228 11,123 14,327 15,518 15,518 15,548 16,566,493 10,566,493 10,566,493	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Curser Connections WEI Carrier Connections (Unity) SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Limit Carrier & Workforce Connections Limit Carrier & Connection Partnership Limit Carrier & Connection Partnership Limit Carrier & Carrier & Carrier & Carrier & Limit Car	SIGUE	SIGES SW PLA, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CE SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIT SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW	886.465 81.433 25.237 172.034 25.237 173.034 25.237 26.321 802.426 26.321 802.426 27.242 87.242.877 128.831 146.800 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 14.793.415 15.744,191 16.212.471 76.849 12.215.22 78.226 78.226,238	18,218 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 549,481 131,465 141,255 141,257 151,518 121,125 151,125 165,463 165,463 175,955 175	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Carser Connections WEI Carser Connections WEI Carser Connection (Utility) SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW WEAT Carser & WorkFore Readines SW Energing Carser (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs Lings Carser Switzer Carser Carser (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs Lings Carser Switzer Carser (Utility) Local Government Carser (Utility) Local Government Carser (Utility) Local Cars	SIGUE	SIGES SW PLA, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CE SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, CC, PA SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIT SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW WEIT, WORK SIGES SW	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 45,237 16,0321 60,321 80,245	18,218 11,866 11,866 8,762 56,968 56,9481 18,226 110,905 110,905 111,123 111,1	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connection (Utility) SW WEAT Career & WorkForce Readines SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Utility) Local Government Partnership Programs Linar CAC Departnership of Corrections Parin Linar CAC Departnership of Connections Parin Linar CAC CACHOTO Thereship Linar Pack CAC CACHOTO Thereship Linar Pack CAC CACHOTO Thereship Linar CAC CACHOTO The	SIGNE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA	886.465 81.433 25.237 172.034 25.237 173.034 25.237 26.321 802.426 26.321 802.426 27.242 87.242.877 128.831 146.800 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 28.236 14.793.415 15.744,191 16.212.471 76.849 12.215.22 78.226 78.226,238	18,218 11,866 56,098 8,762 549,481 549,481 131,465 141,255 141,257 151,518 121,125 151,125 165,463 165,463 175,955 175	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections (Unity) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Long-CA Department of Corrections Partnership Ling-CA Department of Career & Wei	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Werk_PA SDGE_SW_WET_WERK_PA SDGE_SW_WET_WERK_PA SDGE_SW_ETP_CSS_PA SDGE_SSW_ETP_CSS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCSS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_PCS_PA SDGE_SSP_ST_	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 172,034 25,237 36,331 892,436 92,489 146,880 342,877 146,826 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 27,237 27	18,218 11,866 1,866 8,762 56,098 57,62 57,48 57,	1.14 0.81	Z.93 1.19 0.85 0.90	1.30 1.64 9.43	8.35 8.50 49.27	0.52 0.27 1.27	1.09 (0.01) (0.05)	5.89 (0.03) (0.14)	18.22 18.22 2.14 14.22	95.82 95.82 11.45 11.08 73.30	2.98 0.72 0.72 1.91	1.63	
WEI Curser Connections WEI Carrier Connections (Unity) SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Carrier & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies - Gas (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Lingifications Community College Parin Lingifications College Parinership Lingifications College Parinership Lingification College Parinershi	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Werk_PA SDGE_SW_WET_WERK_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SSS_PA SDGE_SS_PA SDGE_SS	880,465 18,433 25,237 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,037 180,037	18,238 11,866 11,866 56,098 57,622 57,481 48,226 110,703 48,227 48,227 11,723 1	1.14 0.81	2.93 1.19 0.855	1.30	8.35 8.50	0.52	1.09	5.89	18.22 1.86 2.14	95.82 11.45 11.08	2.98 0.72 0.35	1.63	
WEI Career Connections WEI Career Connections (Unity) SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW WEAT Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) WEI Career & Workforce Readines SW Emerging Technologies 'Case (Unity) Local Government Partnership Programs Long-CA Department of Corrections Partnership Ling-CA Department of Career & Wei	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA	886,465 81,433 25,237 172,034 25,237 172,034 25,237 36,331 892,436 92,489 146,880 342,877 146,826 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 25,236 27,237 27	18,218 11,866 1,866 8,762 56,098 57,62 57,48 57,	1.14 0.81	Z.93 1.19 0.85 0.90	1.30 1.64 9.43	8.35 8.50 49.27	0.52 0.27 1.27	1.09 (0.01) (0.05)	5.89 (0.03) (0.14)	18.22 18.22 2.14 14.22	95.82 95.82 11.45 11.08 73.30	2.98 0.72 0.72 1.91	1.63	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW W.EAT Career & Workforce Rendence SW Energing Technologies - Cas (Unity) Local Convernment Partnership Programs Limber Control of Career of Convertion Parint Limber Control of Career of Convertion Parint Limber Control of Career of Car	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SDGE_SW_PLA_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_CC_PA SDGE_SW_WET_Werk_PA SDGE_SW_WET_WERK_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SW_ETF_CSS_PA SDGE_SSS_PA SDGE_SS_PA SDGE_SS	880,465 18,433 25,237 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,037 180,037	18,238 11,866 11,866 56,098 57,622 57,481 48,226 110,703 48,227 48,227 11,723 1	1.14 0.81	Z.93 1.19 0.85 0.90	1.30 1.64 9.43	8.35 8.50 49.27	0.52 0.27 1.27	1.09 (0.01) (0.05)	5.89 (0.03) (0.14)	18.22 18.22 2.14 14.22	95.82 95.82 11.45 11.08 73.30	2.98 0.72 0.72 1.91	1.63	
WET Career Connections WET Career Connections WET Career Connections (Unity) SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW WL&T Career & Workforce Readines SW Energing Technologies - Clas (Unity) Local Convernment Partnership Programs LinniP-California Community College Parin LinniP-California Community College Parin LinniP-California Community College Parin LinniP-California Continuation (Unity) LinniP-Saide of California 1001 LinniP-Saide of Saide 1001 LinniP-Saide 1	SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE SDGE	SIGUE, SW. PLA, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, CC, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, WORE, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, PG SIGUE, SW. WEI, WORE, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, PG SIGUE, SW. WEI, PG SIGUE, SW. WEI, WORE, PA SIGUE, SW. WEI, PG SIGUE, SW. WEI, WORE, PA SIGUE,	880,465 18,433 25,237 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,034 172,037 180,037	18,238 11,866 11,866 11,866 11,866 11,866 11,905 14,427 14,427 14,427 14,227 14,227 15,218 22,187 15,218 22,187 15,218 22,187 15,218 22,187 15,218 22,187 15,218 23,187 15,218 24,187 15,218 24,187 25,187 26	1.14 0.81	Z.93 1.19 0.85 0.90	1.30 1.64 9.43	8.35 8.50 49.27	0.52 0.27 1.27	1.09 (0.01) (0.05)	5.89 (0.03) (0.14)	18.22 1.86 2.14 14.22	95.82 11.45 11.08 73.30	2.59 0.72 0.72 0.35 1.91	1.63 1.7/1 (0.03) (0.08)	

SECTION 6 - COST EFFECTIVENESS

The purpose of the following table (Table 6) is to provide an annual update on the cost effectiveness of the energy efficiency portfolio of programs being implemented in the 2021 program year.

Cost Effectiveness (Net)

	Total Cost (\$) to	Total Savings (\$) to Ratepayers	Net Benefits (S) to Ratepayers				PAC Cost	PAC Cost	PAC Cost
Annual Results	Ratepayers (TRC)	(TRC/PAC)	(TRC)	TRC Ratio	Total PAC Cost	PAC Ratio	(\$/kW) (1)	(\$/kWh)	(\$/therm)
Total Portfolio w/o C&S	\$ 46,395,424	\$ 27,317,461	\$ (19,077,963)	0.59	\$ 39,955,190	0.68		\$0.23	\$0.48
TOTAL Portfolio with C&S	\$192,797,740	\$670,802,643	\$478,004,903	3.48	\$ 41,742,133	16.07		\$0.01	\$0.10

(1) The adopted avoided cost methodology does not provide information to provide a meaningful value for PAC Cost per kw.

SECTION 7 - RATEPAYER IMPACTS

The purpose of the following table (Table 7) is to report the annual impact of the energy efficiency activities on customer bills relative to bills without the energy efficiency programs, as required by Rule X.3 of the Energy Efficiency Policy Manual version 3, adopted in D.05-04-051.

Average Billpayer Impacts from Net Savings

	Electric Average Rate (Res and	- Carrier age	Average First	
	Non-Res ¹)	Rate (Core and Non-Core)	Year Bill	Average Lifecylce
2021	\$/kwh	\$/therm	Savings (\$) 2	Bill Savings (\$) 2
SDG& E Average	\$0.27	\$1.19	\$169,058,973	\$2,245,142,237

¹ Non-Residential is a composite based on Small Commercial, Medium/Large Commercial & Industrial, Agriculture, and Streetlighting classes

² Excludes Energy Savings Assistance (ESA) program savings.

SECTION 8 - SAVINGS BY END-USE

The purpose of the following table (Table 8) is to show annual portfolio savings by end-use category, including those savings attributable to the Codes and Standards pre-2021 advocacy work.

Annual Savings By Use Category 2021

			Gross	GWh	Gross MW	Gross MN	A Therms	Net (GWh	Net MW	Net MM	Therms
			First	Life	First	First	Life	First	Life		First	Life
Measure End Use Category	TRC	PAC	Year	Cycle	Year	Year	Cycle	Year	Cycle	First Year	Year	Cycle
Appliance or Plug Load	2.17	203.34	38.68	309.84	6.54	(0.13)	0.56	38.68	309.83	6.54	(0.13)	0.56
Building Envelope	2.08	342.31	9.59	187.05	4.63	0.43	8.65	9.59	187.04	4.63	0.43	8.65
Compressed Air	2.35	354.48	0.85	12.79		-		0.85	12.79	-		
Commercial Refrigeration	2.52	5.02	40.86	325.79	5.36	(0.10)	(0.45)	35.84	300.19	4.71	(0.07)	(0.33)
Codes & Standards	3.61	150.53	28.75	454.09	4.34	(0.00)	(0.00)	28.75	454.09	4.34	(0.00)	(0.00)
Food Service	0.74	0.85	0.24	2.89	0.05	0.08	0.99	0.17	2.03	0.04	0.05	0.65
HVAC	2.61	21.27	38.32	523.84	16.14	0.91	12.77	36.80	503.66	15.61	0.86	11.89
Irrigation												
Lighting	8.37	101.91	352.88	5,392.00	40.28	(0.34)	(4.20)	351.73	5,384.67	40.12	(0.33)	(4.17)
Non-Savings Measure												
Process Distribution	0.02	0.02	0.01	0.04	0.00	-		0.01	0.02	0.00		
Process Drying												
Process Heat	5.61	22.32	0.20	3.07		0.07	0.98	0.15	2.26		0.06	0.91
Process Refrigeration												
Recreation	2.60	9.40	6.36	65.63	1.21	0.00	0.02	6.07	62.77	1.21	0.00	0.02
Service												
Service and Domestic Hot Water	2.69	7.81	6.06	58.81	0.82	3.75	31.70	5.74	55.69	0.77	3.11	27.90
Whole Building	1.61	13.46	77.95	680.82	21.50	2.01	19.87	80.24	683.89	21.82	2.06	19.95
Total	3.48	16.07	600.76	8,016.65	100.87	6.68	70.88	594.63	7,958.94	99.8	6.04	66.03

Notes

- (1) Excludes Energy Savings Assistance (ESA) program savings.
- (2) For the Codes & Standards programs, savings that do not have a standard Use Category appear in the Use Category "Codes & Standards".
- (3) Net energy savings numbers include 5% market effects.

SECTION 9 - COMMITMENTS

The purpose of the following table (Table 9) is to allow the utilities to report commitments (contractual or incentive) that will produce savings after December 2021. This information will be useful for the Commission's resource planning purposes by enabling program activities to be linked to a particular funding cycle.

	Committed Funds		Expected Energy Sav	ings
2010-2012	s	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource		-	-	
Non-Resource		-	-	
Codes & Standards		-	-	
DG&E Total		-	-	
Commitments Made in the	Past Year with Expected	Implementation after Dece	mber 2013-2015	
Commitments Made in the	Past Year with Expected Committed Funds ²	•	mber 2013-2015 Expected Energy Sav	ings
Commitments Made in the		•		ings MMth
			Expected Energy Sav	0
2013-2015 ^{2,4}	Committed Funds ²		Expected Energy Sav MW	0
2013-2015 ^{2,4} Resource	Committed Funds ² S S -		Expected Energy Sav MW	0

Commitments Made in the Past Year with Expected Implementation after December 2016

	Com	nitted Funds 3		Expected Energy	Savings
2016 ³		S	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource	S	-	-	-	
Non-Resource	s	2,198,713	-	-	
Codes & Standards	\$	-	-	-	
SDG&E Total	\$	2,198,713	-		
nmitments Made in the			mplementation after De		
	Com	nitted Funds ³		Expected Energy	Savings
2017 3		s	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource	S	136,261	-	-	
Non-Resource	\$	647,092	-	-	
	-	_	_ [-	
Codes & Standards	\$	-			

Commitments Made in the Past Year with Expected Implementation after December 2018

	Con	nmitted Funds ³		Expected Energy	Savings
2018 3		s	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource	\$	40,487	-	-	-
Non-Resource	S	1,429,037	-	-	-
Codes & Standards	\$	-	-	-	-
SDG&E Total	\$	1,469,524			-

Commitments Made in the Past Year with Expected Implementation after December 2019

	Committed Funds 3		Expected Energy	Savings
2019 ³	s	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource	\$ 559,407			-
Non-Resource	\$ 2,978,316	-		-
Codes & Standards	S -		•	ı
SDG&E Total	\$ 3,537,723		٠	·

Commitments Made in the Past Year with Expected Implementation after December 2020

	Com	mitted Funds ³		Expected Energy	Savings
2020 ³		s	GWH	MW	MMth
Resource	\$	837,134	-		-
Non-Resource	S	3,130,204	-		-
Codes & Standards	\$	-	-	-	-
SDG&E Total	\$	3,967,337			

Commitments Made in the Past Year with Expected Implementation after December 2021

	Committed Fun	ls ³		Expected Energy	Savings
2021 3	s	G'	WH	MW	MMth
Resource	S	-	-		-
Non-Resource	\$ 2,550.	972	-		-
Codes & Standards	S	-			
SDG&E Total	\$ 2,550,	972	-	-	

¹ Note: Committed funds were associated with the 2010-2012 program cycle. These funds were reserved or encumbered for future work permitted per Ordering Paragraph 13 and Conclusion of Law 12 of D.12-11-015.

4 The amounts reported in Committed Funds include SDG&E's Energy Efficiency Finance Pilots remaining balance from unspent funds 2013-2017, or funding requested from Balancing Accounts as approved in Advice Letter 3147-E/2625-G. The remaining balance/unspent funds associated with the Financing Pilots at the end of 2021 cycle is \$3,469,490.

² Note: Committed funds are associated with the 2013-2015 program cycle. These funds are reserved or encumbered for future work permitted per the EESTATS CPUC Guidance Document and EE decision (D.15-10-025).

³ Note: Committed funds are associated with the 2016-2021 program years, respectively. These funds are reserved or encumbered for future work permitted per the EESTATS CPUC Guidance Document and EE decision (D.15-10-025).

SECTION 10 - SHAREHOLDER PERFORMANCE INCENTIVES

The purpose of the following table (Table 10) is to report SDG&E's forecasted and actual efficiency savings and performance incentives.

Shareholder Incentives (ESPI)

Program Year	2017	2018	2019	2020	2017-2020 Adjusted
Forecast	\$4,500,000	\$4,500,000	\$3,500,000	\$3,372,986	\$15,872,986
Awards per Resolution	\$5,167,682	\$3,314,957	\$1,311,641	N/A	\$9,794,280
Adjusted Awards					\$3,632,280

 $^{^{\}ast}$ For 2019 and 2020, please refer to D.20-11-013 at p. 34 and FOF 32.

Program Year	Part 1	Part 2
2017	E-5007	E-5062
2018	E-5062	E-5108
2019	E-5108	N/A
2020	N/A	N/A
2021	N/A	N/A

^{**} For the Program Years 2017 -2019, D.21-09-002 OP 2(b) approves the proposed settlement agreement, which refunds \$6.162 million to ratepayers for awards SDG&E received, or was due to receive, as part of ESPI.

SECTION 11 - CAP & TARGET

The purpose of the following table (Table 11) is to show the annual Cap & Target performance of the energy efficiency portfolio by budget category (Administrative, Marketing & Outreach, Direct Implementation, and EM&V) as defined in D.09-09-047 and clarified in D.12-11-015.

DOOR F	Catholic Company			
AUGUST EXPENSES	Efficiency Quarter	ny Ciap And Targe	et Expenditure P	WHORTHAMON

ay chemic	Guarterly Cap And Target Expenditure Performance Energy Efficiency Cap ar	nd Target Ex	penditure R	eport				
			Expenditures			Cap & Tar	get Perform	iance
Line	Budget Category	Non-Third- Party Qualifying Qualifying Costs (including PA costs and old- definition 3PKDP contracts that don't meet the new definition)		Total Portfolio	One-Year Authorized IOU Budget	Percent of Budget	Cap %	Target %
	Administrative Costs							
3 4	IOU [1] Third Party & Partnership [2] Target Exempt IOU Programs [3]	\$ 1,020,909 \$ 226,026 \$ 2,192,301	\$ 499,350	5 1,020,909 5 726,176 5 2,192,301		2.1% 0.9%	10.0%	10.0%
5	Marketing and Outreach Costs							
6 7	Marketing & Outreach [4] Statewide Marketing & Outreach [5]	5 757,540 5 2,209,064		\$ 1,076,505 \$ 2,269,064	\$ 3,000,433	13%		6.0%
٥	Direct Implementation Costs							
9	Direct Implementation (Incentives and Rebates)	\$ 1,187,134	\$ 2,110,970	\$ 3,290,104				
10	Direct Implementation (Non Incentives and Non Rebates) [9]	\$ 4,642,620	\$ 8,935,076	\$ 13,777,097		16.2%		20.0%
11	Direct Implementation Target Exempt Programs [3]	\$ 10,590,314	\$ 1,003,009	12,450,903				
12	EMSV Costs (Investor Owned Utilities & Energy Division) [6]	\$ 729,030		\$ 729,000	\$ 3,290,010	0.9%	4.0%	
13	Total [9]	\$ 24,010,035	\$ 13,729,022	\$ 30,346,056	\$ 82,000,240	40.0%		
14	2021 Authorized Budget [7]	\$ 42,416,006	\$ 42,621,067	\$ 05,030,673				
15	Third-Party Implementer Contracts (as defined per D.16-06-019, OP 10) [9]		\$ 13,728,022	\$ 13,720,022				

ach costs are limited to 6 percent of total EE budgets based on D. 09-09-047. Statewide Marketing & Outmach (SW ME&O) is excluded from the Marketing and Outmach cost target cal

CEMS/ costs include both SOCE'S 6 Energy Distaints EMSV budget is limited 4 percent of the profit of

SECTION 12 - METRICS TABLE

The purpose of the following table (Table 12) is to show portfolio savings for numerous key elements based on the activity of the EE portfolio and the service territory customer population.

No.	- Northern	 																			
									Ŧ	\blacksquare			75	=	\blacksquare					\mp	
	-	=	_					-	-				-	-							
	_			2000																-	
	_	=		-	-																
	_			-																=	
	==													=						#	
																				#	
					-								3 3								
														===							
			_	-		_						=									
	=			100000					-				===				-				
_	_			-				=	=	=			-	=			=	-		-	
				-							-	-	-	=			=	-	_	=	
									==			-	=	==						=	
												-						≢		#	
	_								=				=	≢			=	#	=	#	
	=								===				\Rightarrow	=		\equiv	=		=	=	
																		⇟			
																		#			
				-														3			
									3					3	ø	F	3	3 F			
				-																	
	-			-								-	-							-	
	-			-									-			-	-	-			
																		4			
									, I.,												
																	▆	≢			
				-										==	₽		=				
																				≢	
	_																				
	_								##												
	=								= =	Ħ			==	==			=	=		#	
	_	=	_						-								=				
	-								-					==			=	-			
	-																=	=			
	_								-						=		=	≢	1		
	_													==			=	=			
	=		_						=				=	==	=		=	=	=	#	
														==							
													#	≢	▐		■				
					-	-															
				-																	
									-			-					=				
				-	- 1901				3				3 3	3 2			3	==			
	_			_								3	-							=	
	-			_	_								-	=							
	-					-															
	-			-					-			7					-	1			
				-		-		=				- 1									
									4												
	_												-				-				ш
														==							
									,												
																	▋	≢			
													\blacksquare		\blacksquare						
										\blacksquare											Ħ
																				≢	
															₽						Ħ
																				#	
	-								-								-	1			
	-			-					3				1					1			
-	-																				
•	-							-	-					=				1	-		
		=						=													ш
																	\blacksquare	≢			
																				₽	
										\blacksquare											Ħ
				-400														#			
						-											_			-	ш

SECTION 13 - LOCAL PROGRAM THIRD-PARTY BUDGETS

The Purpose of Table 13 is to demonstrate SDG&E's Third-Party Program solicitations compliance with the following Ordering Paragraphs (OP) of Commission D.18-01-004:

OP 1: Pacific Gas and Electric Company, San Diego Gas & Electric Company, Southern California Edison Company, and Southern California Gas Company shall ensure that their energy efficiency portfolios contain third-party designed and implemented programs with the following minimum percentages by the dates given:

- a. At least 25 percent by December 31, 2018. For 2018 only, the percentage requirement may also include Third-Party programs under the definition of third-party previously in place prior to the adoption of Decision 16-08-019.
- b. At least 40 percent by December 31, 2021.
- c. At least 60 percent by December 31, 2022.

OP 8: Pacific Gas and Electric Company, San Diego Gas & Electric Company, Southern California Edison Company, and Southern California Gas Company shall include in their energy efficiency annual reports, beginning with the 2018 reports, a listing of all Third-Party contracts in place, along with at least the following information (with confidential versions, if necessary).

- a. Name of counterparty
- b. Length
- c. Dollar value (aggregated, if necessary, for public versions)

d. Market segment, sub-segment, sizes, and types of customers addressed

In addition, consistent with Public Utilities Code Section 1613, Table 13 demonstrates SDG&E's compliance with D.18-01-004 OP 1 by incorporating the authorized AB 841 programs budget which are considered qualifying Third-Party programs as defined by D.16-08-019.

J. Leon Printers Dated From Budges										_		
			the course	-	Tipes and	***	wanted by					
New Proper	Champa's fless	PRODUCT (S)	-		-	100	-	101	100	Partie		
man have	Discharge Lines		Name and Address of		A CAMPAGE	1.00000			LABOR	70.0		
to the second	No. of Concession, Name of			1.44			-		1 112 20	70.0		
Lot ben Dieto Law 1801	District Co.		11000	-	100.00	150.01	A 44148-0		111111			
tag tige:	WHITE B	•	T-10 September 1	1 1 1 1 1 1	11000000	1 100 00 0	1 12082		1 10/19/20 0			
hales and assemptioning as prophysical except have in that	and the same of the same									•		
nice Programs Total Parts Barbets												
					Statement of the last	-	Air bis				-	Charles Street
Secritore	Constant No.	Last STO	THE THREE P	1001	-	100	-	100	FO RESIDENCE	-	-	***
	Market State of											
A A sella finale	Windows.	83	Name and Address of	A TANKS	A street or	1.000	A APPROXIMATE		0.18	11461	BALLINE	\$15 et 8
Maria Sanca Salan and Sanci	Of Security 144 C	NO CONTRACT			A LATINETIAN		A CHARGE	1.00	140		B Charles	B18.00.0
Laborate Maria Company	Ann Admin	100							2.00			
trial letter in the state of	Military bise (b.)	COMP							- 12		-	_
and a final a final a final	III best	Date							110			
And the last of th	Total Control of Contr	Date .										
niet helle hat adams	With the Contractor	Det							- 1			
	The Columbia	Time .							- 12			
AND DESCRIPTION OF STREET AND DESCRIPTION OF STREET	Little Conference Co.	Cast	B181304	S. LEWIS CO.	A 450.45 m	1 100.00	4 440 504	1 100 010		1.15(0.0)	8 BLANCA	10.00
and the last of the same of the force between Read	Late Codemic	Cont							-			
Read to the Company of the Street Street	Falls Coding Co.	DAG							- 10			
Annial Control of the Street	Tax Calcan In	Cont							- 12			
handa de la companya	de idea	(int										1000
And the last of th	Total San in	Cont	BARRAGO	10.754	10000	100		1 100 514	- 12	1007	19479.4	10.00
Charles automatical	Alles Delices De	Date							1.0			
Being automatical	ETA Selection	Det							- 10			
tota in	Add Roberts	Files							110			
Total Street of the second	TO SOME	100	-	-		100		1		_	_	_
to be before to the be	Contractions	Cont	BILLIAN I					1.000	- 12		1000	10.00
this beats of tells	Tiniah Tiniah	CHE			4 4/1/48	1 1 2 4 1 2	1.100.00	1 10 111	- 10		1000	100.00
the beat dealer	Or Annual Inc.	Cont		100	10000	190	10000	11000	- 10		14470.0	100.00
Delega has been	Salara Salar	Della Control	12071	1000	L Children	0.814	I Contra	1.084	- 10	100	1 447.4	100
A COLUMN TO A COLU	Company of the Compan	Title 1	100	12.00	THEFT	984	THE ROLL OF	TTOWN STR		1 4394		161
Mail Control of the C		_							•			
ALL THE PARTY OF T	100.00	ſ										
	NOTATE OF											
	_		1									
to a control	E-1744.6	1 14/245 4	1									
NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.	40.01	10499	1									
manager of gring												
and harden			1									
harisqui	PT MIT BAGA	Print help	I									
	200.00	100.00	1									
	17173	149.05.0	1									
the same	200	100,000	1									
	1 201	1000	1									
and and			i									
		10.00	1									
faint	100.00	112/12	1									
AND DESCRIPTION OF THE PERSON	-	A CONTRACT OF	1									
& GPs Complete												
	-	**	1									
a disconglisse	100.00	-										
& GPs Complete	100.00	-										
& ON-Complete	10000	-										
& GPs Complete	100.00	-										
& GPs Complete	100.00	-										
4 CPs/Complete Chapped Chapp	100.00	-										
A Discharge and September 1 Se	100.00	-										
a & Children Septem Sep	1 100 00 1 1 100 00 1	-										
La Children Inspension	1 100 00 1 1 100 00 1	-										
4 ON-Complete mayora Salaria	100.00	-										
La Children Inspension	1 100 00 1 1 100 00 1	-										
La Children Inspension	1 100 00 1 1 100 00 1	-										
La Children Inspension	1 100 00 1 1 100 00 1	-										
L & Charles Interpretation (Company Company Co	1 100 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 1	1 100 (F.E.) 1										
A Displace Improve Imp	1 100 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 1	1 100 (F.E.) 1		No.						The contract of		
A Displace Improve Imp	1 100 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 1	1 100 (F.E.) 1		Now colors		holds of the samety	per dus F 1814			Okazan, with		
4 (1% Conglisses Seguese Seg	1 100 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 1	1 100 (F.E.) 1		Nanamata		to the same			# #DOM: #**	Norman, same		
4 Oth Couplines Temperat Control Con	1 100 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 101 1	1 100 (F.E.) 1		No.		pa formani			e service service	Thomas, with	,	
A Difference Company of the Company	STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE P	Long Marie State S							and the same of th		yourself and	
Bergerer Maryana	STATE OF THE PROPERTY OF THE P	Long Marie State S				pas Series and			- they are to the	and the same of th		no terror
Ph. & Ch.Complete ##################################	Control of the Contro	A STATE OF THE STA	-	-	-	contrast of the	te to que tue me		or the growth of the contract	Marian, and		nanton er o

SECTION 14 - PG&E's MARKETPLACE METRICS

This	s table	is not	applicable	to ST	G&E.	It is r	not includ	ed in t	the SD	G&E	annual	report.
1 1111	, taore	15 110	applicable	TO DE	JOEL.	16 15 1	iot illetua	ca III t	\mathbf{n}	CCL	ammaa	report.

APPENDIX B

2021 Statewide HVAC True-up Tables

Section 1 Final True-up Report

The purpose of the following table is to show the Annual True-up Report submitted to each funding IOU following a program year and included in the program year Annual Report, as required by the co-funding agreement (CFA). The Annual True-Up Report outlines the following:

- amounts funded by each of the IOUs, per the CFA
- a summary of program expenditures and the allocation of these expenditures to each of the IOUs
- a calculation of interest applicable to each IOUs balance after program funding and expenditure amounts and
- a calculation of any applicable refund to the IOUs

Annual True-Up Report
Program Name: SW HVAC Program
Program Year: 2021
Lead: San Diego Gas & Electric

	PG&E	SCE	SCG	SDG&E	Total	Note on Row Content
Proportional Contribution per Load-Share	45.60%	32.08%	8.36%	13.96%	100.00%	For each IOU: its proportional share per CFA Exhibit B
Total Monthly CFA Payments Made	4,715,920.08	3,317,691.14	864,585.33	1,443,733.43		For each IOU: total dollar amount of payments for that Program Year for this SW Program
Total Interest Payment Accrued*	1,226.12	862.59	219.64	375.37		For each IOU: dollar amount of interest accrued on that IOU's Total Monthly Payments made
Program Costs Actually Spent	2,829,831.85	1,990,811.53	518,802.51	866,325.72	6,205,771.61	For each IOU: proportional share of the total program implementer contract costs for that Program Year
Annual True-Up Payment Accrued	1,887,314.35	1,327,742.19	346,002.46	577,783.08		For each IOU: dollar amount calculated as: [Total Monthly Payments Made + Total Interest Payment Accrued - Program Contract Costs Actually Spent]

Interest is calculated by multiplying the following factors:

ii. one-twelfth of the interest rate on three-month nonfinancial Commercial Paper for the previous month, as reported in the Federal Reserve Statistical Release, H.15. or its successor

Attachments:

2021 Payment Schedule

i. the average of the account balance at the beginning of the month and the balance in the account after the program funding and expense but before interest at the end of month

Section 2 2021 Payment Schedule

• The purpose of the following table is to show the timing of the amounts funded by each IOU for the 2021 program year.\

2021 Payment Schedule Reflecting Months Payments Received

SDG&E SW HVAC Program

1	Annual Funding	2021 Annual Funding	2021 Funding/Paymen	ts						
Parties	Contribution per	Contribution	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Funding/Payment	Total
	Load-Share	Contribution	06/15/21	07/15/21	08/15/21	09/15/21	10/15/21	11/15/21	12/15/21	
SCE	32.08%	\$ 3,317,691.14	473,955.88	473,955.88	473,955.88	473,955.88	473,955.88	473,955.88	473,955.86	3,317,691.14
SDG&E	13.96%	\$ 1,443,733.43	206,247.63	206,247.63	206,247.63	206,247.63	206,247.63	206,247.63	206,247.65	1,443,733.43
SCG	8.36%	\$ 864,585.35		247,024.38	123,512.19	123,512.19	123,512.19	123,512.19	123,512.21	864,585.35
PG&E	45.60%	\$ 4,715,920.08	673,702.87	673,702.87	673,702.87	673,702.87	673,702.87	673,702.87	673,702.86	4,715,920.08
Total	100.00%	\$ 10,341,930.00	\$ 1,353,906.38	\$ 1,600,930.76	\$ 1,477,418.57	\$ 1,477,418.57	\$ 1,477,418.57	\$ 1,477,418.57	\$ 1,477,418.58	\$ 10,341,930.00

	EXHIBIT B	
2021 Progra	m Budget and IOU Funding C	Contribution
Party	2021 Proportional Contribution per Load- Share	2021 Annual Funding Contribution
SCE	32.08%	\$3,317,691.14
SDG&E	13.96%	\$1,443,733.43
SoCalGas	8.36%	\$864,585.35
PG&E	45,60%	\$4,715,920.08
2021 Program Budget	100.00%	\$10,341,930